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Accounting Schedules

Consolidated Equity and Financial Position

Labomar S.p.a.

Assets

(Burg)~ . Notes 31427021 3171272020
Intangible assets 1 41,046,733 15,734,599
Rights of use 2 4,993,953 3,130,804
Tangible assets 3 23,173,700 17,121,091
Equity investments 4 951,069 1,881,359
Other non-current financial liabilities and financial derivatives 5 210,433 196,845
Deferred tax assets 18 1,350,010 162,159
Non-current assets 71,725,898 38,226,857
Inventories 6 13,669,582 9,546,220
Trade receivables 7 13,908,986 9,438,872
Other current assets 8 2,116,222 3,547,605
Non-disposable cash in trusts 9 - 858,167
Income tax credits 10 323,219 549,011

- Other current financial liabilities and financial derivatives 11 22,253 -
Cash and cash equivalents 12 14,162,598 33,660,632
Current assets 44,202,859 57.600,507
Total assets 115,928,757 -~ 95,827,363 |
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Liabilities

Labomar S.p.a.

(Eiro) CoNotes o 314272021 - 31/12/2020
Share capital 13 1,848,404 1,848,404
Reserves 13 43,866,637 36,370,493
Group shar‘eholders equity Lo 45,715 0623 - 38,218,897

*equity, mmorlty lnterests

219,634,

Tbia'%l‘s. s éholders’ equity L

T 38,238,532

Non-current due to banks and other lenders 14 20,903,029 24,555,382
Non-gurrent financial liabilities for rights of use 15 3,608,754 2,232,622
Non-current payables for business combinations 20 7,152,956 567,110
Provisions for risks and charges 16 811,062 43,380
Net labilities for defined employee benefits 17 2,992,746 2,591,486
Deferred tax liabilities 18 3,238,087 134,814
Non-current liabilities 38,706,634 30,124,794
Current due to banks and other lenders 14 9,465,799 8,756,030
Current financial liabilities for rights of use 15 1,017,276 627,936
Otllqer f:urrent financial liabilities and financial 10 243,380 83,673
derivatives
Current payables for business combinations 20 - 1,133,517
Trade payables 21 15,796,168 12,685,358
Contractual liabilities 22 917,590 464,613
Other current liabilities 23 3,797,537 3,410,915
Income tax payables 10 296,204 296,995
Current liabilities 31,533,954 27,464,038
. Total linbilities T 0240588 . 57,388,832
Shareholders’ equity and Liabilities = =~ 0 o7 15 95,827,363

The notes are found in paragraph 8 “Breakdown of key items in the consolidated equity and financial

position™.
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Labomar S.p.a.

Consolidated Income Statement

(Euro)} Notes 2021 2020
‘Revenues from contracts with clients - 24 A4y 61,089,449

Other income : 30 1,088,013 431,576
Purchase costs of raw, ancillary and con,
materials and goods for resale
Changes in inventory 1,017,809 1,411,599
Service costs 26 (11,900,586) (9,968,423)
Personnel costs _ 27 (14,266,516) (13,456,040)
Depreciation and writedowns of assets 28 (7,412,858) (4,048,764)
Provisions 29 (312,500) -
Other charges 30 (287,389) (167,311)

23 (30,947,242) (27,986,499)

Opevatingincome o o 3RS 7275386

Financial income 31 744,607 443,896
Financial charges 32 {521,351) (684,198)
Net gains (losses) on exchange 33 458,359 (644,106)
Value adjustments on financial assets 34 : 5,919,193 497,942

Pre-tax result . 8,991,586 6,889,120

Taxes 35 (726,778) (797,115)

Group net profit ' 8,360,335 6,003,883
Minority interest net profit (95,526) (1,878)

Profit per share diluted ordinaryshares 130 o U 045 0 040

The notes are found in paragraph 9 “Breakdown of key items in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income”.
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Labomar S.p.a.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

(Euro) 2021 2020

CNetprofitfortheyear 0 o ool o o 8264800 6,092,005

Other components of the statement of comprehensive income to be subsequently
reclassified to profit (loss) for the year after taxes:

Change in the Cash Flow Hedge reserve 111,480 (87,928)
Taxes (26,753) 21,103
Exchange differences from translation of financial statements in non-Euro currencies 1,057,554 (801,614)

Total other components of the statement of comprehensive income to be

142,27 868,439
subsequently reclassified to profit (loss) for the year afier taxes 1,142,279 (868,439

Other components of the statement of comprehensive income that will not be
subsequently reclassified to profit (loss) for the year after taxes:
Actuarial gains (losses) 35,256 (264,063)
Taxes (8,461) 63,375
Total other components of the statement of comprehensive income that will not
be subsequently reclassified to profit (loss) for the year after taxes

26,794  (200,688)

Total other components of the statement of comprehensive income after taxes: 1,169,073 (1,0069,127)

Tofal compreh 8
Attributable to the Group 9,529,408 5,024,756
Attributable to minority interests ) (95,526) (1,878)
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Consohdated Statement of Cash Flow

Labomar S.p.a.

2021 - a 2020 .
NET PROFIT FOR TI—IE YEAR 8,264,808 6,092,005
Adjustments for non-monetary elements: 2,634,897 5,266,615
Amortisation, depreciation and impairment of tangible and intangible 7412,858 4,048,764
assets and real estate
Provisions 1,067,865 489,700
Income taxes 726,778 797,115
Net interest income and expense (223,256) 240,303
Other adjustments for non-monetary elements (6,349,349) {309,267)
Changeé in operating assets and liabilities: {233,624) (1,693,503)
Changes in inventory (1,837,348) (1,624,322}
Changes in trade receivables (2,136,208) 1,207,09¢
Changes in trade payables 1,903,492 154,524
(Use of provisions) (279,971) 50,797
Other changes in operating assets and liabilities 2,116,410 (1,481,601)
Other amounts collected and paid: (1,941,349) (1,251,503)
Interest received (paid) (180,001) (134,598)
(Income taxes paid) (1,761,348) (1,116,905)
Other amounts collected (paid) - -
._NET CASH FLOWS GENERATED (ABSORBED) BY ) '_ [ 8,724,732 {I- : 8 3, 615
Investments:
Investments in tangible assets (2,751,344) (6,254,187)
Divestments of tangible assets 154,103 28,060
Investments in intangible assets (563,493) (450,121)
Other cash flows from intangible assets - 32,680
Business acquisition (16,102,893) 622,466
Investment in financial assets (26,400) -
Divestments of financial assets 134,918 289,756
NET CASH FLOWS GENERATED (ABSORBED) BY . a 9’155’109) ' S e
_ INVESTMENTS R R
Financial management:
Capital increase for pay 49,000 24,800,632
Shareholder transactions - -
Increase {decrease) in bank loans (6,430,376) (1,504,429)
Increase (decrease) in short term amounts due to banks (51,439) 3,759,109
(Increase) decrease in other financial liabilities (999.421) (890,707)
Dividends paid (2,033,245) (1,900,000
‘NET CASH FLOWS GENERATED (ABSORBED) BY ' (9,465, 48 1) . k _-'_:'2.4,2.164,*6.05 ]
FINANCIAL ASSETS: S BTN
INCREASE (BECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (19,895,858) 26,946,873 .
Exchange rate effects on cash and cash equivalents 397,823 {168,300)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of period 33,660,631 <. - 6,882,057
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (19,498,034) 26,778,573
Cash.and cash eguivalents at end of period 14,162,598 33,660,632
i
N 8
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Labomar S.p.a.

ILLUSTRATIVE NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AS AT 31 December 2021

1. Corporate information

Labomar S.p.a. (hereafter, also the “parent company”) is an industrial company that researches,
develops and manufactures food supplements and medical devices at its main and secondary offices,
located in Istrana (prov. Treviso). '

With notice 25436 of 1 October 2020, Borsa Italiana S.p.A. communicated that the ordinary shares
issued by Labomar S.p.A. had been admitted for trading on the AIM Italia market, a multilateral
trading facility organised and managed by Borsa Ttaliana S.p.A., effective as of 1 October 2020. On
5 October 2020, trading of ordinary shares officially began.

On 27 November 2018, the Labomar S.p.A. Board of Directors resolved to approve the adoption of
the IFRS international accounting standards for the preparation of'its corporate financial statements,
The consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2021 for Labomar S.p.A. were approved
by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2022.

Labomar S.p.A. has been required to prepare consolidated financial statements since the year ending
31 December 2019, as it holds a controlling equity investment in other companies. Labomar S.p.A.
is in turn subject to consolidation by LBM Holding S.r.1.

The Group is represented by the parent company Labomar S.p.a. and its subsidiaries Entreprises
Importfab Inc. (a Canadian company), Labomar Next S.r.l., Lab C S.r.1., Welcare Research Srl and
Welcare Industries spa, Welcare Medikal we Saglik Urunleri Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S., with registered
office in Istanbul (a Turkish company in liquidation fully controlled by Welcare Industries spa),
Labiotre S.r.]l. and Labovar S.r.1.

The following diagram presents the structure of the Group to which Labomar S.p.A. belongs at the
time of publication of these consolidated financial statements.

/’:\
q
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Labomar S.p.a.

LBM
HOLDING
S.R.L.

LABOMAR
S.PA.
67.34%

| | I | | | |

ENTERPRISE LABOMAR WELCARE LABOVAR LABIOTRE PRINTING | [ PROJECT )
IMPORTFAB NEXT S.RL. RESEARCH SRL. SRL. PACKSRL || ZEROSRL.
T 51% 70% 51% 100% 20% 601% |
0,
|
R RL
EABCERL | [ EICARE ZERO SR
100% . 73.63%
MEDIKAL (IN
LIQUIDATION)

Entreprises Importfab Inc.: this is a Canadian company established in October 2019, invested in
by both Labomar S.p.A. and SIMEST-SACE, which as of 1 November 2019 acquired the operating
assets of Entreprises Importfab Inc., a Canadian company based in Montreal, specialised since 1990
in the production and packaging of liquid and semi-liquid medicines, as well as medical devices for
the pharmaceutical, cosmetic and nutraceutical industries.

Labomar Next Srl (ex Herbae Srl): established near the end of 2019 in partnership with Zero Srl
and currently in the start-up phase, it will develop projects involving the cultivation of medicinal
plants and similar using vertical farming techniques, developed by Zero Srl, with counterparties
interested in developing new products (food supplements, medical devices and similar) that use
active ingredients derived from the plants cultivated in this way.

Lab C Srl: established in April 2021 and 100% controlled by Labomar Next. Lab C develops,
produces and sells innovative products and services linked to vertical farming techniques.
Labiotre Srl: founded in 2011 in partnership with Biodue S.p.a., it extracts active ingredients from
plants using proprietary technology and know-how, exclusively for the end customer. Labiotre Srl
supplies Labomar with plant-based raw materials and extracts to be used in the production cycle.
Printing Pack Srl: established in July 2013 through the merger of various companies with twenty
years of experience in the graphic, paper and printing sector and located in Sambuca Val di Pesa
(prov. Florence) in the industrial area of Tavarnelle. Labomar acquired a 20% stake at the time of
establishment, to have a solid and secure partner for paper supplies to be used for the external
packaging of its products, offering high quality standards, professionalism and low supply time.

11
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Labomar S.p.a.

Preoject Zero Srl: a holding company which holds the controlling interest in Zero Srl (78.75%), a
company which develops aeroponic vertical farming technology, ideal for using artificial
intelligence to develop optimised cultivation of high cost/value plants or those which are difficult
to produce due to a lack of natural and environmental conditions.

Welcare Research and Welcare Industries: in July 2021 Labomar S.p.A. acquired a majority
stake in the Welcare Group, as better described in paragraph 7. Business combinations”.

Welcare is based in Orvieto and has been active since 2001 in the development, production and
sales of medical devices to prevent and treat infections and to manage skin injuries of various
etiology. In Italy, Welcare distributes if products through hospitals and the main wholesale
pharmacy suppliers. In Europe and the rest of the world, this occurs through a network of
distributors.

The Welcare Group consists of the parent conipany Welcare Research Srl which carries out
scientific research and innovation relative to dietary, cosmetic and dermocosmetic products, as well
as pharmaceuticals and similar, and its subsidiary Welcare Industries spa, in which it holds 100%
of the equity, which also is focussed on research and innovation in the areas of pharmaceuticals,
parapharmaceuticals, cosmetics, medical devices and similar.

The Welfare Group offers a particular high level of quality standards and some proprietary patented
technological solutions, which are in perfect synergy with the Labomar business model,

Labovar Srl: established in November 2021 in partnership with Adiacent Srl, a subsidiary of Var
Group Spa (a company in the Sesa Group, listed on the STAR segment of the Borsa Italiana MTA
market, with consolidated turnover of €2.04 billion at 30 April 2021). Labovar will offer
nutraceutical products on the Chinese market through e-commerce platforms. Labovar will be a
sales agent in the Far East for selected Labomar products, with the obligation to purchase these
products from Labomar and sell them exclusively within the aforementioned market, through the
online sales platform TMALL.

The partnership represents an opportunity to engage with the Chinese market, one of the largest in
the world, with products of excellence and a business mode! focused on digital sales platforms, such
as Tmall (marketplace leader in China for online business-to-consumer sales, owned by the Alibaba
Group) and Wechat (Tencent Group), through mini-programs, tailor-made proprietary social e-
commerce solutions developed by Adiacent China for leading international customers.

1.2 Scope of consolidation

The following table shows the scope of consolidation at 31 December 2021 compared with 31
December 2020:
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2021 2020
‘NAME - A el controlled| Notes] - e éontrolled ) Notes:
oy Al ostothe s o Sotothe e e
e | ' Group ﬁﬁg_kef i Group 1 staif:l_::-_.‘_, KR
Parent company
Labomar S.p.a. 100% 100%
Subsidiaries consolidated on a line by line
basis
Entreprises IMPORTFAB Inc. 100% 66.28% 100% 66.28%
Labomar next S.r.l. (ex Herbae S.r.1) 51.00% 51.00% 51.00% 51.00%
Lab C Sl 51.00% 0.00%%
Labiotre S.r.L. 100% 100%
Welcare Research S.r.L. 100% 70%
Welcare Industries S.p.a. 100% 0%
Welcare Medikal a.s. 100% 0%
Labovar S.r.1, 51.00% 51.00%
Associated companies consolidated with
the equity method
Labiotre S.r.1, 31.20% | 4
Printing Pack S.r.L 20.00%| 4 ' 20,00%| 4
Project Zero S.r.1. 6.01%| 4 5.56%( 4

Recall that during the year, a 100% stake was acquired in Labiotre and control of the Welcare Group
through the initial acquisition of the direct controlling stake of Welcare Research S.r.L. (63%; 70%
at 31 December 2021). The minority interest is shown for accounting purposes as a financial
liability, as better outlined in note 15. For this reason, the portion pertaining to the Group is 100%.

The consolidated financial statements were constructed as follows:

- the equity figures reflect the consolidation of the assets and liabilities of Labomar S.p.A. and the
subsidiaries included in the scope of consolidation;

- the economic figures reflect the consolidation of the costs and revenues of Labomar S.p.A. and the
subsidiaries included in the scope of consolidation;

- the reference date for the consolidated financial statements is 31 December 2021, the reporting
date for all companies in the Group; '

- aggregation of equity and economic items for subsidiaries included in the scope of consolidation
was done on a line by line basis;

- equity investments in associated companies were measured and recognised using the equity
method;

- equity and economic relations between companies included in the scope of consolidation were
entirely eliminated. Profits and losses arising from transactions between consolidated companies
which cannot be considered as having been realised through transactions with third parties were
eliminated;
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- the annual financial statements of the subsidiaries, prepared in accordance with local laws and
accounting standards, were adjusted to the dictates of the international accounting standards
(IAS/IFRS) on which the parent company’s separate financial statements are based,

- currency translation was done for financial statements expressed in currencies other than the Euro,
specifically for the Entreprises Importfab Inc. and Welcare Medikal a.s. financial statements, with
recognition in the relative Translation Reserve. Below are the exchange rates used in the translation
process:

Ol e Average ol e GAverage o
Cutvengy. ~ . 0 | Fxchangerate | exchangerate | Exchangerate | exchange rate
T ' - at:31.12.2021 | - financia | at31 ) | financial year.
Canadian dollar - CAD ' 1.4393 1.5633 1.5300
Turkish lira — TRY 15.2335 10.5124 - -

2. Directors’ comments on going concern requirements

While seriously taking into consideration the state of the economy at the time these financial
statements were prepared, the directors hold that based on the economic performance achieved up
to the present and the solid equity and financial situation, Labomar S.p.A. has the ability to continue
its operations in the foreseeable future and, therefore, the financial statements were prepared on a
going concern basis.

3. Financial statement preparation criteria

3.1 Expression of compliance with the IFRS

The consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2021 were prepared in accordance with
the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), adopted by the European Union and in effect as of the reporting date. The
Notes to the financial statements include the additional information required by the Italian Civil
Code. IFRS also means the International Accounting Standards (TIAS) still in effect, as well as all
the interpretation documents issued by the IFRS Interpretation Committee, previously known as the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) and, prior to that, the
Standing Interpretations Committee (“SIC”).

3.2 Content and structure of the consolidated financial statements

The parent company’s consolidated financial statements are structured as follows:

T,
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e consolidated equity and financial position schedule broken down by current assets and
liabilities and non-current assets and liabilities, based on whether they will be collected or
paid in the context of normal business operating cycles during the year after the end of the
financial year;

e consolidated income statement which presents costs and revenues using a classification
based on the nature of the same, held to be more representative for the sectors in which the
Group operates;

o consolidated statement of comprehensive income schedule separate from the income
statement which highlights items recognised directly in shareholders’ equity when the IFRS
calls for this;

e consolidated statement of cash flow prepared using the indirect method which represents
operation, investment and financial cash flows;

o schedule of changes in consolidated shareholders’ equity and the overall profit (loss) for
the year;

o illustrative notes containing the information required under current law and the
international accounting standards.

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in Euros, the functional currency adopted by
the parent company, in compliance with IAS 1.

The parent company set 1 January 2017 as the first time adoption date for the IFRS and determined
the effects of this transition from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017, preparing the reconciliation
called for under IFRS 1 (First Time Adoption of the International Financial Reporting Standards),
as illustrated in paragraph 13 of the financial statements as 31 December 2018, to which the reader
is referred. '

The consolidated financial statements are subject to legal review, pursuant to article 14 of Italian
Legislative Decree 39 of 27 January 2010, by the independent auditing firm Ernst & Young S.p.A.

3.3 Consolidation principles

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Labomar S.p.A. and its
subsidiaries Entreprises Importfab Inc. (a Canadian company), Labomar Next S.r.l., Lab C S.r.l,
Welcare Research Srl and Welcare Industries spa, Welcare Medikal we Saglik Urunleri Sanayi ve
Ticaret A.S., with registered office in Istanbul (a Turkish company in liquidation fully controlled
by Welcare Industries spa), Labiotre S.r.l. and Labovar S.r.1. as at 31 December 2021.

The Group’s equity investments in associated companies are measured using the equity method.
Control exists when the Group is exposed to or has the right to variable returns, deriving from its
relationship with the investee entity and, at the same time, has the ability to impact these returns by
exercising its power over the entity.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee company if, and only if, the Group has:

« power over the investee (or holds valid rights granting it the current ability to direct significant
activities of the investee);
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« exposure or rights to variable returns deriving from its relationship with the investee;

« the ability to exercise its power over the investee to impact the amount of its returns.

Generally, there is an assumption that a majority of voting rights implies control. Supporting this
assumption and when the Group holds less than a majority of voting rights (or similar), the Group
considers all the relevant facts and circumstances to establish whether it controls an investee,
including;

* contractual agreements with other entities holding voting rights;

» rights deriving from contractual agreements;

+ Group voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group reviews whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate changes
have occurred in one or more of the three elements used to define control. Consolidation of a
subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control and ceases when the Group loses control. The
assets, liabilities, revenues and costs of the subsidiary acquired or dismissed during the year arc
included in the consolidated financial statements as of the date on which the Group acquired control
or until the date on which the Group ceased to exercise control over the company.

Profit (loss) for the year and each of the other components of the statement of comprehensive income
are assigned to the shareholders of the parent company and minority interests, even if this implies
that minority interests have a negative balance. When necessary, appropriate adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiarics, to guarantee compliance with the Group’s accounting
policies. All intragroup assets and liabilities, shareholders’ equity, revenues, costs and cash flows
relative to operations between entities within the group are fully eliminated at the time of
consolidation.

Changes in the equity investment stake held in a subsidiary which do not involve a loss of control
are recognised in shareholders’ equity.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it must eliminate the relative assets (including
goodwill), liabilities, minority interests and other shareholders’ equity components, while any profit
or loss is recognised in the income statement. If applicable, the remaining stake is recognised at fair
value.

4. Accounting standards and interpretations

4.1 Accounting standards and interpretations applicable as of 1 January 2021 or later
As of 1 January 2021, the following amendments apply:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16 :
s Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions after 30 June 2021

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16

i
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The amendments include temporary loosening of requirements with reference to effects of financial
statements at the time the interest rate offered on the interbank market (IBOR) is replaced by an
alternative rate substantially free of risk (Risk Free Rate- RFR):

The amendments include the following practical expedients;

» A practical expedient allowing contractual changes or changes in cash ﬂows directly
required by the reform to be considered and treated as changes in a variable interest rate,
equivalent to a change in a market interest rate;

« Forthat required under the IBOR reform, changes to be made to documents used to designate
hedging relationships can be done so with having to discontinue the hedging relationship;

e Temporary relief is granted to entities with reference to complying with separate
identification requirements when an RFR is designated as a hedge for a risk component.

These amendments had no impact on the Group’s financial statements.
Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions after 30 June 2021

On 28 May 2020, the TASB published an amendment to IFRS 16. The amendment allows a lessor
to not apply the IFRS 16 requirements on the accounting effects of contractual changes made to
reduce rent, granted by lessors as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. The amendment
introduces a practical expedient based on which a lessor may decide to not evaluate whether the
decreases in rent represent contractual changes. A lessor who makes use of this expedient recognises
these reductions as if there had not been contractual changes falling under the scope of IFRS 16.
The amendments were to apply through 30 June 2021, but since the impact of the Covid-19
pandemic continues, on 31 March 2021 the TASB extended the period of application for this
practical expedient through 30 June 2022,

These amendments apply to financial years beginning on 1 April 2021 or later.

These amendments had no effect on the Group.

4.2, Accounting standards issued but not yet in effect

Below are standards and interpretations which as of the reporting date of these financial statements
had been issued but were not yet in effect. The Group intends to adopt these standards and
interpretations, if applicable, when they take effect.

Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
In January 2020, the IASB published amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of TAS 1, to specify the
requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify:

e What is meant by the right to defer settlement

e That the right to defer settlement must exist at the end of the financial year

e The classification is not affected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to

defer settlement
e Only if an implicit derivative of a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument does the
" maturity of the liability not affect its classification
22
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These amendments will take effect for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2023, and
must be applied retrospectively. The Group is currently evaluating the impact that these changes
will have on its current situation and whether it will be necessary to renegotiate existing financing
contracts.

Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to IFRS 3

In May 2020, the IASB published amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Reference to the
Conceptual Framework. These amendments are intended to replace the references to the Framework
for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements published in 1989 with reference to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting published in March 2018, with any significant
change in the requirements of the standard.

The Board also added an exception to the IFRS 3 measurement principles, to avoid the risk of
potential “day after” gains or losses deriving from liabilities and potential Habilities that would fall
under the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 Levies, if contracted separately.

At the same time, the Board decided to clarify that existing guidance in IFRS 3 for potential assets
will not be affected by the update in references to the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements,

These amendments will take effect for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and are
not retroactive,

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use —~ Amendments to TAS 16

In May 2020, the TASB published Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use,
which prohibits entities from deducting from the cost of a property, plant or equipment element any
revenue from the sale of products sold during the period during which the asset is brought to the
location or during which it obtains the conditions necessary for it to be able to operate in the way it
was designed by management. Instead, an entity should recognise revenues deriving from the sale
of these products and the costs to produce these products in the income statement.

This amendment will apply to financial years beginning on or after | January 2022 and must be
applied retrospectively to property, plant and equipment elements made available for use on the
initial or subsequent day of the period previous to the period in which the entity applies this
amendment for the first time. No material impacts are expected with reference to these amendments.

Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract - Amendments to IAS 37

In May 2020, the IASB published amendments to IAS 37 to specify which costs could be considered
by an entity when determining whether a contract is onerous.

The amendment calls for the application of a “directly related cost approach”. Costs which refer
directly to a contract for the supply of goods or services includes both incremental costs and costs
directly attributable to the contractual activity. General and administrative expenses are not directly
associated with a contract and are excluded unless they can be explicitly charged back to the
counterparty based on the contract.

These amendments will take effect for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2022. The
Group will apply these amendments to contracts for which its obligations have not yet been met as
of the beginning of the financial year in which the amendments are applied for the first time.

=
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IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Fees in the 10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial
liabilities

As part of the 2018-2020 annual improvement process for the IFRS, the IASB published an
amendment to IFRS 9. This amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when determining
whether the conditions of a new or amended financial liability are substantially different with respect
to the conditions of the original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received by
the debtor and lender, including fees paid or received by the debtor or lender on the account of
others. An entity applies this amendment to financial liabilities that have been amended or
exchanged after the date of the first financial year in which the entity applies this amendment for
the first time. '

The amendment is in effect for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Early
application is allowed. The Group will apply this amendment to financial liabilities that are amended
or exchanged after the date of the first financial year in which the entity applies this amendment for
the first time. No material impacts are expected for the Group with reference to this amendment.

Definition of accounting estimate - Amendments to IAS 8

In February 2021, the TASB issued amendments to IAS 8, in which it introduced a definition of
“accounting estimates”. The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting
estimates, changes in accounting standards and correction of errors. Additionally, they clarify how
an entity utilises measurement techniques and input to develop accounting estimates.

These amendments take effect for financial years starting on or after | January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting standards and changes in accounting estimates which occur as of the
beginning of this period or after. Early application is allowed on the condition that this fact is made
known.

These amendments are not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Disclosure of accounting standards - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2
In February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 and ‘IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements, which offer guidelines and examples to assist entities in making materiality
judgements with regards to their disclosure of accounting standards. The amendments are intended
to help entities to provide the most useful disclosure of accounting standards, replacing the
obligation for entities to provide their “significant” accounting standards with the obligation to
provide information on their “material” accounting standards. In addition, guidelines are provided
on how an entity can apply the concept of materiality when making decisions on their disclosure of
accounting standards. | ' |

The amendments to TAS 1 apply as of financial years starting on or after 1 January 2023. Early
application is allowed. Given that the amendments to PS 2 provide non-obligatory instructions on
application of a materiality definition for the disclosure of accounting standards, an effective date
for these amendments is not required.

The Group is currently evaluating the impact of these amendments to determine their significance
for the Group’s disclosure of accounting standards.

, . 3
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5. Discretionary measurements and significant estimates.

In the context of preparing financial statements compliant with the IFRS, company management
must develop measurements, estimates and hypotheses in application of the accounting standards
which influence the amounts of the assets, liabilities, costs and revenues recognised in the financial
statements. The estimates and relative hypotheses are based on previous experience and other factors
deemed reasonable in the case in question and are adopted to estimate the book value of the assets
and liabilities when not easily obtainable from other sources. '

These estimates and hypotheses are reviewed regularly. Any changes deriving from a revision of
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the revision occurs.

The main data subject to estimates are shown below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised in accordance with TAS 12. A discretionary measurement is
required from the Directors to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised.
They must estimate when and how much future fiscal profits are likely to arise, as well as consider
strategic planning of future taxes. The book value of deferred tax assets is provided in Note 18.
Allocations to provisions for risks and charges

Directors make estimates to measure risks and charges. In particular, the Directors made use of
estimates and assumptions the determine the likelihood an actual liability will arise and, in the case
this is deemed probable, to determine the amount provisioned against the risk identified.
Employee benefits

The amount recognised in the financial statements for defined benefit plans is determined with the
use of actuarial measurements, which require the preparation of hypotheses about discount rates,
expected loan return rates, future wage increases, death rates and future pension increases.
Management holds that the rates estimated by actuaries for measurements at the reporting date are
reasonable, but it cannot be excluded that future significant changes in these rates could have
significant effects on the liabilities recognised in the financial statements. Further details are found
in Note 17.

Provision for stock obsolescence

The value of warchouse inventory is adjusted based on risks associated with slow turnover of certain
types of raw materials and consumables.

Bad debt provision

The bad debt provision reflects expected credit loss assumptions relative to the entire life of trade
receivables recognised in the financial statements and not covered by credit insurance. This estimate
makes use of historic information available to the Group and expectations about future economic
conditions,

Impairment of non-financial assets
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At each reporting date, the Group verifies whether there are indications of a lasting loss of value for
all non-financial assets which require an impairment test. If a loss of value is identified, the book
value is aligned to the relative recoverable value. The Group recognises goodwill and other
intangible assets with an undefined useful life, initially recognised with regards to the business
combination with the Canadian company, which must be subjected to an impairment test at least
once per year to identify any lasting loss of value.

6. Classification and measurement criteria for financial statement items

The accounting standards and measurement criteria adopted to prepare the consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2021 are shown below.

Current/non-current classification

The assets and liabilities in the Group’s consolidated financial statements are classified using the
current/non-current criteria. An asset is current when:

it is expected to be realised, or held for sale or consumption, as part of the normal operating
cycle;

- it is mainly held to be traded;

- it is expected it will be realised within twelve months of the reporting date; or

- it consists of cash or cash equivalents unless there are prohibitions on trading or using it to
pay a liability which apply for at least twelve months of the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

it is expected to be paid as part of the normal operating cycle;

- itis mainly held to be traded;

- it must be paid within twelve months of the reporting date; or

- the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting date.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and ligbilities are classified under non-current assets and liabilities.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and held by the Group are recognised in the assets at the
purchase cost if the cost can be reliably determined and it is likely the use of the asset will generate
future economic benefits. The useful life is classified as either undefined or defined.

Intangible assets with an undefined useful life are not subject to amortisation and the undefined
useful life is reviewed each year to determine whether facts and circumstances continue to support
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the attribution of an undefined useful life. In compliance with TAS 36, these assets are also subjected
to an impairment test to identify any lasting losses in value.

Intangible assets with a defined useful life are recognised at the purchase or production cost and are
subsequently recognised net of any cumulative amortisation or impairment, determined vsing the
methods outlined below in the section “Impairment”. Amortisation begins when the intangible asset
is available for use and is calculated at constant rates based on the estimated useful life, reviewed
on an annual basis. When necessary, any changes are applied going forward.

The rates used for amortisation, broken down by category, are provided below:

Intangible assets with defined useful life Amortisation % rate

Patents and Brands 50.00/25.00

Software 33.33

Know how 25.00

Know how Welcare 10

Customer relations Importfab/Welcare _ 6.67

Importfab/Welcare brands 10

Other multi-year costs _ 20.00 - lower of useful life and contract duration

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are recognised utilising the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
determined as the sum of the amount paid, measured at fair value as of the acquisition date and the
amount of the minority interest in the acquired entity. For each business combination, the Group
determines whether to measure the minority interest in the acquired entity at fair value or
proportionally to the portion of the minority interest in the net assets identifiable for the acquired
entity. Acquisition costs are recognised during the year and classified under administrative
expenses. When the Group acquires a business, it classifies or designates the financial assets
acquired and liabilities taken in based on the contractual terms, economic conditions and other
relevant conditions existing as of the acquisition date. This includes a check to determine whether
an incorporated derivative must be separated from the primary contract. If a business combination
occurs in multiple stages, the equity investment previously held is returned to its fair value as of the
acquisition date and any resulting gains or losses are recognised in the income statement.

Any potential fees to be paid are recognised by the acquiring entity at fair value on the acquisition
date. A change in the fair value of a potential fee classified as an asset or liability, as a financial
instrument subject to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, must be recognised in the income statement.

IS
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Goodwill is initially recognised at cost, represented by the surplus between the fee paid and the
amount recognised for minority interests with respect to the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities taken on by the Group. If the fair value of the net assets acquired exceeds the total fee
paid, the Group again verifies whether it hias properly identified all the assets acquired and liabilities
taken on and reviews the procedures used to determine the amounts to be recognised on the
acquisition date. If the fair value of net assets acquired is still higher than the fee paid after this new
assessment, the difference (profit) is recognised in the income statement. After initial recognition,
goodwill is measured at cost net of accumulated impairment. To verify impairment, goodwill
acquired through a business combination is allocated at the acquisition date to each Group CGU
expected to generate benefits thanks to the synergies offered by the business combination, regardless
of whether the other assets or liabilities of the acquired entity are assigned to those units. If goodwill
has been allocated to a CGU and the entity disposes of part of the units of the CGU, the goodwill
associated with the assets disposed of is included in the book value of the asset when determining
the profit or loss associated with the disposal. Goodwill associated with the asset disposed of is
determined based on the values of the assets disposed of and the part kept by the CGU.

Tangible assets

Property, plant and equipment are recognised at the cost or production cost, including any accessory
charges directly attributable and necessary to render the asset operational for the use for which it
was acquired, and shown net of any provisions for depreciation and any accumulated impairment.
When significant portions of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, these
components are accounted for separately.

Financial expense directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of property, plant or
equipment is capitalised as part of the asset, All other financial expense is recognised in the income
statement at the moment is incurred.

Expense incurred for ordinary and/or cyclical maintenance and repair is directly recognised in the
income statement when incurred.

Depreciation is calculated at fixed rates starting from the time the asset becomes available for use
and based on the estimated useful life of the asset, which is reviewed annually. When required,
changes are applied going forward.

The economic/technical rates used are the following:

Property, plant and equipment Depreciation rate %
Buildings - 5.50
General systems 10.00
Specific systems 12.00
Machinery 12.00
Various production and laboratoty equipment 40.00

T
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Company vehicles and commercial vehicles 25.00-20.00
Internal transport vehicles 20.00
Office furniture and equipment 12.00 |
Electronic office machines 20.00
Telephony and radio 20.00
Light construction ' 10.00

The book value of property, plant and equipment is subject to verification of indications of
impairment, that is events or changes indicating that the book value cannot be recovered, based on
the depreciation plan established. If these indications are found and if the book value exceeds the
recoverable value, the asset is written down to reflect its recoverable value.

Impairment is recognised in the income statement. The impairment is reversed in the case the
reasons which led to its original recognition cease to exist.

When an asset is sold or there are no future economic benefits expected from its use, it is eliminated
from the financial statements and any loss or gain (calculated as the difference between the sale and
carrying values) is recognised in the income statement in the year it is eliminated.

Rights of use - leased assets

As indicated in the introduction, with the exception of contracts with a duration of less than twelve
months and contracts involving assets of low unitary value, all financial leasing, rental and leasing
contracts are capitalised under the item “Rights of use” as of the start date of the contract at the
value of the liability, reduced by an incentive received and increased by any initial costs directly
incurred and the estimate of restoration charges. A payable is recognised in the liabilities equal to
the current value of the fixed payments throughout the life of the contract, as well as payments for
any purchase options that the company is reasonably certain will be exercised, and any penalties for
termination of the contract when the duration of the contract takes this into account. The duration
of the contract refers to the non-cancellable period as well as any extension options the company is
reasonably certain will be used and periods covered by the contract termination option when the
company is reasonably certain it will not withdraw. Liabilities are progressively reduced in line with
the capital repayment plan included in the contractually established rent.

Rent is broken down into capital and interest, so as to apply a constant interest rate to the residual
balance of the debt (capital portion). Financial expense is recognised in the income statement. Rights
of use are amortised applying the criteria indicated for property, plant and equipment throughout
the duration of the contract, or on the basis of the rates indicated for property, plant and equipment
in the case the company is reasonably certain purchase options will be exercised, when applicable.
Amortisation and interest are recognised separately.

For leasing or rental contracts which do not include a purchase option and have a duration of less
than twelve months, as well as contracts referring to assets with a low unitary value, payments of

0y

4
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31 December 2021 C//



Labomar 8.p.a.

the relative expenses are recognised as costs in the income statement at constant rates throughout
the duration of the contract.

Equity investments in associated companies and joint ventures
Equity investments in associated companies are recognised using the equity method.

Hence, equity investments in associated companies are initially recognised at the cost of acquisition
and, subsequently, adjusted based on changes in the stake of the net assets of the investee pertaining
to the company. Profit or loss for the investor company refiects the stake it holds in the annual profit
(loss) of the investee and other components of the investee’s statement of comprehensive income
reflect its relative stake in the other components of the investee’s statement of comprehensive
income.

The book value of equity investments in associated companies is subsequently increased or
decreased to identify the relevant stake the company holds in the profit or loss of the associated
company, or other changes in equity, realised after the date of acquisition. Dividends received from
an associated company reduce the book value of the equity investment. Adjustments to the book
value may also be required after changes to the stake the investor company holds in the associated
company, deriving from changes in items in the schedule of other components in the investee’s
statement of comprehensive income. These changes include changes deriving from redetermining
the value of property, plant and equipment and translation differences for items in foreign
currencies. The portion of these changes which pertains to the investor company is recognised
among the other components of the investee’s statement of comprehensive income.

Equity investments in other companies

Equity investments in other companies, or equity investments in companies other than subsidiaries,
associated companies or joint ventures, are measured in compliance with IFRS 9, as these are
financial assets measured at fair value with changes recognised in the income statement. If recent
information needed to determine the fair value is not available, or in cases in which the range of
figures for the possible fair value is large, the cost value is selected as the best approximation of fair
value. -

Impairment

TAS 36 requires that an impairment test be carried out at each annual reporting date on property,
plant and equipment, when there are indications that suggest this problem may exist. When
determining whether there are indications that an asset with a defined useful life may have suffered
impairment, internal and external sources of information are used. Relative to internal sources, these
include verifying whether significant changes have occurred during the year in the use of the asset
and whether the economic performance of the asset is different from that expected. On the other
hand, external sources include verifying whether there have been technological or regulatory
changes able to reduce the value of the asset.

Regardless of whether there are internal or external signs of impairment, intangible assets with an
undefined useful life are subjected to an impairment test at least annually, to verify the existence of
lasting losses in value, as required under IAS 36. In cases verifying the book value of mtangible
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assets with a defined useful life or the verification of the book value of intangible assets with an
undefined useful life, goodwill and equity investments, an estimate of the recoverable value is made.

The impairment is determined by measuring the recoverable value of the CGU '(o.r company
consisting of CGUs) with which the goodwill is linked.

The recoverable value is the greater of the fair value of an asset or CGU net of the cost of sale and
its value in use and is determined per individual asset, except when these assets do not generate cash
flows which are sufficiently independent from those generated by other assets or groups of assets.
In this case, a recoverable value is estimated for the CGU to which the asset belongs. If the book
value of an asset or CGU is greater than its recoverable value, the asset, having suffered impairment,
is consequently written down to adjust it to its recoverable value, When determining the value in
use, estimated future cash flows are discounted to the current value, using a discount rate that reflects
market measurements relative to the time value of money and the specific risks of the asset.

For the purposes of estimating the value in use, future cash flows are obtained from company plans,
which constitute the best estimate which can be made in relation to the economic conditions forecast

for the period of the plan. The long-term growth rate to be used for estimating the terminal value of -

the asset or CGU is generally lower than the average long-term growth rate for the sector, country
or market of reference and, if appropriate, may also be zero or even negative. Future cash flows are
estimated making reference to current conditions: estimates therefore do not consider benefits
deriving from future restructurings in which the Group is not yet involved, nor future investments
to improve or optimise the asset or CGU. Impairment suffered by operating assets are recognised in
the income statement under cost categories consistent with the function of the assets which have
suffered impairment.

Additionally, at every annual reporting date the existence of indications that impairment previously
recognised has ceased to exist (or has decreased). If this is found, the recoverable value is estimated.
The value of an asset previously written down, with the exception of goodwill, can be restored only
if there have been changes in the estimates used to determine the recoverable value of the asset after
the last recognition of impairment. In this case, after the writeback the book value must not exceed
the value that would have been determined (after the writedown or amortisation/depreciation) if no
other impairment had been recognised for the asset in previous years. All writebacks are recognised
as revenue in the income statement, unless the asset is recognised at a revalued amount, in which
case the writeback is treated as an increase in the revaluation. After a writeback has been recognised,
the amortisation/deprecation rate for the asset is adjusted in future periods, to systematically divide
the adjusted book value of the asset, net of any residual values, throughout the remaining useful life.

Financial assets
Financial assets are classified in the following categories:

o financial asscts at amortised cost;
o financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income; |
o financial assets at fair value through profit and loss.

Classification depends on the business model the entity uses to manage the financial assets and the
characteristics of the relative contractual cash flows associated with the financial asset. The Group
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determines classification at initial recognition and verifies the same at each reporting date. Financial
asscts are initially recognised at cost or fair value, equal to the amount paid as an advance or
financing or the fee established against a given service, plus any accessory costs for the acquisition.

Financial agsets at fair value through profit and loss are classified under current assets and measured
at fair value; profits and losses deriving from these measurements are recognised in the income
statement.

Financing and receivables are measured at amortised cost based on the original effective return rate
for the financial asset.

Inventories

Inventories of raw materials, subsidiary materials and consumables and products in progress/semi-
finished products are measured at the lesser of the purchase (or production) cost, including accessory
costs, and the presumable net realisable value based on market trends. The cost of inventories
includes purchase costs and other costs incurred to bring inventories to the location and at current
conditions, excluding financial charges. -

The method used to determine the cost of inventories is represented by FIFO (first in first out),
which assumes that the assets first acquired are those sold first, consequently it is assumed that the
assets in the warehouse at the end of the year have the value of those most recently acquired and/or
produced.

The presumable net realisable value is the normal estimated sales price minus estimated costs for
completion and those required to achieve the sale. Obsolete stock and/or that with slow turnover are
written down in relation to their presumed possibility of use or future realisation. The writedown is
then eliminated in subsequent years if the reasons behind it cease to exist.

Trade receivables and other current assets

Receivables classified under current assets are initially recognised at fair value, meaning the
nominal value, and are subsequently reduced for any impairment. Trade receivables that have
normal commercial deadlines are not discounted given that the discounting of the cash flows would
be irrelevant. They are recognised at cost (nominal value) net of any impairment recognised in a
specific provision. The estimate of sums deemed non-collectable is based on the current value of
expected cash flows. '

Receivables with due dates that exceed one year, non-interest bearing or bearing interest at lower
than market rates, are discounted using market rates. Trade receivables are discounted in the case
of payment terms which are greater than average extension deadlines granted.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised from the financial statements when:

* rights to receive cash flows generated from the asset expire;
e the Group maintains the right to receive cash flows from the asset but has a contractual
obligation to pay them in full and without delay to a third party;

Conﬁolidated Financial Statements as at 31 December 2021



Labomar S.p.a.

* the Group has transferred the right to receive cash flows from the asset and (i) has
substantially transferred all the risks and benefits deriving from ownership of the financial
asset or (ii) has not transferred nor substantially retained all the risks and benefits of the
assets but has transferred control over the same.

In cases in which the Group has transferred the right to receive cash flows from an asset and has not
transferred nor substantially transferred all the risks and benefits and has not lost control over the
same, the asset is recognised in the Group’s financial statements proportional to its residual
involvement with the asset. Residual involvement in the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lesser of the initial book value of the asset and the maximum amount of the
fee the Group could be held to pay.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are recognised net of bad debt provisions, calculated to reflect expected credit loss
estimates for the entire life of receivables recognised in the financial statements and not covered by
credit insurance. This estimate makes use of historic information available to the Group and
expectations about future economic conditions. At each annual reporting date, the Group considers
evidence of impairment which may include indications that a debtor or group of debtors are
suffering financial difficulties, inability to meet their obligations, inability or delays in the payment
of interest or significant payments, likelihood to be subjected to settlement or other financial
restructuring procedures, as well as observable data that indicates a measurable decrease in future
estimated cash flows, including changes in the overall situation or economic conditions that are
associated with financial crises.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include the cash value, or values which hold the requirements of cash on
demand or very short term, without any expenses for collection, with a maturity of three months or
less, readily convertible to a given amount of cash and subject to a non-significant risk of changes
in value. Cash and cash equivalents include current account overdrafts repayable on demand, to the
extent they are an integral part of treasury management.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities other than derivatives are initially recognised in the amount equal to the
payment collected or due, net of transaction costs (fees or charges to obtain financing).

Measurement of financial liabilities is done using the amortised cost criteria, with the effective
interest rate method. A financial liability is eliminated from the financial statements when the
obligation underlying the liability has been extinguished, cancelled or fulfilled. In cases in which an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same provider, under substantially
different conditions, or the conditions of an existing liability are substantially modified, this
exchange or change is treated as accounting derecognition of the original lability with the
recognition of a new liability, with any differences between the book values recognised under the
income statement.

Financial liabilities for rights of use
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Financial liabilities for rights of use corresponding to leasing liabilities and are calculated as the
current value of payments due for the lease and not yet paid as of that date. Based on IFRS 16,
payments due for leasing must be discounted using the implicit interest rate of the lease if this can
be easily determined. If it cannot, the lessor must use their incremental borrowing rate.
On the effective date, payments due for the lease included when measuring the liability encompass
the following payments for rights of use relative to the underlying asset, throughout the duration of
the lease, not paid as of the effective date: '
» fixed payments, net of any lease incentives to be received,;
e variable payments duc for the lease which depend on an index or rate, initially measured
using an index or rate as of the effective date;
« amounts the lessor expects it will need to pay to guarantee the residual value;
» the price to exercise the purchase option, if the lessor is reasonably certain they will exercise
this option; - :
o penalties to be paid to terminate the lease, if the duration of the lease takes into account the
exercising by the lessor of the option to terminate the lease.

Derivative financial instruments

Financial derivatives are used solely for the purpose of hedging to reduce exchange and interest rate
risk consistent with that established in company policies. In compliance with IFRS 9, financial
derivatives can be recognised using the method established for hedge accounting only if, at the
beginning of the hedge relationship, the following conditions are met:

- there is a formal designation as a hedging instrument;
- documentation is available to demonstrate the hedging relationship and high efficacy of the same;
- efficacy can be measured reliably;

- the hedge is highly effective during the various accounting periods for which it is designated. All
derivative instruments are measured at their current value, as established in IFRS 9.

Financial derivatives are initially recognised at fair value.

When hedging derivatives cover fair value measurement risk for the hedged instruments (fair value
hedge), these are recognised at fair value with effects recognised in the income statement; similarly,
the hedged instruments are adjusted to reflect changes in fair value associated with the risk hedged.
When hedging derivatives cover the risk of changes in cash flows from hedged instruments (cash
flow hedge), changes in fair value are recognised as a component of the statement of comprehensive
income.

If derivatives do not meet the conditions for classification as accounting heédge operations, changes
in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.

Provisions for risks and charges

Provisions for risks and charges refer to costs and charges of a determinate nature, certain or
probable, which as of the date the financial statements are prepared are indeterminate with reference
to their amount or the date on which they will arise. Provisioning is done in the presence of a current
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obligation (legal or implicit) which derives from a past event, when an outlay of resources to satisfy
the obligation is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

This obligation is recognised at its current value, determined by discounting future expected cash

flows by a rate that also takes into account the cost of money and the risk of the Hability; for risks
relative to which a liability is held to be only possible, a description is provided in the disclosure
section, but no provisioning is done.

Net liabilities for defined employee benefits

Benefits provided to employees at the time of or after the termination of the employment
‘relationship are broken down based on their economic nature into defined contribution and defined
benefit plans. In defined contribution plans, the company’s legal or implicit obligation is limited to
the amount of contributions to be paid. In defined benefit plans, the company’s obligation consists
of granting and ensuring the benefits agreed upon for employees: consequently, the actuarial and
investment risks are borne by the company,

Through 31 December 2006, the TFR (employee severance indemnity) was classified as a defined
benefit plan and was measured using the unitary projection method for the payable, carried out by
independent actuaries. This calculation consists in estimating the amount of the benefit an employee
will receive on the presumed employment termination date, using demographic hypotheses (e.g.
mortality rates and personnel turnover rates) and financial hypotheses (e.g. discount rate and future
wage increases). The amount determined was then discounted and made proportional based on
seniority accrued with respect to total seniority.

Following the reform introduced with Italian Law 296 of 27 December 2006, the TFR, for the
portion accruing after 1 January 2007, is substantially classifiable as a defined contribution plan. In
particular, the reform granted workers the possibility to choose where to send their accruing TFR:
for companies with more than 50 employees, new TFR amounts can be directed by the worker to
preselected pension structures or to the Treasury Fund maintained by INPS.

Relative to the presentation in the income statement of the various cost components for TFR, it was

decided to use the accounting methods allowed under TAS 19 which require separate recognition in

the income statement of cost components linked to working performance (classified as part of the
cost of labour) and net financial expense (classified in the financial section), with recognition of
actuarial gains and losses deriving from the measurement of the liability each year among the
components of the statement of comprehensive income. The gain or loss deriving from the actuarial
calculation of defined benefit plans (TFR) is entirely recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income.

Contractual liabilities

In compliance with the provisions of IFRS 13, if the customer pays a fee or the entity has a right to
an amount of the fee that is unconditional (i.e., a receivable), prior to transferring the good or service
to the customer, the Group presents the contract as a liability deriving from the contract at the
moment in which the payment is made or (if earlier) the moment in which the payment is due. The
liability deriving from the contract is the Group’s obligation to transfer to the customer goods or
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services for which the Group has received a fee from the customer (or for which the amount of the
fee is due).

In compliance with the above, upon receiving an advance payment from the customer, the Group
recognises as a liability detiving from the contract the amount of the advance payment for the
obligation to transfer or be ready to transfer goods or services in the future. The Group eliminates
for accounting purposes the liability deriving from the contract (recognising the revenues) when it
transfers the goods or services and, therefore, fulfils its obligation.

Trade payables and other liabilities

Trade payables with payment due dates falling within normal commercial terms are initially
recognised at cost (identified as the nominal value). No discounting is done for payables due within
twelve months because the effect is held to be irrelevant.

Other liabilities included among current and non-current liabilities are substantially recognised at
cost, corresponding to the fair value of the liability, net of transaction costs attributable to the issuing
of the liability. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured using the amortised cost
criteria, using the original effective interest rate method.

Derecognition

A financial liability is eliminated when the obligation underlying the liability has been extinguished,
cancelled or honoured. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
provider, under substantially different conditions, or the conditions of an existing liability are
substantially modified, this exchange or ch?.nge is treated as accounting derecognition of the original
liability, accompanied by recognition of a new liability, with any differences between the book
~ values recognised under the income statement.

Recognition of revenues

The Group produces and sells food supplements; revenues from customets are recognised in the
income statement at the time control over the goods or services is transferred to the customer.
Revenues are recognised at a value that reflects the amount the Group expects to have the right to
in exchange for the goods or services transferred. The Group generally operates as the “principal”,
as it has control over the goods or services prior to their transfer to the customer.

The Group’s business model mainty consists in the transfer of goods, with revenues recognised at a
given moment, specifically when the goods are transferred to the customer, generally meaning the
shipment or delivery of the same. Normally, payment terms call for extensions of no more than one
hundred twenty days. The Group makes use of the practical expedient that allows non-separation of
the financing component of fees for contracts in which the expected time interval between the time
the promised good or service is transferred to the customer and the time the customer makes the
relative payment does not exceed one year.

The Group constantly evaluates whether there are other implicit promises in its contracts in addition
to the transfer of goods and, if these promises are distinct, allocates the envisaged fee to the various
contractual promises. When determining the price of an operation, the Group considers the effect of

Pl

' 31
Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31 December 2021 W




Labomar S.p.a.

any variable payments, the existence of significant financial components, of non-monetary
payments or fees to be paid to its customers.

In general, contracts stipulated by the Group with its customers do not call for special obligations
in terms of returns or reimbursements, nor any specific additional guarantees with respect to the
conformity of the product with the agreed upon specifications.

Generally the Group does not incur significant incremental costs to acquire contracts with
customers. The Group makes use of the ability to consider these costs as expenses at the time in
which they are incurred, as they have an amortisation period of less than twelve months.

As of the date this document was prepared the Group had no contract with an original expected
duration of more than twelve months for which residual contractual promises were yet to be satisfied
{or were only partially satisfied).

Finally, note that given the Group’s business model there are no judgements or estimates with a
significant impact on determining the amount and schedule for recognition of revenues.

Financial expense and income

Financial income and expense are recognised on an accrual basis which considers the effective
income/expense or the relative asset/liability. The Group does not capitalise financial expense.

Current taxes

Income taxes include all taxes calculated on the Group’s taxable income. Income taxes are
recognised in the income statement, with the exception of those for items directly charged or
credited to shareholders’ equity, for which the tax effect is recognised directly in shareholders’
equity.

Current taxes for the year are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
tax authorities. Tax rates and regulations used to calculate this amount are those in effect at the
reporting date.

Prepaid and deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated for all temporary differences between the
equity/economic amounts recognised in the financial statements and the corresponding values
recognised for tax purposes.

Recognition of deferred tax assets occurs when recovery is held probable, based on estimated future
availability of future taxable amounts sufficient with regards to those to be recovered. The amount
of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each period and reduced fo the extent it is no longer
deemed probable that sufficient taxable profits will be generated in the future to make use of all or
part of the deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets not recognised are also reviewed at each annual
reporting date and are recognised to the extent it is deemed probable that taxable profits will be
sufficient to allow recovery of the said deferred tax assets.

Both deferred tax assets and liabilities are defined based on the tax rates expected to be applied in
the year in which the assets are realised or liabilities are extinguished, considering the rates in effect
or substantially in effect as of the reporting date.

iV i

Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31 December 2021



Labomar S.p.a.

Deferred taxes relative to elements recognised outside of the income statement are also recognised
outside of the income statement, either in sharcholders’ equity or the statement of comprehensive
income, consistent with the element to which they refer.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if there is a legal right
allowing the offsetting of current tax assets and current tax liabilities.

Translation of items in other currencies: transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recognised in the functional currency, applying the
spot exchange rate on the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are converted to the functional currency at the
exchange rate on the reporting date.

Realised exchange differences or those deriving from translation of monetary items are recognised
in the income statement, with the exception of monetary elements which are part of a hedge for a
net investment in a foreign company.

Non-monetary items measured at historic cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates in effect as of the initial recognition of the transaction.

Contributions

Contributions from public entities are recognised at fair value when there is reasonable certainty all
the conditions established to obtain the same will be respected and that the contributions will be
received.

Contributions received against the development of specific goods or assets, for which the value is
recognised under fixed assets, are recognised as a direct decrease to the fixed assets themselves and
charged to the income statement based on the residual amortisation period for the assets in question,
Operating grants are recognised in full in the income statement at the moment the conditions for
recognition are met.

Profit per share

Profit per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to ordinary parent company
shareholders by the average weighted number of ordinary shares in circulation during the year.

Diluted profit per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to ordinary parent
company shareholders by the average weighted number of ordinary shares in circulation during the
year and those potentially deriving from conversion of financial instruments, including privileged
convertible shares, options, warrants or shares to be issued upon verification of contractually defined
conditions. As of the date this document was prepared, there were no potential ordinary shares as
the parent company has not issued convertible instruments nor are there contractual agreements that
could cause the issuing of new shares. '

St
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7. Business combinations

During 2021, the Group completed two business combinations: the acquisition of a majority stake
in the Welcare Group and the acquisition of all the shares of Labiotre, a company in which Labomar
already held a 31.2% equity investment as at 31 December 2020.

These operations are part of the Group’s growth strategy for external lines and were carried out

using liquidity derived from the listing process which occurred in October 2020.

Acquisition of the Welcare Group

On 29 June 2021 the parent company’s Board of Directors resolved to acquire the Welcare Group.

The Welcare Group is based in Orvieto and has been active since 2001 in the development,
production and sales of medical devices to prevent and treat infections and to manage skin injuries
of various etiology. In Ttaly, the Welcare Group distributes it products through hospitals and the
main wholesale pharmacy suppliers. In Europe and the rest of the world, this occurs through a
network of distributors.

The Welcare Group consists of the parent company Welcare Research S.r.l. which carries out
scientific research and innovation relative to dietary, cosmetic and dermocosmetic products, as well

as pharmaceuticals and similar, and its subsidiary Welcare Industries s.p.a., in which it holds 100%

of the equity, which also is focussed on research and innovation in the areas of pharmaceuticals,
parapharmaceuticals, cosmetics, medical devices and similar.

The Welfare Group offers a particular high level of quality standards and some proprietary patented
technological solutions, which are in perfect synergy with the Labomar business model.

Based on the contract for sale of the units signed on 14 July 2021 by the parent company and the
shareholders of Welcare Research S.r.1., Fulvia Lazzarotto and Think FWD S.r.1., L.abomar acquired
a majority stake in Welcare Research S.r.l.

More specifically, a 63% stake in the share capital was acquired on closing of the transaction by the
shareholder Fulvia Lazzarotto, against payment of € 8,171,000. _

Subsequently, on 27 December 2021, the purchase option for an additional 7% of share capital was
exercised, obtained from the shareholder Think FWD S.r.l. The price paid was € 1,338,500.

At 31 December 2021, the stake held in the share capital of the Welcare Group by the parent
~ company amounts to 70%.

In the context of the acquisition, Labomar granted a put option, which allows the minority interests
to sell the residual stakes equal to 30%. This can be exercised within two windows contractually
established within two months of the approval of the financial statements of the subsidiary Welcare
Research S.r.1. for the years ending 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2025. The calculation of
the put option exercise price provides for the application of a multiple to the value of the average
EBITDA of the last two financial years preceding the date of exercise of the option, net of the value
of the Net Financial Position. The resulting exercise price of the option may not in any event be
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lower than a contractual floor of € 4,015,500 or higher than the floor increased by 70% and 90%

respectively (depending on the option period exercised).

Labomar also holds a call option, which can only be exercised in the second time frame indicated

above, under the same conditions as the put option and relating to the same period.

For accounting purposes, in compliance with [FRS 3 the acquisition date was designated as 30 June
2021, including the events between the designated date and the effective acquisition date, as

determined to be significant.

Below is the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities as of the acquisition date:

30/06/2021
(Ruro) post PPA
Intangible assets 11,107,485
Rights of use 511,023
Tangible assets 2,220,035
Equity investments 7,324
Other non-current financial liabilities and financial derivatives 47,569
Deferred tax assets 291,252
Non-current assets 14,184,688
Inventories 498,769
Trade receivables 624,211
Other current assets 375,117
Other current financial liabilities and financial derivatives 140,000
Cash and cash equivalents 3,636,467
Current assets 5,274,564
Total assets 19,459,252
Non-current due to banks and other lenders (614,552)
Non-current financial liabilities for rights of use (176,651)
Provisions for risks and charges (451,875)
Net liabilities for defined employee benefits (205,373)
Deferred tax liabilities (3,075,426)
Non-current liabilities (4,523,877)
Current due to banks and other lenders (170,169)
Current financial liabilities for rights of use (145,023)
Trade payables (895,136)
Contractual liabilities (379,735)
Other current liabilities (165,142)
Income tax payables (501,617)
Current liabilities (2,256,822)
Total liabilities (6,780,699)
Total net assets acquired 12,678,553
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Net assefs recognised are based on the measurement of their value,

The fair value of trade receivables is € 624 thousand. The gross amount of {rade receivables is € 658
thousand and the entire contractual amount is expected to be collected.

Current financial liabilities include existing loans and financial payables for rights of use.

The Group measured leasing liabilities acquired using the current value of the remaining lease
payments as of the acquisition date. Right of use assets are measured at an amount equal to the
leasing liabilities. ‘

Identification of the fair value of net assets acquired (purchase price allocation) occurred on 28
February 2022 with the assistance of an estimate appraisal prepared by an independent expert.
At the time of the business combination, the following intangible assets with a defined useful life
and not recognised in the balance sheet were identified:
- non-patented technology or know-how, meaning the knowledge and abilities held by the
company acquired, for € 3,913 thousand, before the relative tax effect (€ 1,092 thousand);

- brands owned by the Welcare Group, for a total of € 1,238 thousand, before the relative tax |

effect (€ 345 thousand),
- customer relationships, for a total of € 5,869 thousand, before the relative tax effect (€ 1,637
thousand).

The Directors plan to amortise know how and brands at constant rates over ten years and customer
relationships at constant rates over fifteen years.

To estimate the value attributable to brands and know how, a profit-based criteria was used which
discounts royalties to be paid to a licensor of the brand or specific technology (known as the relief
from royalty method). This method is based on the assumption that the value of the asset is a function
of the figurative savings that the holder can achieve due to its ownership of the same, meaning it
does not need to pay a third party rent to utilise the asset in question. Consistent with the evaluation
approach described, a royalty rate was identified to be used to measure the brands and know how,
determined by taking into account information obtained by company management, as well as
analysing the results of a group of licensing contracts for similar brands and know how. The royalty
rate was applied to prospective revenue identified in the business plan and projections of the same,
considering a suitable maintenance cost.

The amounts obtained were then discounted with a suitable discount rate, also taking into account
the tax benefit theoretically attributable to amortisation of the asset (Tax Amortisation Benefit or
TAB). The time horizon considered for discounting of royalty flows was set at ten years for both
brands and know how. |

The fair estimate of customer relationships was acquired by adopting a profit measurement criterion
based on discounting excess earnings attributable to the specific intangible asset being analysed
{known as the multi-period excess ecarnings method - MEEM). This is method is based on the
assumption that the value of an asset is equal to the current value of incremental income flows
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attributable to the sole asset being evaluated net of the tax effect, or net of remuneration for all other
assets necessary to make use of the intangible asset being evaluated. The other assets considered
(contributory assets) included brands, know how, net working capital, other investments in fixed
assets and the assembled workforce (AWF).

In consideration of the fifteen year useful life established for customer relationships, excess earnings
derived from the business plan were discounted, combined with projections obtained starting from
the last year of the plan and hypothesising a constant growth rate of 5% per year.

Goodwill was determined residually as the difference between the total amount paid for the business
combination and the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired, held to be recoverable by the
Directors based on estimates of expected cash flows coming from the investment.

Goodwill (€ 3,931 thousand) was therefore determined as illustrated below:

F“;[;:mmdxo; 141 July 202“1 {c‘)a;q‘lﬁlulrreugg"zu - i [ 8,171,000
Value of the 7% o_p_n{;n_ ‘exercised on 27 December 2051_-__—_—_“_ o 1, 338 500
' Debt for opt1o£1$ oh the remdual 30% to be exerc1sed in 2025 or 2026 B 1 -____70_99_7_6—0
Total fee e T T o 16,609,260
Fair value of 1dent1ﬁable net assets A T 1_2 6_7—53_554
R-eéld-ual gooc:lﬁ“;ﬁiﬁ SR SR e T e : 3,930, 706

The agreed upon fee consists of the portion already paid to acquire 70% of the company, equal to
€9,509,500 (including the option exercised during the year) and the residual 30% purchase option
which can be exercised in two windows contractually established as the two months following the
approval of the financial statements of the subsidiary Welcare Research S.r.1. for the years ending
on 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2025. More specifically, the scenario considered to be more
reliable is the one in which the sellers exercise the option in the second period. The fair value of the
option as of the date of acquisition, determined based on the Welcare Group’s economic and
financial plan, amounts to € 7,099,760. The amount of the debt for this option at 31 December 2021
is €7,152,956, including an adjustment recorded as a cost for the period of €53,196. The
recognition of the debt for the option representing the residual 30% therefore meant that no
recognition of minority interests resulted from the business combination.

Net cash and cash equivalents used by the Group for the acquisition described are as follows:

(Euro)

Net cash and cash equivalents acquired (3,636,467)
Price already paid as at 31 December 2021 9,509,500
Net cash and cash equivalents utilised 5,873,033

The net outflow of cash and cash equivalents is equal to € 5,873 thousand, equal to the fee paid in
cash (€ 9,509 thousand, paid on 14 July and 27 December), minus € 3,636 thousand in cash and
cash equivalents acquired following the business combination.
/
/
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Net expenses for the acquisition amount to € 291 thousand and are classified under “General and
administrative expense” and “Personnel costs”. Qutgoing cash flows relative to these expenses are
included in cash flows deriving from operations.

Since the acquisition date, Welcare has contributed € 3,603 thousand in revenues and € 197
thousand in net profit. If the business combination had occurred on 1 January 2021, Group revenues
would have increased by € 4,103 thousand.

The price allocation carried out for this business combination is definitive.

Acquisition of a 100% interest in Labiotre

On 30 July 2021, the Board of Directors of the parent company resolved to exercise the option right
on Labiotre stakes held by Difass International (10%) and Previfarma (7.6%) and signed a non-
binding Letter of Intent, subject to due diligence for confirmation, for the acquisition of the 51.2%
of the share capital of Labiotre S.r.1. held by Biodue S.p.a.

On 15 September 2021, Labomar acquired 17.6% of the capital of Labiotre, taking its overall stake
in this company specialised in the production of plant extracts from 31.2% to 48.8%. The fees paid
to exercise the two options were € 478,111 and € 700,000, respectively.

Subsequently, with a deed dated 23 November 2021, the purchase of the residual portions was
completed, thus acquiring a 100% interest in Labiotre.

The price paid to Biodue Spa was € 8.4 million and is not subject to adjustments. The price takes
into account the possible future acquisition of the Labiotre production plants, covering
approximately 2,000 m?, by exercising the purchase option under Labiotre’s rent-to-buy contract,
which can be used until January 2023. Payment was carried out using Labomar SpA’s own
resources, without making use of the banking system.

In accordance with IFRS 3, on the date control was acquired the value of the previously held
associate investment was remeasured at fair value, which had previously been recognised and
measured using the equity method. This accounting treatment resulted in a gain of € 5,547 thousand
recognised in the income statement under “Value adjustments on financial assets”.

Considering that the operation was concluded at the the end of the year, as well as the parent
company’s efforts to recognise the Welcare acquisition, identification of the fair value of the net
assets acquired (purchase price allocation) is still in progress as of the date this document was
published. Below are the provisional values assigned to the identifiable assets and liabilities as of
the acquisition date:
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' (Euro) ] vzl
Intanglble assets ) - o 44"7(7)3
- nghts of use . 1,723, 999
B Tanglble assets _. - i 3,921,1 10
~ Other non-current f"manmal 11ab111t1es and ﬁnanc1al derivatives L 8,863
Deferred tax assets 129 ,653_8
Non current assets - _ o 5 827 769
~ Inventories 2,106,533
" Trade recelvablee. - - - “ 2_6_82_ 393
Other current assets o o 7 (55753727)7
Income tax credits - 94,649
Other current financial habll;tles and financial derivatives (5,405)7
 Cash and cash equivalents . (269,025)
Current assets o o | 4,858,854
Total assets i T ; 10,’686:6”275'
Non-current due to banks and other lenders (1,87§,807)
Non-current financial liabilities for rlghts of use — i (1:?:70,108)
" Net liabilities for defined employee beneﬁts - (106,672j
Nen current liabilities - - ] (3,35(3,585-)"
" Current due to banks and other lenders _ N '“(795,07 l_)
. Current financial 11ab111t1es for nghts of u use - | (254,224)
Trade payables (1,194,619)
Other current habllltles ' B : N (139 424)4
Income tax payables (91 ,423)
Current liabilities a = 7 2, 778 ,001)
Total liabilities (6,128,588)
‘;I‘.otal ;Jrov_m(mm“aEmr value of lélen-tlt_‘-i;i;le“nhetvassets T ; 4,558, 035

The fair value of trade receivables is € 2,683 thousand. The gross amount of trade receivables is €
2,693 thousand and the entire contractual amount is expected to be collected.

Current financial liabilities include existing loans and financial payables for rights of use.

As measurement is still under way as of the time this document was prepared, the Group made use
of the ability to recognise the business combination in a provisional manner, assigning to goodwill
the entire difference between the fee paid and the provisional fair value of net assets acquired, as
broken down below:

Cash fee pald in November 2021 for 51 2% of the Labiotre units 8 ,400, 000
| Cash acquisition of 17.6% of equity in September 2021 - 1,193,864
a 'Aceountmg ciérecogmtmn of the associate mvestment_p;_e;]ously heldand 1 ) 8(_)_8() 1

measured usmg the equity method T

Adjustment of the investment ﬁrewously held to its fair value on the acqulsmon

dale 5,547,338
'ﬁ'fetal fee e e JRT _“716 422,003

‘Provisional fair value of 1dent1ﬁab1e net assets - o 4 558,035

 Provisional goodwill ; Fak i BERTELTEE ii, 363,968

vy

p
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The fee paid (€ 16.4 million) includes amounts paid in cash during the second half and equal to
€ 9,594 thousand as well as the value of the associate investment previously held and restated at its
fair value on the acquisition date (€ 6,828 thousand). Net cash flows from the operation, equal to
€9,560 thousand, are equal to the payments made (€ 9,594 thousand) net of Labiotre cash and cash
equivalents on the acquisition date (€ 34 thousand).

Net expenses for the acquisition amount to € 193 thousand and are classified under “General and
administrative expense” and “Personnel costs”. Outgoing cash flows relative to these expenses are
included in cash flows deriving from operations.

Since the acquisition date, Labiotre has contributed € 396 thousand in revenues (net of sales to the
parent company) and net profit of € 55 thousand. If the business combination had occurred on 1
January 2021, net Group revenues would have increased by € 4,703 thousand.

sy
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8. Breakdown of key items in the consolidated equity and financial position
ASSETS

Note No. 1: Intangible assets

The item Intangible fixed assets show the following changes:

Concessions, S i
x e Intangible assets
Ingasiratipatelity Iicences, in progress and | Other intangible | Total intangible
Goodwill | and mtelle.ctual tradema'rks Lan L I M
property rights and similar
rights payments

Openlng balance

Cost as at 31 December 2020 6,945,564 1,841,724 3648045) 170389 6114668 18,720,390

Depreciation  (Amortisation  and

it i A g (1,532,555) (68.331) : (1,384,906) (2,985,792)

' Book value as at 31/12/2020 6945564 309,170 3,579,714 170,389 4,729,762 15,734,598

\ Chang;s—;iurmg the year : { R : : T
Increases for acqulsl“ons o J”:A “ - 199-_,-22;] T ~8-7i“6-§m S 35(5“3&7“‘ S "_——-" S 5—5_8-—95—6
Increases due to changes in scope 15794673 | 211956 1293895 s 9,802,623 27,103,147 |

' Reclassification (of the book value) | A Y D | I N )

| Decreases for sales and disposals (of

the book value) . sk ) . _____-_____________“ ,,,,,:, . (l,?OO) _- - (a0
_ng{?gs_ej_f'gr write-downs (2,238265)] - I - § o af (2 233 26_5)
Depreciation in thc year & -l (228,329) (133,834) - (777,506) | (1, 139 669)
Increases in Accumulated |
- 107,473 2 - 2 156,2
amo::!i_smation due to changesinscope | | __________(_ 07473 1 ( 8’45_177 i _ (20:352) ______(___’ff)ﬁ
et e e N s N B s
Adjustments of amortisation and. ) | i - i )
depreciation reserve ] | —_—— — |
Total changes 14 037_4_§_S | 75445 1450993 301@?'!' 9,394,594 | 25,312,133
Cost as at 31 December 2021 23,338,620 '2,252,9?1 B ___4_74,036_ — 16,340,270 47,679,5897
Depieolion Sismbnibation S0 (2.305,601) (1,868,377) (242,956) - (2,215.914) (6,632,848)
| depreciation reserve) Sy IR - - - T
' Book value as at}l{lgDOZI 21,033,019 384 594 5 030 728 474 036 14,124,356 - 41,04157,1317”

In addition to the natural decrease from amortisation of intangible assets, the increases are mainly
represented by investments in new patents and software.

It should be noted that in the financial statements as at 31 December 2021, intangible assets deriving
from the acquisition of Welcare and Labiotre, described in more detail in section 7, have been
recognised as Intangible fixed assets. "Business Combinations", to which reference is made.

In particular, with regard to the Welcare acquisition, trademarks and patents were identified for an
amount of Euro 1,238 thousand, with a useful life defined in 10 years and a residual value as of 31
December 2021 of Euro 1,175 thousand; customer relationship for an original amount of Euro 5,869
thousand, with an estimated useful life of 15 years and a residual value at 31 December 2021 of €
5,673 thousand; know-how for an original amount of € 3,913 thousand, with a useful life of 10 years

vy
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and a residual value at 31 December 2021 of € 3,717 thousand. The residual goodwill amounts to €
3,931 thousand.

The Labiotre combination, on the other hand, resulted in the provisional recognition of goodwill of
€ 11,864 thousand; the Group reserves the right to complete the final fair value measurement of the
net assets acquired within twelve months from the date of acquisition.

Finally, with regard to Importfab, the intangible fixed assets identified separately from goodwill are
represented by the value attributed to customer relationships (originally about € 5.4 million, assets
with a defined useful life of 15 years, € 4.7 million as of 31 December 2021), licences (originally
about € 3.3 million, assets with an indefinite useful life, € 3.3 million as of 31 December 2021) and
the trademark (about € 0.6 million, whose useful life was identified as 10 years, with a residual
value of approximately € 0.5 million at 31 December 2021). '

Goodwill and licences recorded when allocating the price paid for the acquisition, being intangible
assets with an indefinite useful life, are tested for impairment at least annually irrespective of the
presence of indications of impairment as required by IAS 36.

With reference to Imporfab, it is recalled that the acquisition dates back to late 2019, shortly before
the outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic. Although maintaining positive margins, in 2021 Importfab
Inc. achieved lower results than those forecast in the economic-financial plans on which the
acquisition was based. Therefore, for the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, the
impairment test was carried out, with reference to the Canadian Cash Generating Unit ("CGU") at
31 December 2021, on the basis of updated projections for the period 2022-2024, approved by the
Board of Directors meeting of the subsidiary Importfab Inc. held on 14 March 2022, assuming a
terminal value including a long-term sustainable growth rate of 2%. The projections take into
account the current macroeconomic scenario and assume a compound average annual growth rate
("CAGR") of revenues in the period 2021-2024 of approximately 10%. The recoverable amount
was therefore determined on the basis of the value in use, applying a discount rate ("WACC") of
11.69% (it was 9.97% at 31 December 2020). The test showed an impairment loss of approximately
Buro 2.2 million for the Canadian CGU, which was recognised as a goodwill write-down. An
increase of 0.5% in the discount rate would increase the impairment loss by € 0.8 million; a reduction
of the long-term sustainable growth rate by 0.5% would increase the impairment loss by € 0.7
million.

As regards the Welcare CGU, the impairment test was performed on the basis of the most recent
available 2022-2025 plan, assuming a terminal value including a long-term sustainable growth rate
of 1%. The plan assumes average annual revenue growth for 2021-2025 of 15%. The recoverable
amount, determined as value in use, is calculated considering a WACC of 8.78%. The test did not
reveal any impairment losses; the discount rate that would equal the recoverable amount to the
carrying amount is 11.85%,

Finally, the impairment test of the Labiotre CGU considers the 2022-2025 business plan, assuming
a terminal value including a long-term sustainable growth rate of 1%. The plan assumes average
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annual revenue growth for 2021-2025 of 12%. The recoverable amount, determined as value in use,
is calculated considering a WACC of 8.78%. The test did not reveal any impairment losses; the
discount rate that would equal the recoverable amount to the carrying amount is 9.17%. Given the
low headroom, the directors reserve the right to monitor the performance of the CGU during 2022.

Note No. 2: Rights of use

| Kb * Right of use: . ~ Rightof | Rightof | Rights of use: Rt
Hhildings Plant§ and i I:ISE: [ use: r.notor electr?mc total
“iow il machinery f equipmient | wvehicles | - machines D
LAE A i AT S A R PG R A A : i TR
Cost as at 31 December 2020 3,687,486 999,558 281,513 394,536 83,437 5,446,529
Depreciation  (Amortisation
it tafon vesery ) (1,360,098) (591431)|  (130739)|  (189,046) (TMIU _ (2,315,723)
| Book value as at 31/12/2020 2,327,388 408,127 150,774 205,490 39,026 3,130,805
Changes dl.ll"Il]g the year SR TR o i 7 AT ‘,‘-_--_ s
' Increases for new contracts 198,632 475849 13,190 109,024 32580 829275
E[“cm‘“s fhes g e ngeR ol 1,905,607 230,000 5 99,415 : 2235022
Rl Ui Bt 1 N IS S SRS SN S S —
f Rcc]assmcatwn for  lease
redemptmn (historical cost) . (710,203 (11,662) i i e 638)
RECIBSS[rCatIOﬁ—h'_fOI' Iease R O O [ |
: redemption (accumulated 16,746 417,529 §,244 - - 442,519
| depreciation) I | . - 0
 Remeasurements e 0000 - E - 6 - (657)
| Disposal (cost) 3 1 s (10596)| (13,777 C(113963)]  (45,081) (259,415)
| | Disposals (amortisation and 9,776 70,596 " 93,490 45,081 218,943
depreciation reserve)
fBEii?ééi;iiBﬁJﬁEE{Je?i?ﬁ““ """"" TG10,127)] (190,699)|  (43.807)|  (124491) (21.908) | (891,031)
"Exchange differences T 34,131 : d a] B3t
| Total changes 1615081 222389  (47.812)] 62817 10,672 1,863,148
e e e e e i LAG3140 )
| Cost as at 31 December 2021 5752041 924521| 269264 488355 70936 | 7,505,117
Depreclatlon (Amornsatmn
' (i cspesiahonbeiensey. (1,309,572)k {2‘9?,005) (f€i302) (220,047) B --(2],238} (2,511,164)
 Book value as at 31/12/2021 3,942,469 102962 268,307 49,698 4,993.954

Assets existing at 31 December 2021 qualified as "rights of use" refer, as indicated in the table, to
capital property, plant and machinery, equipment, cars and electronic office equipment acquired
through lease and financial lease agreements.

Increases due to changes in the scope of consolidation include in particular the right of use of the
subsidiary Labiotre and is related to a rent-to-buy real estate contract (€ 1.7 million), as well as plant
and machinery of Welcare for € 230 thousand.

It should be noted that the lease, rental and hire contracts currently in place do not provide for
variable payments not linked to indices or rates of an appreciable amount. At the reporting date,
there were no contracts with guarantees for the residual value or commitments for contracts not yet
started.

The Group uses real estate rental contracts in order to obtain the availability of the premises where
it carries out its business activities; these contracts provide for options for extension and termination

LY
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in accordance with normal commercial practice. At the consolidated balance sheet date, none of the

assets consisting of the right of use meets the definition of investment property.

The Group does not have any sub-lease agreements in place. There were no sale or leaseback

transactions during the year.

There are costs for the period related to leases, rental and hire contracts with a duration of less than

twelve months or with an insignificant unit value for which the Group has exercised the option not
to capitalise the right of use for €136,022 (see Note 26 Services received).

Note No. 3: Tangible assets

Tangible assets
Land and Plants and jdustrial fmd Other tangible und.er Total tangible
=l ; commercial construction and
buildings machinery 1 fixed assets fixed assets
equipment advance
payments

Opening balance 4

Cost as at 31 December 2020 5,694,152 18,003,520 1,627,359 2,832,039 4,057,788 32,214,858

Dopreciatio (aonisation - qamd (2,176,153) (9,944 448) (1,402,888) (1,570277) : (15,093,767)

depreciation reserve)

Book value as at 31/12/2020 3,517,999 8,059,072 224,471 1,261,762 4,057,788 17,121,090

Changes during the year o i : :

Increases for acquisitions 4,500 933,970 89,792 197,970 1,530,464 2,756,696

Increases due to changes in scope 2,621,251 5,981,510 643222 341,024 - 9,587,006

Reclassification of the book value - 2,148,858 - (4,497) (2,298,858) (154,497)

Decreases due fo

disposals/adjustments ) (1T tae4) ) (33,934)

Decreases for write-downs - (173.767) (173.767)

Reclassification due to redemption of ] )

leased assets (of book value) 292,761 3419 6,940 303,120

Depreciation in the year (297,916) (2,046,865) (158,702) (379,787) - (2,883,270)

Increases in Accumulated

ATt RA et Chitates it Ghors (839,566) (2,000,845) (362,986) (242,465) - (3,445,863)
ﬁExchange differences - 64,136 - 1,298 - 65,434

Adju_styleflts of amortisation and | ) 18,170 12,971 ) 31,141

depreciation reserve

Total changes

1,488,269 5199759 214,745 (82,309) 768,394 6,052,746

Year-end value

Cost as at 31 December 2020 8319903 27429489 2349276 3366971 3289394 44755033

Depragiation - (oN Bty and (3.313636)  (14,170,659) (1,910,060) (2,186,976) - (21,581,330)

depreciation reserve) - T

Book value as at 31/12/2020 5006268 13,258,831 439,216 1,179,995 3,289,394 l 23,173,703

Changes for increases occur in all categories of assets, as a proof of the constant investments made
by the Group. It should be noted that the item "Tangible fixed assets under construction and
advances" includes approximately € 2.4 million related to the construction project of two new
buildings, for production, logistics and new offices.
Decreases due to disposals are decreases in historical cost.
There are no restrictions on the ownership and title of property, plant and machinery pledged as

security for the liability.
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Note No. 4: Equity investments

The following is a list of equity investments, held directly or through trust companies or
intermediaries, in associates and other companies as of 31 December 2021.

S —— — e —————

I I
{

l | | % share | Amount of
{ _ { Share . Net income forg Shareholders' i
Name | Registered offices | ; ; z of | equity
; a capltal the period Equlty t e
i ownership | investment

B S S S L SRR L0 iy AR 10 BN ARSI R L s e

Tavamelle Valdi
lS)I;[fEING PACK Pesa (FI), Via ‘ 10,000 134,831 \ 1,249,433 20.00 298,521

B Borromini, 35

PROJECT ZERO Pordenone (PN) Via
S.R.L.** Pietro Bassani, 1
* With regard to the above data, it should he noted that the last . app1 oved f nancial sfmemen.fs refer 10 31.12.2020 and that the data at 31.12.2021
are updated on the basis of the draft financial statements approved by the administrative bodies of the respective companies.
** With regard to the above data, it should be noted that Project Zero closes its financial year on 30 June. The last approved financial statements
refer to 30.06.2021. The figures as at 31.12.2021 are shown on the basis of the accounts prepared by the company's administrative body.

112,500 (4,595) 1,077,676 6.01 641,776

During 2021, the associated company Printing Pack S.r.l. achieved a turnover of approximately €
3,705,924 with a positive result of € 134,83 1. Sharcholders' equity amounts to € 1,249,433,

It should be noted that the application of the equity method resulted in the following adjustments in

the 2021 financial year:

- with reference to Labiotre S.r.l., it should be noted that the acquisition of the majority
shareholding following the above-mentioned transaction (see section 7. "Business
combinations") resulted in the change of control from an associate holding to a company included
in the scope of consolidation. The value of the equity investment prior to the acquisition included
an increase in the financial year, equal to € 173,259, as a result of the application of the equity
method and therefore deriving from profits of the investee emerging in the period net of
unrealised margins deriving from intra-group commercial transactions;

- Euro 67,250 with reference to Printing Pack S.r.l. This adjustment is represented by profits
emerging from the company net of unrealised margins from intra-group commercial transactions.
The decrease of € 8 thousand corresponds to the portion of dividends distributed in 2021;

- The shareholding in Project Zero was revalued for Euro 124,648 mainly in relation to the increase
in the value of the assets of the subsidiary Zero S.r.l. following profits emerging in the latter,
therefore reflected in Project Zero, as well as the extraordinary transactions that took place during
the year following the entry of minority investors with the recognition of a share premium.
During the year, the value of the shareholding also decreased by € 13,971 due to the distribution
of the subsidiary's ordinary reserves;

- With regard to Project Zero S.r.1., in which Labomar holds a 6.01% stake, it should be noted that
it is considered an associated company, since Labomar exercises significant influence over it.
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Like the other partners, it has one member on the Board of Directors, but it has greater influence
by virtue of commercial interests combined with the management of Project Zero and its
subsidiary Zero S.r.l. in the development of new technologies for herbaceous applications with
principles that can be used in food supplements and medical devices.

There are no restrictions on the ability of the above companies to transfer funds to the Parent
Company in the form of dividends and repayment of loans or advances that may have been received.
There are no particular commitments/agreements with the above companies other than those arising
from ordinary commercial transactions.

Value as at i Changes in Dk Value as at
| 31.12.2020 scope 31.12.2021
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES | ! T

LABIOTRE S.R.L. 1,107,542 173,259 (1,280,801) .
PRINTING PACK S.R.L. 239,271 67,250 (8,000)| 298,521
PROJECT ZEROS.RL. | 531,009 124,648 (13,971) 641,776
'OTHER EQUITY INVESTMENTS s i O
BANCA CREDITO COOPERATIVO | 1,263 1,263

| UNIV.TREVISO SCARL 2,000 5 . 2,000
R | RIBES-NEXT SCARL & 185 ) DR 185
ASSOFIDI T 224 224
| BANCA CREDIUMBRIA . - 2,100 2,100
| BANCA SVILUPPOTUSCIA | i - 5000/ 5,000
TOTAL S o 1,881,359 343,186, (1,273,477) (21,971) 951,068

Note No. 5: Other non-current financial liabilities and financial derivatives

This item consists mainly of caution money against the signing of lease contracts for real estate and
hire of registered movable property.
Details of non-current financial assets at 31 December 2021 and, for comparative purposes, also the
situation at the close of the 2020 financial year are shown below.

e TR e e e e

; 31 12 2020 Change in scope Change 31 12.2021
" Miscellaneous caution money | 196,530 20239 (6650 210,119
Derivative financialassets | o - . 0
| Other f'nanclal assets . J YT - ™ = }SE
Momar™ [ usesss| 20239 (6:650) 210433

Note No. 6: Inventories
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Details of inventories for comparative purposes at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021 are
shown below.

s o Valemsat o] e e' - 1 Valueasat
Conihum a2 ; 32t
‘:Raw materials, subsidiary materials and 5,869,395 3,629,825 9,499,220
peonsimables, v dEiene il 0 | S
f Products in progress and semi~pr0ducts 1,198,085 (534,917) 663, 169;
.leshed productsandgoods | 2339656 Cemesi| 3252606
' WIP R&D/Laboratory mventones 124 988 5 567 130, 554:
; Advances 14, 096 109 936 124 032
TOTAL 9 546 219 4 123 362 13 669 581

The item "advances" relates to advances paid to suppliers, for purchase orders made at costs not
lower than those used in the valuation of the related inventories.

The item WIP R&D/Laboratory inventories represents costs actually incurred on projects for the
development of new products, new formulations and new technical files, for which at the balance
sheet date the service had not yet been completed and therefore the unconditional right to invoice
the customer had not yet arisen. These services will be completed in the first half of 2022 and will
then be billed.

It should be noted that inventories have been adjusted for risks associated with the slow turnover of
certain types of raw materials and consumables. The depreciation reserve amounts to € 400 thousand
and the portion to be charged to the 2021 financial year amounts to € 150 thousand. The fund has
therefore increased compared to the previous year, also following the increasing trend of
inventories. Due to the typical characteristics of the business run by the Group, in fact, it is necessary
to acquire a portion of the raw materials and almost all of the materials intended for the packaging
of the finished products based on technical/graphic specifications of the individual articles, defined
by the Group's customers. It may happen, therefore, that there are specific items linked to orders
which have subsequently changed and which increase the inventories.

The adjustment provision also includes the adjustment of the value of finished products in stock at
the end of the period to their net realisable value, if lower than cost.

The following table provides a breakdown of the inventory allowance of raw materials and finished
goods:

Y ; Value as at \ s | Vaiue as at %

| Description 311 2. 2 02 0 Utilisations Increases 31.12.2021 i‘
e n Mo T U — S k SASSHERAOS SV IA T e TS A S o S RN B A GERLL ‘_ R S _‘
RM S | ‘ ‘
LRIl CT lestfion ! 250,000 (68,850) 218,850 400,000 |
fund ! | [ : .
ti 3 ' = ?

SL and PF deprecla ion | i ) 215,934 | 215.934
. | - |

7 | fund

am
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615,934

Note No. 7: Trade receivables

The table below shows trade receivables and their breakdown by geographic area, net of the write-
down of receivables allocated during the year.

D

Value as at Change during the | Value as at Amount due within

31.12.2020 year 31.12.2021 the financial year |
Customer isteiab sy geunded 7,362,112 2,363,498 9,725,610 9,725,610
among current assets ITALY
Customer receivables recorded

1,952,792 1,398,152 3,350,944 3,350,944

among current assets EU
Customer receivables recorded 836.411 668.039 1.504 450 1.504 450
among current assets NON-EU N - T T
Bad debt provision o (712443)) 40,425 (672,018) (672,018)
TOTAL 9,438,872 4,470,114 13,908,986 13,908,986

Trade receivables in Italy include receivables subject to collection for € 5,255,659.
The movement of the adjusted fund is shown below:

Bad debt provision

 Balance at 31/12/2020 ’ 712,443
fchange in scope 27 444
| (Utilisations) (178,090)
i Prov151ons allocated during the year 110, 221
Balance at 31/12/2021 672 018

The Group monitors risk concentration with respect to counterparties. During the period considered,
there were no significant changes in terms of credit risk to which the Group is exposed.
Below is information on credit risk exposure on the Group's trade receivables, using an impairment

matrix;
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Overdue band (in days)
L el N e
{ Balance as at
: i 7 ] : 7
Currency: € s Current 0-30 ;1 60 61-90 e 91 31.12.2020
"T‘otal gross recewables * 8,988,903 309,172 163460 10,410 B 826,371 10,151,316
Bad debt prov1310n (61,722) (13,185) (509) - (1_27(_3) ] (635,757) (712,443)
Expected loss rate 0.7% 4.3% 3.1% 12.2% 76.9% 7.0%
Total Trade Receivables . _8 927,181 B ___295,983’ 15951 9,140 190,614 9,438,872
Impact on total balance (%) . 9i E’/o 3_1_%_ o _0_2%; | _9; 11%: - ?,Oty_" B 71790703/07
ey
A
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TR ~ Overdue band (in days)

i i Balance
;Currency: € Current 0-30 ! 31-60 61-90 >91 31 122021
 Total gross receivables * | 12,396,081 T 1436930 4,120 89,111  654,762| 14,581,004
'Baddebtprovision | (48412  (17.733) (109)| (11,019)]  (594,745)|  (672,018)
f”ﬂ;&ected loss rate 04%|  12%| 27%|  124%|  90.8% 4.6%
 Total Trade Receivables 12,347,669 1,419,197 4,010 78,093 60,018 13,908,986
{ Impact on total balance (%) 88.8% 10.2% | 0.0% 0.6% 0.4% | 100.0%

N receivables, invoices to be issued and cr edit notes to be issued

The bad debt provision reflects the Group's analysis of positions at risk and expected loss. The net
value of receivables reflects their estimated recoverable amount.
At 31 December 2021, the Group had 7 customers with balances in excess of € 500,000 each, which
together accounted for 37.9% of all trade receivables (at 31 December 2020, there were 2 customers
with balances in excess of € 500 thousand each and they accounted for 17.5% of receivables at the

same date).

Note No. 8: Other current assets

Details of other current assets at 31 December 2021 and, for comparative purposes, also the situation
at the close of the 2020 financial year are shown below.

R R R B T IR Value as at
Descnipian | 31.12:2020 Cha“ge 31.12.2021
L R oy a———
Advances to employees o ____-_________“.“__“._41,6_ . (101) 315
Advances to service providers | 251,034 (235,034) 16,000
Deposits to suppliers 6900 132,509 139,409

s Fondoimpresa contribution fund 7,850 (7.850) )

{ Training [
flnnovatmn manager voucher o s0000 0 @so0d) -
Elﬁ‘emdltwfr _m fr&ﬁwalde?baﬁl&upféf 1 1129 986 - "'—'_(112 986) =
Due from tax authorli—le_svfo_i'-tmi;x credit a §0i976 B 241,248 - 543524
‘Due from tax authorities on VAT account | 2380,265 (1,467,318) '““"“""'"B'iuz"'é'éa‘s
Otherrecsivables | e nsys| s
36,768 (27, 933) 1 8,835 |
oo
seem| Qs diiem

Note No. 9: Non-disposable cash in trusts

Note the requirements of [AS 7, paragraph 48.

/1Y
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: | Valueasat31.12.2020]  Change | Valueas at 31.12.2021 |
Non dlsposablecashmtrusts ] 858, 167E (858167) I
[TOTAL & g 858167|  (858,167) -

Specifically, these were cash balances that could not be used by the Group as they related to the
portion of the acquisition price of the Canadian business, which was settled in accordance with
contractual provisions by deposit with an escrow agent. The remaining balance of the escrow
account existing at 31 December 2020 was released in favour of the seller in the second half of
2021, net of the expected indemnities in favour of the buyer and further litigation open between the
parties, as defined in the settlement agreement dated 23 July 2021.

Note No. 10: Income tax receivables and income tax payables

Income tax receivables as of 31 December 2021 are detailed below. At the end of the previous year
the balance of this item was zero.

: | Valueasat31.122020|  Change | Value as at 31.12.2021 |
| Due from tax authorities-m‘lﬂw i N i e
4,09 110,893 114,990
IRES account f 0 _7) - (7 )7 - ( )
Due from tax autherltles on |
171) | 370,992
IRES account Patent Box . - ﬂ62{1_1“‘_5}“”77”77”77(%%9’ )7 o
Due from tax authorities on
2 167,587 245
‘ _IRA_P account : ; e (}67 Sji ) - B ’ 7 ( ),
| Due from tax authorltles on
i 33 53,244
§IRAP account Patent Box | __1?_0__77_7__ - Sl ’ o
Other mlscellaneous mcome 14,218 14218
§tax recelvables : - I 7 ,
| TOTAL i sgoi] T TG 323,219

The total amount receivable is mainly attributable to the Parent Company. The receivable is
determined by the balance between the liability for 2021 current income taxes and the receivable
for income taxes of previous years arising from the Parent's option for the preferential taxation of
income (the so-called Patent Box) recognised by submitting during the financial year supplementary
declarations relating to the 2018 tax year. This credit amounts to 370,992 Euros for IRES and 53,244
Euros for IRAP and will be used for offsetting during the following year.

[t should be noted that in the 2015 financial year and in the 2016 and 2017 financial years, the Parent
Company received the energy efficiency incentive pursuant to Law 296/2006 for € 41,537, € 4,044
and € 4,072, respectively. In view of the tax deductibility of this value, it was decided not to
recognise it in the financial statements and only to adjust the accrued IRES for the portion due in
the year.

Income tax payables at 31 December 2021 and the change compared to 2020 are detailed below.
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. Due from tax authormes on' ‘

lRES account

| Due from tax allthOl"ltleS Ol’l- -

x IRAP account

Misceilaneous 1ncome tax
payables ,
TOTAL
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[ Valueasat31122020]  Change | Valueasat31.12.2021
- 73,190 73,190

7 o —_—__ - 24,285 o : _—;4,;;5
. ”296 995_ _ 6;81566) 7 N 1;;,7‘2‘;

- 296.99_5“ TR (7;23 e 296;'&04

The item Miscellaneous income tax payables refer to taxes owed by the Canadian subsidiary

Importfab

Note No. 11: Other current financial liabilities and financial derivatives

This item as of 31 December 2021 shows a balance of € 22,253 (balance of 0 as of 31 December
2020) and consists of the fair value of active derivative financial instruments.

Note No. 12: Cash and cash equivalents

The breakdown of cash and cash equivalents in 2020 and 2021 is shown below:

, Bank and postal deposits

~ Valueasat ] s Valucasat |

31 12 2020 i 31.12.2021
ostal dep i 34379208  (19,343,050) 15,036,158
Current Aaccount overdrafts | (726 5;187“ (169,395) (889 943)
Cash and cash equwaléﬂs 1,972 [ o 14,412 - 1(;,3_84_1
e | 33660,632]  (19,498,033) 14,162,599

TGTAL

Cash and cash equivalents decreased mainly as a result of the acquisitions made during the year,

which are described in chapter “7. Business combinations”

cash and cash equivalents, please refer to the cash flow statement.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Note No. 13: Share Capital and Reserves

. For further information on changes in
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The parent company's share capital as at 31 December 2021 amounted to Euro 1,848,404 divided
into 18,484,043 ordinary shares with no nominal value.

Below is a table showing the change in the number of shares:

P e G ey
|
i

200 = e

Initial number of shares | 14150.710] 18,484,043
? ' New shares issued 4,333,333 0
| Final number of shares 18 484 043 ‘ 18 484 (}43

The table below shows the breakdown and change in reserves from 31 December 2020 to 31
December 2021.

R R U R R R B T

_ 1,848,404 | - 1 348 404
Share premlum reservew“'w A 7773;18365776 | RN e __24:_856 570
Legal e _283"01—5| : wm_uSéé@é 369,681
f‘"’i:;\nl:{eéerve deEeenl el 910 666l.__..._‘_._.,.w._....._.,._.._.__.w,u;.u.m_...,_“.,,, 910,666
|Actuarial Reserve | '7(378’57'3?)6") [0 o demEl  (358,506)
Reserve for hedgmg operatlons for (67‘,391) 84,725 17,334‘
expected f‘ nanclal ﬂows e |
Reserve from valuation of 494,384§ 497,943 992,327
g investments usmg the equnty method |

 Other reserves B e
lare"ﬁt)(Loss) carried over ‘B ___5_ 010_609 B 3,510, 091 8 52(7)":/00
| Translationreserve | (825945 Loa2] 197547
‘ Proﬁt/(Loss) for the period ————— ,093,883 g ,266,453 o 8,36_0—,53“
 Shareholders’ Equity of the Group | 38208895 7496164 45,715,089
%mmxﬁmmuMMWM*'&;WM"mm) e
| interest

Total Net Sharcholders’ Equity | 38238831| 744963 45688170

The increase in the legal reserve, attributable to the Parent Company, is due to reaching 20% of the
share capital.

The FTA (first time adoption) reserve was recorded against the accounting changes required during
the transition to the new international accounting standards adopted by the Parent Company.

The actuarial reserve recognises the changes arising from the discounting of the employee severance
indemnities debt of the Parent Company and the subsidiaries Welcare and Labiotre, in accordance
with IAS 19, net of the related tax effect.

Reserve for hedging operations for expected financial flows recognises changes in the value of
financial instruments (derivatives) used by the Parent Company and the subsidiary Labiotre in
application of IFRS 9, net of the related tax effect.

The reserve arising from the valuation of investments using the equity method is unavailable and
refers precisely to the higher values recorded in the assets of the Parent Company's investments in

associated entities. /7
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The item profit/(loss) carried over increased by the retained earnings of the previous year and

decreased due to its distribution.

The table below provides details of the Minority Interest in Equity as at 31 December 2020 and 31

December 2021.

e L B
‘“Capitalof Thlrd Partles mﬁ : { - 24 500 _
Reserves of Thlrd Partles L l : (2 988)1 7
"Capllktéla;ld;;s_e;ves of T.l'lll‘d Pé;ile; TR 21 512‘
MP}BEE/‘(Loss) for ;ﬁ;};é'r:;ﬁm T o %ﬂ“ ’ (1 878)
Shareholders’ Equity total minority interest | 19,634

- Changemn_‘ I 31 12 2021
49,000 73,500
(1.878)]  (4,866)
o m—('lt“,"é%ﬁ) SR
s - 364) iy
B (46 "52-.'6;4 (26,892)

As required by IAS 33, information is provided on the data used to calculate net income and earnings
per share and diluted earnings per share. Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
or loss for the period by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. There

are no dilutive effects on earnings per share.

The values used in the calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the shareholders of

the parent company are shown below.

7 u-u_, TR KRR R '
i e b ek AT L Aok PR
%Netprofitfortheyear 6.093 883: 8 360335
‘rAverage number of ordmary shares

‘outstanding during the year 15 180 765 18,484,043
{—ﬁ;s&“ and  diluted earﬁlﬁﬂg-smﬁgr - O -
ordinary share " 040 045 |

LIABILITIES

Note No. 14: Due to banks and due to other lenders

This item is detailed as follows:
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Ducito banlesandintist Current | Non-current | Total
lenders | |
s e P
[ e 8,756,030 24,555,382 33,311,412
2020 ; 3 i
e e S
zszyfb o ot ol D celber ; 9,465, 799E 20,903, 029 30,368,827

The table below summarises the changes in these liabilities:

Due to banks aﬁwd otﬁer Ienders | Amount

Payables as at 31 December 2020 | 33 311,412
Takingoutnewloans | 2634920
Change in scope mgu_“—_3:;l_5_3m,¥5‘9“9‘
Acc;;::d mterest R ' 147,292
Repayment cash ﬂows S (9_1§3_1;§)
"SE;?'cha.Ié;; v 4
Payablesasat31 December2021 | 30,368,827

With regard to the loans taken out during 2021, chronologically they were signed with Credit
Agricole (February) and with BNL (November) to support the investments made during the period
and the expansion of working capital following an increase in the company's turnover. In detail, the
loan signed with Credit Agricole is for Euro 540,000 with maturity 11.02.2026 regulated at a fixed
rate (0.450%); the loan with BNL is for Euro 2,000,000.00 and is regulated at a variable rate with
maturity 30.05.2023.

The bank debt existing at 31 December 2021 is almost entirely at variable rate and € 9,334,164
refers to debt falling due within 12 months. For this reason, it is believed that the fair value of this
debt is not significantly different from its carrying amount.

It should be noted that as of 31 December 2021, the following loans contain certain conditions
(covenants), as illustrated below:

e Credit Agricole-Friuladria loan signed on 21 December 2017 by LAB Holding and acquired
by the company following the merger by incorporation in May 2018, for an amount of €
6,000,000, with a term of 60 months and maturity on 30 June 2023, nominal residual of €
1,800,000 at 31 December 2021, with the financial constraint that the ratio of Net Financial
Debt to Ebitda in the consolidated financial statements is less than or equal to 2.5;

e BNL loan signed on 29 January 2018 for an amount of € 2,000,000, with a duration of 60
months and maturity on 31 January 2023, nominal residual of € 500,000 at 31 December
2021, with the financial constraint that the ratio of Net Financial Debt to Ebitda in the
consolidated financial statements is less than or equal to 2.25;

e Loan from Banca Intesa Sanpaolo signed on 11 October 2019 for an amount of € 8,000,000,
with a duration of 66 months and maturity on 31 March 2025, and a residual nominal amount
of € 6,500,000 at 31 December 2021, with the financial constraints that the ratio of net

el
l
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financial position to EBITDA in the consolidated financial statements is less than or equal
to 3.5 and the ratio of net financial position to sharcholders' equity in the consolidated
financial statements is less than or equal to 3.5.

e Unicredit loan signed on 29 September 2019 for an amount of € 5,000,000, for a term of 60
months and with maturity date of 30 September 2024, residual amount of € 2,767,004 as of
31 December 2021, with the financial constraints that the ratio of Net Financial Position to
Ebitda in the consolidated financial statements is less than 2.5.

As of 31 December 2021, the covenants for the aforementioned loans have been met.

Due to banks and other lenders include, in the non-current portion, € 4,075,712 relating to the
"Simest equity loan", which refers to Simest's investment in the Canadian company. Specifically,
on 23 October 2019, an investment contract was signed between Labomar and Simest S.p.A.
('Simest"), a company that looks after the development and promotion of Italian companies abroad.
The agreement provides that the acquisition, through Importfab, of the aforementioned production
branch of Entreprises Importfab Inc. be also financed through the subscription, by Simest of a
minority shareholding in Importfab equal to 33.33% of its share capital. The Parent Company
undertook to pay Simest a remuneration equal to 4.50% per annum of the amount paid by Simest
for the acquisition of the minority interest in the share capital of Importfab. According to the
contractual provisions, Simest's holding of the minority shareholding can only be temporary. The
equity loan therefore provides for put and call options on Simest's interest in Importfab Inc.
exercisable as from 31 October 2023, as well as a commitment to purchase by 31 October 2027, for
the price of EUR 4,075,712 or the Listing Value, if higher, or for the Sale Price to Third Parties, if
higher.

According to the provisions of international accounting standards, the elements that distinguish
Simest's equity investment in the share capital of the subsidiary Importfab Inc. lead to considering
this intervention not as a third-party interest in the consolidated financial statements of the Labomar
Group, but rather as a financial liability.

Note No. 15: Non-current and current financial liabilities for rights of use

“Value as.at 31.12.2020 - Value as.at 31.12:2021

Non-current llabllltles for rlghts of use e
. Right of use: buildings.” T R 1,985,251 3,179,541

“Right of use: Plants and machlnery o 27,461 194,006
. Rights of use: .e_qul_p_ment_and::m'achmer s 104,247 64,735
- “Right of use:: motor vehieles 95,115 135,831
" Rights of use: electronic office machines " 20,549 34,641
Rights of use: total non-current liabilities = -~ 2,232,622 3,608,755

P W A
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Curré}it_liab]i;iles for rlghts of usewm e - -
"ﬁl_g_ht of use; buildln;g_s s e —— 424 987 s — :fS_4 648
ﬁlgilt of use: Plants and machmery e 47,098 hnnﬁfé@mlh’;'i
_. f{;ghts of use: equipment and machinery w - 46,052 40,751
; Right of use: motor vehicles 94,775 120,397

Rights of use: electronic office machines 15,023 12,308

nghts of use: tg_tal Cl]l‘l‘enE‘l”lqul_l'ltleS o 627,936 1,017,276

“Total liabilities for rights of use Thnmat s o S SEISRS T TOT o (6o

Liabilities for rights of use represent payables arising from leases, rental and hire contracts.
The amount of right-of-use debts is detailed by maturity as follows:

Due dates of right-of-use debts Value as at 31.12.2021 Value as at 31.12.2020
Within 1 year 1,017,276 627,936
From 1 to 5 years 2,949,865 1,407,138
More than 5 years - 658,889 825,485
Total 4,626,030 2,860,558

The table below summarises the changes in liabilities arising from cash flows and changes other
than cash:

Right-of-use debts Amount
“i;j{;ﬁems as at 31 December 2020 | 2,860,558
Change in scope B 1 9426“00"6
Taking out n.ew contracts o o 77{7%7279,275
Accrued interest i 73,725
mRepayment cash flows 1 (1 040,943)
-KEarly w1fnl;5;;twals : - E4il_2_sa
“bth‘er changes 7 el (36,994)
Exchangedifferences [ 3559
Payables as at 31 December 2021 e

Note No. 16: Provisions for risks and charges

The change in provisions for risks and charges for the current year is shown below.

Provision for
directors' severance

i R

S R [ T s i e R e e R

Total provisions for

risks and charges

} Provisions for legal E
1 risks g
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' Opening balance of the year as at i
MDecemberzo % 0 B
. Change in scope 351,875 100,000 I 451,875

;u. S— -' e e a2 oo . e ————— e ‘ ——— e ————————— ! R e -—

. Provisions allocated during the 315.807 | | 315,807

Utlllsatmn durmg the year -

-"Closing S year e S g | S
31 December 2021 ; 711062 % 100, 000 Lo 8_11,062

With regard to provisions for legal risks, it should be noted that the administrative body has deemed
it appropriate to set aside the sum of € 312,500 during the 2021 financial year to cover probable
future risks.

Note No. 17: Net liabilities for defined employee benefits

The table below shows the details of the employee severance indemnity at 31 December 2021
compared to the figure at 31 December 2020.
The data refer exclusively to the Parent Company and the Italian subsidiaries with employees.

Employee severance indemnities ! Amount
Openmg balance of the year as at 31 December 2,591,486
Changes in scope Uiioiie I 3127140‘}
7 Servnces recelved £ i S 371,3%2
 Benefits paid. L [ essson
Actuarlal gams (losses) o | gi(_):’4497)
b
| f(:;:img balance of the year as at 31 December- 2,992,746

The valuation of liabilities for defined benefit plans was carried out with the support of expert
actuaries.

The main assumptions made for the purpose of discounting the employee severance indemnities for
the years shown in the table above are summarised below:

Demographic assumptions

o For the demographic assumptions, ISTAT 20 mortality tables reduced to 85.00% by gender were
used. This one-off reduction was introduced in order to take into account the decrease in mortality
in recent years.

o With regard to the disability assumptions, the Social Security tables reduced to 70.00% were
used. This one-off reduction was introduced in order to consider the lowest disability rate in the

relevant sector.
vy
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Economic and financial assumptions

@]

“base" discount rate at 31/12/2021:1.40%;

o average future inflation rate: 1.00% per annum constant;

o salary revaluation

Note No. 18: Prepaid and deferred taxes

Labomar S

p.a.

Details of prepaid taxes and consequent effects are shown. It should be noted that, since the
conditions are met, the total value of prepaid taxes has been shown net of the deferred tax provision.

Item

' Inventory write-down and
| intercom pany prol‘its :

' Write-down of deprecneble assets ]

Write-down of recelvables

| Derivative financial mstruments

Prov1s1ons for mlscellaneous

Dlrectors fee

' Amortlsed cost

'nght of use (reutal fees)

Rights of use (renta! fees)
Imporfab Inc

nghts of use (financnal leases)
Actuarial valuation of empioyee
severance indemnities

Valuatlon of investments. usmg
the equnty method

FV earn-out adjustment : 7-

Fore:gn exchange losses

' Labomar next tax losses
Amortisation and lmpalrment
| lmportfab

|  Other items

: Revaluatlon of Labiotre

‘ shareholdmg

Welcare PPA mtanglbles e
Total prepald/(deferred) taxes

%

24

24

”'24

24

24

26.5 |

24

24

265
24 |

279 |

26.5 |

24

152

i
\
|
4
ol

24 |

31122020 Change
Amount of { Tax Amount of 1-
timing [ e timing | Tax effect
differences | <" | differences |
250,000 60,000 423,726 101,694
B 173760 B D
664,534 150488| (124352) (29, 844)
88,674 21282] (108801)  (26,112)]
5,000 1,200 312,500 75,000
6,004 1441 (6,004)  (1441)]
e B Ge| 0 1e3f O
77813 2,710( 4245
14,130 3,745 7,409 1,963
,](i}?’5’@4*@7’35‘1‘555’) | 477498 0 IG8S|
376,165 90,280 (49 188) (11 806)
(36,640)  (8,794) (45,065) (10 815)
(87312) (16,138)| 287312 76,138
547,749 131460  (547.748)
13818 3316|  (2950)  (708)
- -1 1,811,300 479,994
@) @ G 180
. - (5,547.338)  (66,568)
27,345 | (1,916,076) |

(131460)]

Lisa|

31/12/2021 :
Amount of
timing Tax effect
| differences
673,726 161,694
| 173,769 41,705
‘ §i0 182 | 129 644
((17406)  (4,177)
317,500 76,200
_o@E
0g 8 0
i A_____z_a_z (}58) o 894.
21,539 5,708
(673,347)  (187,864)
326,977 78,474
(81, 705) (19 609)
- ? s 0
10868 2,608
1,811,300 479,994
454001 108,961
(5,547,338)  (66,568)

(9 741 012) (2__717 743)& (9.741,012) (2,717,7143)
~ (1,888,079)

The most significant temporary changes include deferred taxes on lease/rental agreements in place
at the date of first-time adoption of IFRS and measured in accordance with IFRS 16, and prepaid

R
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taxes on higher provisions for presumed impairment losses on receivables in excess of the amount
allowed for tax purposes.

Other items mainly relate to the effect of the amortisation deducted for tax purposes of the capital
gains allocated by the Canadian subsidiary arising on the acquisition of the business in 2019.

The item Welcare PPA intangibles includes deferred taxes on the recognition of intangibles
following the allocation of the Welcare acquisition price. For further details see section *“7. Business
combinations”, The item also includes € 126,427 corresponding to deferred taxes absorbed during
the year following the corresponding depreciation for the year.

Note No. 19: Other current and non-current financial liabilities and financial
derivatives

This item includes the value of the provision for hedging derivative financial instruments, equal to
the fair value indicated by the credit institutions.

Note No. 20: Current and non-current payables for business combinations

The amount of € 7,153 thousand at 31 December 2021 refers to the fair value of options on the
remaining 30% of Welcare. In particular, as part of the acquisition transaction Labomar granted a
put option, which allows the minority shareholders to sell the remaining stake, equal to 30%, which
can be exercised in two contractually foreseen time frames within two months from the approval of
the financial statements of the subsidiary Welcare Research S.r.l. that will close on 31 December
2024 or on 31 December 2025. The calculation of the put option exercise price provides for the
application of a multiple to the value of the average EBITDA of the last two financial years
preceding the date of exercise of the option, net of the value of the Net Financial Position. The
resulting exercise price of the option may not in any event be lower than a contractual floor of €
4,015,500 or higher than the floor increased by 70% and 90% respectively (depending on the option
period excrcised). Labomar also holds a call option, which can only be exercised in the second time
frame indicated above, under the same conditions as the put option and relating to the same period.
The amount of € 1,700,627 recognised in the finaucial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 (€ 1,133,517 classified as current liabilities and € 567,110 as non-current liabilities) related to
the residual debt associated with the acquisition of Importfab in 2019,

The movement occurring during the year is shown below:

Current payables for busmess umt acqunsntmn _ Amount e
‘Payables as at 31 December 2020 S 1,700,627
‘Busmess combmatwns durmg"the year 7,099,760
Exchange: dlfferences T 92,568
Payments e T i (1,255,479)
Fair value adjustment D (484,520)
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| Payables as at 31 December2021 - -~~~ [ © - . 7,152,956

Payments of € 1,255,479 (CAD 1,861,373) refer to the residual debt at the time of the transaction

related to the acquisition of the subsidiary Importfab that took place during the 2019 financial year;

the amount represents the debt that was extinguished through the release of the amounts of the
Escrow account, commented in Note No. 7 Cash in trust not available, as well as the payment of the
residual earn out, paid for € 470 thousand, equal to the amount agreed in the settlement agreement
between the parties on 23 July 2021. The settlement agreement resulted in a reduction of the debt
of € 537 thousand, recorded on the income statement and included in the table in the line "Fair value
adjustment™,

The amount shown in the line "Business combinations during the vear" refers to the fair value at the
date of acquisition of Welcare of the purchase option, just commented and further described in
section "7. Business combinations”.

The fair value adjustment of the liability is included on the income statement among financial
income and charges and is composed of income for € 537 thousand related to the adjustment of the
residual debt in connection with the purchase of Importfab and charges for € 53 thousand related to
the adjustment of the debt for the purchase option of the residual share of Welcare.

Note No. 21: Trade payables

Trade payables are mainly due to domestic suppliers.

All payables fall due within the next financial year, so there are no payables to be discounted. It
should be noted that payables to suppliers are indiscriminately included in the item trade payables
with reference to both suppliers of finished products and raw materials and suppliers of services.

] Valueasat | Changeduring the | Valueasat .| Amount due within
3122020 0 year i 3, ie financial year:
11,371,816 1,857,619 13,229,435 13,229,435

1,073,060 397,893 1,470,953 1,470,953

240,482 855,300 1,095,782 1,095,782

L 12,685,358 - 3,110,811 - 15796,170{ .. 15,796,170

Note No. 22: Contractual liabilities

This item includes liabilities arising from contracts with customers, i.e., the amount the Group has
already received from customers as an advance on supplies. These advances will be recognised as
revenue when control of the goods is transferred to customers during 2021.

(/ 60
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~ Amount as at 31 December 2020 __ - ”726774'6'1'3"
Changes in scope o e - 37”9' 735
' New contractual advances v 526,366
iri 7(7R7evenue i‘eéo;gn mn)___ ____ i 77777 _(466 995)
! Exchange dlfferenees 13,936
| Amount as af at 31 December2021 | 917,590

Note No. 23: Other current liabilities

Details of non-current liabilities at 31 December 2021 and, for comparative purposes, also the
situation at the close of the 2020 financial year are shown below.

Value as at Chine 1 Vvalueasat |
3L 12.2020 31.12.2021
'Payabletoemployees | 448402  193886] 642,288
Payables for performance bonuses | 126204|  (126,204), . ¥
Accrued expenses personnel | 1548393 25,110 1,573,504
Faj}‘ab]es to employees W ' - a4 & - - &
Payables to social security and welfare | 385 a5l *“106(;21 i 491 9"6;"
| institutes |
'Payab’ieé’ tosupplementary funds | 46653 18894 65547
Due to tax authorities/IRPEF w1tl;i—1"0~ldmgs "A"__NMWWWBBS sa4| 46,933 i ?:8_2 477
{)}feEtoFs fee? -’7_ T i 176,460 o (119 624) i 56,836
‘ gil;emr :ccrued expenses and deferred 9,127 70.857 79.984 |
Deferred income quarterly tax credit | 164,663 36038 200,701
Deferred income contributions Veneto 30,117 (7 857) 22,260
Reg.
Pzi}able“fo rud“mdends e S A S
Miscellaneous o 139407 000 142,567 000 281974
TOTA[; ;m B35 _u _;_ __3,410,916 ,,R,A ‘§2:OS6< __________________ j m79'm7ﬁ§§7

9. Breakdown of the main items in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income

The main items of the 2021 income statement, compared with those recognised in 2020, are
commented on below.

It should be noted that the income statement for the previous year, shown for comparative purposes,
is not fully comparable with the 2021 income statement as the 2021 consolidated financial
statements include Welcare's income statement data from 1 July 2021 and Labiotre's income
statement data from 1 November, the accounting dates of the acquisition of control.

////
]
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Note No. 24: Revenues from contracts with clients

The breakdown of revenues by category for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2021 is shown below.

Catégory of Asset R Te020 ' ""‘;’07271'
Salesofgoods | 596739 63366294
w Sales for processmg | 27323 2,690
Varmus serwces and recourses i 1 331 520 2,009,643
i R e L R

The breakdown of revenues by geographic area is shown below.

; ; Geographical aréé AR | ”i(k)—Z(w)“-—w _! T 20&{ R
D T S T
"EunopsaniUnion, . 13,001 839\ 13,759,060
‘Non'*rili’ropeaii Onlen © 0 0" ] 10,296,940 11673813
TOTAL SEe R e R T R 65,412,049

It should be noted that, during the year, no significant revenue was recognised due to performance
obligations fulfilled in previous years, such as price changes.

An analysis of the customers served in 2021 shows a relatively low concentration as the first
customer achieved a share of 5.5% of total consolidated sales, while the top 10 customers accounted
for 33.9% of consolidated sales in the year and the top 25 for 56.8%.

With regard to a possible effect of the seasonality of sales, it should be noted that the Group's
business does not show characteristics of this kind: some of the finished products manufactured are
seasonal products (products for the cold season, products for the summer season, products for the
change of season), which replace each other without generating peaks in a positive or negative sense.
The distribution of sales is influenced in the second half of the year by the presence of the summer
holidays in August. However, the gradual increase in the share of foreign sales over the years has
significantly reduced this effect.

Note No. 25: Purchase costs of raw, ancillary and con. materials and goods for
resale

The costs of raw materials, consumables and goods for resale for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 31 December 2021 are detailed below.

Purchase cost ey 20207 Change s e 202] e 1
Raw materlals ‘l 15,351,086 ; 4 031 880 19 382 965

/“//
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Consumables
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t Packagmg

Other purchases S

Additional charges

'Rewards and glfts from
__sl_xlaplters S

Note No. 26: Service costs

Total | e

Labomar S.p.a.

2,812,972 (2,046,144) 766,828
881 602 (31 725) | 849 877
8981511 914805 9896317
129 734 55. 487 185 221 :
56 514 ‘ 38,570 95,083
(226,919) (2,131) (229,050)
27,986,499 2960743 30 947, 24'2'

Service costs for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021 are detailed below

 Service costs e .. Change R
Bhee. T o e | 2340571 1,082,687 3,423,258
Listngexpemses | omiss oelsy 0
| Rental fees 202 440 ' (66 418) 136,022
fDlrectors oS e : o 777548783@7 385,096 933,934
| Directors "serve};neeipay R e e 29769 (29,769) | 0
Pro&ne{en_a_lysm and certlﬁEatlon EOsts” Cree ___1_289 ,095 | 5431 | 1,294,526
l?jleEirleli:;, methane  gas, waterm i SR : 817 923 B &1, 202 8 _9551_5_ -
Mamtenance and fees 1 005 607 329, 887 | 1 333 494
‘ ProeeSSing at thlrd partles T R 481 996'”'”"7 ' 7(183 361) 298,635
 Transportand storage 851,237 369,355 11,220,592
wCleanmg costs ' 5 - 280,757| 31243 312,000
Miscellaneous insurances 256327 (58247) 198,080 |
' Banking services i 19449 20,718 40,167
'ii}'éﬁnums, royalties and finders’ fees | 15748 62,846 78,594
' Employment agency fees 162,659 (24,262) | 138,397
Expenses for trade fairs, esnlbl_tlons and conferences | 15 297:/‘77 385,994 401,291
| Waste dlsposal charges - 225 144 _(-4_3_46) 220 798
Entertamment expenses and gifts BELRIREg 124, 617 (31 234) - 93 383
'Advertlsmg expenses T ._ 4112_5 . 347 253 | 388,378
 Pay of collaborators and internships | 66,427 45065 111,492
 Other miscellancous expenses 78607 145503 224,110
 Total 9968423 1,932,065[ 11,900, 586i

The figures shown in the table are significant with regard to the evident increase in consultancy
expenses dictated mainly by the costs incurred for the two acquisitions (approximately € 373
thousand relating to the Parent Company) and the increase in commercial consultancy in the Parent

Company.

It should be noted that directors' fees also include reimbursements and various expenses.
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Other costs that increased compared to the 2020 financial year include the increase in expenses for
trade fairs and conferences compared to not much of these events in the previous year due to the
pandemic effect, and maintenance and transport/storage expenses, the incidence of which remains
in line with the increase in turnover. Advertising expenses include euro 344 thousand related to the
marketing activities of the Welcare group carried out in the second half of 2021, which are part of
the project for the expansion of foreign markets and penetration of the Italian market in order to
ensure greater visibility to end users of Welcare devices.

Note No. 27: Personnel costs

The table below breaks down personnel costs in the financial years ending on 31 December 2020
and 31 December 2021.

[Personnelcosts. .~ | 2020 |  (Chamge . e T

| Wages and salaries | 10,317,606 5357890 10,853,395
' Social security costs 2,357,809 170,581 2,528,390
Employee severance indemnities 610,403 (6,807) 603,596
o0 i om Toen| s
Memit ol el T Tisasenol T DBl TR

The general crisis caused by the Covid-19 pandemic led to higher personnel costs during the year.
The increase was due, on the one hand, to a higher rate of employee absenteeism during 2020,
which, especially after the outbreak of the pandemic, required greater use of temporary work. On
the other hand, higher bonus payments were made to employees.

The increase in personnel costs is mainly due to a strengthening of the internal structure in order to
cope with the constant growth of the company and the contribution of the companies that joined the
scope of consolidation during the year.

Personnel costs also include the cost related to the use of personnel with staff supply contracts at
the Parent Company: in particular, this refers to personnel used in the production area to meet the
various needs emerging from one period to the next (different types of processes, processing peaks,
management of work shifts, absences due to holidays, leaves, illnesses, etc.). In 2021, the cost was
Euro 1,024 thousand compared to Euro 1,320 thousand spent in 2020. The reduction in the cost of
temporary workers is attributable to greater efficiency achieved by the contribution of direct labour
as well as by using staff supply contracts in a wiser manner.

Other personnel costs are broken down as follows:

Other personnel costs 3| BN ] Cheee Lol
Expense rgimbursement } 30,830: (68,9?17) 7 43,1%2
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[eaiming. i 35416 24349 '72','5%T’i
‘Clothmg/garments e ; - -57 524 77”713 492 63 265|
\ Other mlscellaneous ltems ‘ 46,453 ‘ 51 468 | 102, 177
W T T T s

The average and exact number of employees by category for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2021 is shown in the table below:

Semor |
‘ Managers/Middle 22 22 29 30
 Managers ‘
White-collar workers | 76 81| 98 | 99
 Blue Collar Workers 160 159 | 195 204
| dihé}"éiﬁ"ﬁ'fég?e'é's 10 | 1 | 9 | 9 |
| Totalemployees | 268 | 273 | BEE

Note No. 28: Depreciation and write-downs of assets

The following table presents details of depreciation and amortisation for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2021.

. I e T Change Epa s 2021 —l
Amor_tisatlon of mtanglbl-e"as-sets ; a __:66(_)_4_11 { e 4779:07472 __1_13_9 669 |
Deprecnatmn of tanglble assets ‘ 2,358,751 ‘ 524 ,303 | 2,883, 270
' Amortisation of rights. of use } - 836, 723 \ - 54 310 891 032
i Write-down of fixed assets | 113494 2008540 2,412,034|
erte-down of recelvables 79,386 i 7,469 86,854
Total T Tanesge| T 3aeanodl T A Re8

Amortisation of intangible assets includes € 453 thousand related to intangible assets with a
defined useful life identified within the purchase price allocation tied to the acquisition of the
Welcare group. Refer to paragraph 7 for more detailed information. Business combinations”.

The item write-down of fixed assets mainly refers to the write-down of goodwill of approximately
€ 2.2 million following the impairment test carried out on the Canadian CGU, as better described
in Note 1 Intangible fixed assets.

Note No. 29: Provisions

(g
7
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Provisions for risks of EUR 312,500 were made during the year. Please refer to Note 16
Provisions for risks and charges for further details.

Note No. 30: Other income, Other expenses

B0 o Change oo onae o
| Contingent assets 48287 1L,027) 59314]
| Contingent liabilities | (24,353) ©(90,440) (114792)
| Otherincome | 38280 645410 1,028,699
| Other charges ! O (142959) (29,638) (172,597)
Mol 0 o T el sl . S0k

The item Other income sees an increase compared to the previous year, mainly as a result of the
contribution recorded by the Parent Company amounting to € 500,000 received from the Ministry
of Economic Development, in accordance with the procedures set out in Article 7 of the Ministerial
Decree of 23 April 2018 following admission to listing on the AIM regulated market which took
place in October 2020.

The residual amount corresponds to the recognition by the Parent Company of income obtained
from operating grants. These include the contribution relating to the tax credit for research,
development, technological innovation, design and aesthetic conception activities under Art. 1,
paragraphs 198 - 209 of Law No. 160 of 27 December 2019 amounting to approximately € 104
thousand and the grant recognised in respect of investments in new capital goods pursuant to Decree
Law 91/2014.

The item "Other expenses" mainly includes costs for membership fees and various taxes and
duties.

Note No. 31: Financial income

The breakdown of the item financial income for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2021 is shown below:

BEELL s S ST R
IR ORI 27071 g4yl 8648
Interest .mcome from associated 4,591 (4.501) i

LSIPARIeS st et i NS —
éFalrvalueadJustment of debt 293,5655 244,151 537.716
ploreamnont e w ol ] I S - = = o ,
Other financial income | 118669 7953 198243
 Total e e 443,896 | 300,711 | 744,607
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The item "Fair value adjustment for earn-out debt" represents the effects of the adjustment of the
residual debt related to the acquisition of the Canadian company on the basis of the amount agreed
between the parties in the settlement agreement dated 23 July 2021.

It should be noted that the item "Other financial income" is attributable to the Parent Company and
is represented mainly by interest income on the post-listing dedicated account and by interest
subsidies (Simest and Sabatini law).

Note No. 32: Financial charges

‘ Bank mteygsi _expense B 668 | ~ La13y 1,881
Bank mterest payable on loans ane {}.{11,342 - (12{,847) : 316,47_92 _
' Commlrssilons on credlt llrrlresr Lo B _1_57,"161 (4,035) _11,126
l Financial charges from use of derivative 16.220 ‘ 20,932 37.152
Hostrwments I : . _ —
i Sundry interest expense 105,036% (101,238) 3798
Intgigst expense on rnghts of use (Ieases) —— . V, 713105____ _ 1359. . - 72 4;4 ‘
h fi
_ Interest expense on rights of use( inancial 2,535| (1, 265) 1271
! lease) : - I o y B
Financial charges from actuarial adjustment 11,163 12, 816 ‘ 23.978
| to employee termination indemmities . . | e
' Fair value adjustment of Welcare optlon A . - 53 196 | 153,196
Capitallosses | 0% @os® -
B s T R | R

The increase in financial expenses is mainly related to the interest expenses accruing on the loan
agreements entered into in 2021 and in previous years.

Note No. 33: Net gains (losses) on exchange

Foreign exchange gains/losses are highlighted:

Foreign exchange gains | - 8"546 o B 7(}6 652 - 775, 198
~ Foreign exchangelosses |  (652,652) 574 343 B (7;37;979)7,
‘Financial charges from |
3, 238,53
‘hedging derivatives | s I s ?)‘ I
 Total ‘ (644 106) 1 102 465 | 458,359

Foreign exchange gains at the end of the year mainly relate to valuation gains and realised by the
Parent Company in respect of loans granted to the Canadian subsidiary Importfab Inc.

C/" /67
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Foreign exchange losses mainly refer to exchange rate differences on the Parent Company's
currency account balances.

Financial charges from hedging derivatives represent the mark to market at 31 December 2021 of
the derivative financial instruments entered into by the Parent Company to hedge the exchange rate
risk on the outstanding loan to the Canadian subsidiary Importfab Inc.

Note No. 34: Value adjustments on financial assets

e e e e ] o
of L

Falr value measurement 0 ablotre s mvestment at the 0 5,547,338 | 5.547338

date of _aequnsntm_n___et' ‘geutrol = N R

Rev-a'luatwn of the associate Labiotre | prlor to majorlty 190.256 (10 300) 179.956

acqulsltnon R e g - .

 Revaluation of the assoc:ate Prmtmg Pack 21,562 45 688 67,250
Revaluation of the associate Project Zero | 286124 (161476) 124,648
Totl LT T T o e R s

With reference to Labiotre, which at 31 December 2020 was reported as an equity investment in an
associate and of which control was acquired in 2021, in accordance with IFRS 3, at the date of
acquisition of control the value of the previously held associate investment was remeasured at fair
value, which was previously reported at the value resulting from the equity method. This accounting
treatment resulted in a gain of € 5,547 thousand recognised in the income statement.

The table above also shows changes in the value of investments in associates accounted for using
the equity method.

Note No. 35: Taxes

The table below provides a breakdown of income taxes at 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2021.

2000 Chenge [ 2000
PlCummass T TR T 1467.867) 488,798 1,604,168
Deferred tax assets and hablht:es }_ - 64359 (1 '§9ﬁ7878) : __—(_’ﬁinb_:‘éj
Taxes from prevmus years ‘x 7 7(7'3’757111) o 6366_53_ B (104 458)
| Totai taxes for the year i 19T, 115 B (70 337) S 726 778
% current taxes on pre-tax profit : 21%| | ! 22%
: % tax for the year on pre-tax proﬁt o e 2% o f 8%

The low incidence of taxes for the year with respect to the pre-tax result is mainly due to the tax
effect on the income from the remeasurement at fair value of the Labiotre investment, which benefits

from the tax relief participation exemption. / )////
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The following tables show the reconciliation between the balance sheet charge and the theoretical
IRES/IRAP charge.

The expected tax rate used for the calculation of the tax burden is 24% for the IRES jurisdiction and
3.9% for the IRAP jurisdiction.

Description [ 2020 2 2021
Pre-tax result - | 6889, 120 8,991,586
‘Theoretical IRES tax burden T 139412 2,157,981
Increabmg permanent dlfferences - 313,838 735,148
Decreasmg permanent dlfference ' - (1,§60,80-6) I (6 693 310)
Pre-tax profit adjusted for permanent dlfferences (A) 5,342,152 3,033,424
| IRES tax for the year 768,140 728,022 |
Increasing temporary differences R 826,592 3,21 1,4-0?
7Decreasmg temporary differences - (26,183) (553,472)
Total temporary differences (B) - N 1 800,409 2,657,935
Total taxable income (A + B) - - 6,142,561 | 5,691,359
Taxable amount fore1gn group - (2,141,569) (1 285 4:’:4)
Previous tax losses ' o il ' -
Reduction of aid to economio growth and other significant changes for | | 12470081
. o (347,995)
IRES purposes |
Total taxable income 4,000,993 4,057,930
Total current taxes (IRES ltaly) before deductlons | 960,&38 973, 9{)3
Deduction for incentives on investments to lmprove energy efﬁ(:lency (4,965) (4,965)
' Taxation of forelgn compames 303 ﬁ459 339,047
TR i o e R D 200,134 296,183
 Total current taxes on taxable income R e RO e Sae D ,604,168

10. Information on transactions with related parties

All transactions with related parties were carried out applying conditions in line with market
conditions, i.e. conditions that would be applied between two independent parties.

In order to determine whether related party transactions were concluded at arm's length, the Group
considered both the quantitative conditions, relating to price and related elements, and the reasons
that led to the decision to enter into the transaction and to conclude it with a related party rather than
with a third party.

Furthermore, related party transactions do not include any atypical and/or unusual transactions.
The following table summarises transactions with related parties:

1
{ Costs ]
i |

i
Receivables 1 Payables

f01’ the 2020 ﬁnancnal year : ———

IRARBNUCOMPANY. oo e 0 e e e e
LBM Holdmg Sr] s S

Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31 December 2021



Labomar S.p.a.

| ASSOCIATED COMPANIES. R AR
'Lab:otre S secwnanadl  9150] 840413]  2,597,580]
TR s 321,044 931,851
- | - ' B 1,277
OTHER RELATED PARTIES TR '
Farmacia Bertin Wa'i'ter'se.s e s dl 18446 0 s8] 4988 51,335
Imm re Alessandra Srl ST R mw1,5576,697)”7'77” 40,860 -
Universo TV Scarl R o I 500
Consorzio Ribes-Next Scarl s o 1,000
BModel Sas e ~8s167| 313769 |
' Labofit Srl % : 30000 36,000
o b ] ~ forthe202l financial year
Fm.a el Flfanoi! Receivables | Payables Costs . Revenues
receivables | Debts i
PARENT COMPANY ey
LBM Holding Stl | | 1 T 1
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES i
Printingpack Srl o | e— | 460,134 | 1,129271 |
Zero srl R e [ - I |
' OTHER RELATED PARTIES e A R RO o
Farmacia Bertin Walter Sas e 7 - “___1_1:326 _ .l—,513 1T 8,785 b -'33,691
|Immre AlessandraStl | 180,000 | 1,547,830 18 | 36,809 18
| Um_\-rerso TV SC&I‘] e R R = i_ T - ?777 I 560 I
| Consorzio R_lbes-Next Scarlhi L ek 315 i o T E 1 Looo |
BModelSas ol |0 0310 | 234382 |
| LabofitSrl ey I, 3,000 | 36,000 i

Related party transactions mainly involve sales and consulting relations, with the exception of loan
receivables relative to the associate Immobiliare Alessandra S.r.l. Financial payables to the
associated company Immobiliare Alessandra S.r.l. represent the residual financial liability in
relation to the real estate sublease contract granted by this company to the Parent Company.

It should be noted that in 2021 the Parent Company distributed € 2,033,245 in dividends, of which
€ 1,446,174 to LBM Holding S.r.L.

There are no guarantees given to or received by related parties.

The accumulated remuneration for the year 2021 of personnel holding strategic positions amounted
to a company cost of € 479 thousand.

1. Remuneration of directors, statutory auditors and auditing firms of the Parent
Company

The remuneration of directors and auditors for their work during the year is as follows:

2021
Directors’ fees* 882,511

/7/;///;
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Remuneration of statutory auditors 40,190

‘Directors and statutory auditors’ fees = 00 o 923498

*including contributions and social security charges.

The auditing firm's remuneration amounts to € 152,641 and is broken down as follows:

O : _ . 2021
Statutory audit of annual accounts and audit of half—yearly consohdated ﬁnanc1a1 131.890
statements ’

Other non-audit services 11,028
Total independent auditor’s fees -~ - - T S R 142,918

12. Information on off-balance sheet arrangements

The Parent Company has numerous contractual agreements in place with its customers, suppliers,
employees and trade associations, and other commercial and financial partners, which provide for
reciprocal commitments of various types and of various durations, the effects of which are reflected
in the statement of financial position if and to the extent that this is correct on the basis of the
accounting principles applied, with particular reference to the accrual principle, while as regards
future effects, these are obviously not reflected in the statement of financial position if this is
consistent with the requirements of the accounting standards.

However, these agreements are all within the scope of what can be called nonnal industrial,
commercial and financial management'.

13. Risk management and hierarchy of financial instruments at fair value

The Group has approved the "Policy for the management of interest rate risk" which aims to define
and disclose the general principles and guidelines of the Board of Directors of the Parent Company
for the analysis of exposure, management and contro! of interest rate risk.

In adopting this policy, the Group has diversified the technical forms of bank financing in order to
limit the risk to which it is exposed, finding the most suitable to cover the requirements determined
by its industrial activities and whose interest rate levels can minimise any unfavourable changes in
the cost of financing.

The existing equity structure, its changes during the year just ended and management’s ability to

generate liquidity at the operating level all confirm the non-existence of liquidity risk.
Indeed, the Group continues to maintain balance and flexibility with regards to its financing sources
and loans. Liquidity needs are constantly monitored with an eye to guaranteeing financial resources

are efficiently obtained, with any available liquidity appropriately invested.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is detailed below;
' / 71
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Transact“m B i | ;]f‘i‘;;;;f : Levell LevelZ b _:Lgv.g'l 3
Derivative on loan - IRS with cap | (2;129) “ . . (2,129)
Derivative on loan - IRS with hedging 804 804
Derivative on loan - IRS 7,228 7,228
Derivative on loan - IRS 14,221 14,221
Foreign exchange derivatives - Put and call options (238,530) (238,530)
Derivative on loan - IRS with floor (2,721) : (2,721)
Derivative on equity investments - Put option (7,152,956) (7,152,956)

NOTES:

Level I: listed prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: Valuation techniques (based on observable market data);
Level 3. valuation technigues (not based on observable market data).

At 31 December 2021, the following instruments were outstanding in relation to the Parent
Company: (i) one IR derivative with cap entered into in 2018 for a notional value of € 2,520,000
with a 5-year term, to hedge interest rate risk, providing a fixed rate of 0.00 against a variable rate
of (Euribor 6 months); (ii) one IR derivative with hedging entered into in 2019 for a notional value
of € 4,753.251 with a 5-year term, to hedge interest rate risk, providing a fixed rate of 0.00 against
a variable rate of (Euribor 6 months); (iii) one IR derivative entered into in 2020 for a notional value
of € 8,000,000 with a 5-year term, to hedge interest rate risk, with a fixed rate of -0.3 against a
variable rate of (Euribor 3 months); (iv) one IR derivative stipulated in 2020 for a notional value of
€ 5,000,000 with a 6-year term, to hedge interest rate risk, with a fixed rate of -0.3 against a variable
rate of (Euribor 6 months); (v) 13 optional derivatives on the Canadian dollar, entered into in 2021
to hedge the exchange rate risk related to the loan receivable from the associate ImportFab. The
options are aligned on a quarterly basis with the maturities of the loan repayment plan.

The subsidiary Labiotre has an IRS derivative with floor entered into in 2017 by Labiotre for a
notional value of Euro 1,250,000 with a 5-year term, to hedge interest rate risk, providing a fixed
rate of -0.1 against a variable rate of (Euribor 3 months) with a minimum of 1%.

Finally, as of 31 December 2021, a put option is outstanding for the minority shareholders of

Welcare. Refer to Note No. 20 for more information.

Credit risk

In the course of its business, the Group is exposed to the risk that its receivables may not be paid
when due, as a consequence of the financial conditions of the obligor, and therefore the risks relate
to the increase in the seniority of the receivables, the risk of insolvency and the increase in
receivables subject to bankruptcy proceedings with consequent loss of value that may lead to their
total or partial cancellation from the financial statements. The Group has adopted internal
procedures for credit management aimed at setting rules as régards the creditworthiness of clients,
the monitoring of expected collection flows, issue payment reminders and, when deemed necessary
or expedient, grant special credit conditions and handle legal disputes regarding receivables. Almost

all the receivables present at the end of the year were not past due.
72

Consolidared Financial Statements as at 31 December 2021 K-/U




Labomar S.p.a.

Geopolitical risk

The Group operates to a small extent (around 1.0% of its turnover) in geographical areas currently
affected by the war between the Commonwealth of Independent States and the Republic of Ukraine.
The management is paying special attention to supplies that, in the past, came from the areas affected
by the aforementioned war, However, these deliveties accounted for only a small part of the total
There are no other noteworthy transactions in other geographic areas which could give rise to
macroeconomic, financial, regulatory, market, geopolitical or social risks.

Exchange rate risks

For most of the period, the Group did not carry out any significant transactions in currencies other
than the euro, However, in view of the financial exposure to the Canadian subsidiary, management
undertook currency hedging activities for the Canadian currency.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will change as a result
of changes in exchange rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of fluctuation of exchange rates
mainly refers to the loan in Canadian dollars that the Company granted to its Canadian subsidiary
Importfab.

The Group manages its exchange rate risk by hedging the loan repayment flows that will occur
according to the expected depreciation schedule,

When derivatives are entered into for hedging purposes, the Group negotiates the terms of such
derivatives to match the terms of the hedged exposure. As regards hedging of expected transactions,
derivatives cover the exposure period from the time when the cash flows of transactions are expected
to occur to the time of payment of the resulting foreign currency denominated receivable.

The Group has preliminarily defined the amount of the exchange rate risk based on the residual
portion of the loan. The hedge is implemented through specific forward currency sales contracts.

Management believes that the policies adopted by the Company to manage and contain this risk are
adequate.

Forward foreign exchange contracts are designated as hedges of redemptions in Canadian dollars.
These future transactions are highly probable and relate to 100% of the principal amounts
outstanding at the date of subscription of the instruments.

There is an economic relationship between the hedged items and the hedging instruments in that the
terms of the exchange rate reflect the terms of the highly probable future transactions (i.e. the
notional amount and expected payment date). To test the effectiveness of the hedge, the Group uses
a method based on the determination of a hypothetical derivative that compares the changes in fair
value of the hedging nstruments with the changes in fair value of the hedged instruments arising
from the hedged risk.
Ineffectiveness of the hedge may occur due to:

» Timing differences of cash flows generated by the underlying hedged items and hedging

instruments;

« Different indices (and their different curves) correlated with the hedged risk of the

~ « underlying item and the hedging instruments;

- /) / A
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o Different impact that counterparty risk has on fair value movements of hedging instruments
and the underlying item;

« Changes in the expected amount of cash flow of the underlying hedged items and hedging
instruments.

Exchange rate sensitivity analysis

In its operations, the Company does not carry out any sales and purchases of goods and services in
currencies other than the financial exposure to Entreprises Importfab Inc., totalling CAD 13,040,000
(for details see Note No. 3) whose residual debt at the end of the 2021 financial year was reduced
to CAD 9,343,750 (or € 6,517 thousand).

The following table shows the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the exchange rate of
the currency to which the Company is exposed, all other variables constant.

The effect on the Company's pre-tax result is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities. The pre-tax impact on equity is comparable to the impact on pre-tax profit.

.- |dnereases - . - Effectonprofit - -
| Pecreasesin o before. _
peins o taxes (Buro thousand) |
: 4.9% (CAD appreciation) (12)
1-4.9% (CAD depreciation) (25)

Liquidity risk

Considering the nature of the business in which it operates and the operating cash flows historically
generated, the Group does not present particular risks related to the procurement of financing
sources. The Group pursues a prudent management of liquidity risk and therefore systematically
carries out analyses to monitor cash flows, funding needs and any surplus liquidity.

With this in mind, the Group has adopted a series of policies and processes aimed at optimising the
management of financial resources, reducing liquidity risk by maintaining an adequate ievel of
available liquidity, obtaining adequate credit lines and monitoring prospective liquidity conditions
with the support of internal corporate planning processes.

To this end, monthly the Group produces an update of the net financial position and a short-term
financial forecast, in order to highlight potential critical issues to be addressed.

For a more detailed definition of the current financial commitments, reference should be made to
the table below, which indicates the undiscounted flows provided for by bank loan agreements and
financial liabilities for rights of use.

It should be noted that the table herein shows the undiscounted maturities as contractually agreed,

even for loans with covenants, since the latter are met as of 31 December 2021.

v Zt;
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e Within.one. - One to fix Beyond five -
Financial liabilities thin.one. - Onetofive . - Beyond five:

e T _year_ yers . years
Bank loans 9,612,680 21,089,148 0
Right-of-use liabilities 1,131,407 3,031,833 684,961
Payables for business combinations 7,629,450 ,
TOTAL maturities relating to financial liabilities 10,744,087 . 31750431 684,961

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following table shows the sensitivity of the Group's pre-tax profit to possible changes in interest
rates, all other variables constant. Considering the year-end indebtedness to banks and other lenders
(€ 30,369 thousand), the impact on pre-tax profit is as follows:

L {dnerease/ - . Effecton profit-

Decreiisesin. ~~ © . hefore. . v
Eurib 1% (194)
Buribor 1% 130

14. Operating segments

i

For the purposes of IFRS 8 'Operating Segments', the Group's activities are in a single operating
segment.

[5. Market and Competition Law - Law No. 124 of 4 August 2017, Article 1,
paragraph 125

In compliance with the disclosure obligation set out in paragraph 125 of Article 1 of Law 124/2017,
the grants and subsidies received from the public administration considered using the cash basis are
summarised below:

Group company - i Name of the lender . G T S . Reason . - .
Lrokp company - | - Nameoline lende COLLECTED !~ collection - | " o0t o
F24 COMP. TAX CRED.
: Labomar SpA Ministry of Economic Development 1,691 16/07/2021 CONTR, FOR 2020 R&D
: EXPENSES _
! F24 COMP. TAX CRED,
Labomar SpA Ministry of Economic Development 50,000 16/07/2021 CONTR.FOR 2020 R&D
EXPENSES :
. ] . COMP. F24 SANITATION :
Laboemar SpA Ministry of the Economy and Finance 28,297 16/04/2621 TAX CREDIT
' Labomar SpA Ministry of Economic Development 25,000 12042021 Crediting of the nnovation .
; voucher operating grant
 Labomar SpA Ministry of Economic Development 10,804 314032021 C""d‘““g(;zl'::g;f;t subsidy
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Ministry of Economic Development

2,701

01/12/2621

Labomar S.p.a.

Crediting of interest subsidy
(Sabatini)

- Labomar SpA

Ministry of Economic Development

12,679

29/11/3021

Crediting of interest subsidy . :

{Sabatini)

Labomar SpA

Ministry of Economic Development

4,167

15/09/2021

Crediting of inferest subsidy

(Sabatini)

- Labomar SpA

SIMEST - Cassa Depositi e Prestiti

52,621

30/04-12/11/2021

Crediting of interest subsidy .

. Labomar SpA

Venete Region

28,000

18/06/2021

Crediting of operating grant
Employment bonus for the

stabilisation of COVID-19

employees

. Labomar SpA

Ministry of Economic Development

500,000

16/06-16/07/2021

F24 COMPENSATION
FOR SME LISTING TAX
CREDIT

Welcare Industries SpA

Untbria Region

4,079

23/11/2021

Contribution to consultancy
vouchers ROP ERDF 2014-

2020

Welcare Industries SpA

Ministry of Agricultural Food and
Forestry Policies

1,127

01/07/2021-
26/11/2021

National Rural
Development Programme
2014-2022 AGEA

- Weleare Industries SpaA

Ministry of Economic Development

3,963

18/01/2021

F24 COMP. TAX CRED.
CONTR. FOR 2019 R&D
EXPENSES

. Welcare Industries SpA

Ministry of Economic Development

26,326

16/06/2021

¥24 COMP, TAX CRED.
CONTR., FOR 2020 R&D
EXPENSLES

Welcare Industries SpA

Ministry of the Economy and Finance

2,891

18/01/2021

L

COMP, F24 2020
SANITATION TAX
CREDIT

- Weleare Industries SpA

Ministry of Economic Development

1,366

15/869/2021

24 COMP, 2020 CAPITAL

GOODS TAX CRED.
CONTR.

. Welcare Research Srl

Ministry of the Economy and Finance

6,263

15/09/2021

F24 COMP, TAX CRED.
CONTR. FOR 2020 R&D
EXPENSES

Labiotre Srl

Tuscany Region

34,690

16/04/2021

COVID-19: SME

Guarantee Fund State Aid .

| TOTAL |

16. Events after the close of the financial year

796666

SA. 56966 (2020/N)

During the first months of 2022 following 31 December 2021, the Group's operations continue to
be affected by the spread of Covid-19, as is the case for the entire national and international

economy.

The Company has continued its production activities in compliance with the requirements of local

regulations aimed at preventing the spread of Covid-19.

It should be noted that on the basis of the results of the Parent Company's Sharcholders' Register,
the conditions set out in Article 2-bis of the Issuers' Regulation No. 11971 of 14 May 1999 (the
"Issuers' Regulation™) necessary for the Parent Company to qualify as an "issuer of shares widely
distributed among the public" (the "Issuer with widespread shareholder base") have been met. In
particular, it should be noted that:
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+ the total number of shareholders, other than the Company's Controling Shareholder (Walter
Bertin through LBM Holding Srl), which together hold at least 5% of Labomar's share
capital, is more than 500;

* . the limits indicated in Article 2435-bis, first paragraph, of the Civil Code have been
exceeded. ,

The Parent Company, having acknowledged that it has exceeded the prescribed requirements, has
assumed the status of "issuer of shares widely distributed among the public" and has taken steps to
make the disclosures required by the Issuers' Regulations to the CONSOB. As a result of the above,
Labomar will apply the Issuer with widespread shareholder base rules as of the 2022 financial year.

17. Transactions resulting from atypical and/or unusual transactions

The Group has not carried out any atypical and/or unusual transactions, i.e. transactions which, due
to their significance/relevance, the nature of the counterparties, the purpose of the transaction, the
way in which the transfer price is determined and the timing of the event, may give rise to doubts
as to the fairness/completeness of the information in the financial statements, the conflict of interest,
the safeguarding of the company's assets and the protection of shareholders' interests,

Heok

Istrana, 30 March 2022

Chairman of the Board of Directors
alter Bertin

77
- Consolidated Financiod Statements as at 31 December 2021






LABOMAR S.P.A.

Share Capital € 1,848,404 fully paid in
Registered office: Via Nazario Sauro, 35/, Istrana, 31036
Tax ID and Treviso Business Registry no. 03412720264
VAT no. 03412720264 - REA: TV269752



Labomar S.p.a.

REPORT ON OPERATIONS
accompanying the Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31/12/2021

Dear Shareholders,

the Board of Directors submits to your attention the annual financial statements and consolidated
financial statements as at 31/12/2021 for Labomar S.p.a., in accordance with the schedule and methods
established under the current regulations.

'The consolidated financial statements submitted for your examination and approval show Group
profits totalling € 8,360,335, net of € 726,778 in taxes for the year.

The individual financial statements submitted for your examination and approval show profits totalling
€ 8,141,357, net of € 796,336 in taxes for the year.

This report on operations accompanies both the Consolidated Financial Statements and the separate
Financial Statements as at 31 December 2021. In fact, the Company decided to make use of the option
allowed under article 40 of Italian Legislative Decree 127/1991, as amended by Italian Legislative
Decree 32 of 2 February 2007, which allows companies preparing consolidated financial statements
to present the consolidated report on operations and the separate report on operations as a single
document. '

The Labomar S.p.a. Group (hereafter, also “Group”), has adopted the International Financial
Reporting Standards (hereafter, also “IFRS”) to prepare its annual corporate accounts and hence the
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2021 were prepared in compliance with the IFRS
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), adopted by the European Union.
Consequently, the Group is subject to that established under Ttalian Legislative Decree 38/2005, which
governs the adoption of international accounting standards by Italian companies.

The Group is represented by the parent company Labomar S.p.a. and its subsidiaries Entreprises
Importfab Inc. (a Canadian company), Labomar Next S.r.l., Lab C S.r.1., Welcare Research S.r.1. and
Welcare Industries S.p.a., Welcare Medikal we Saglik UrunleriSanayi ve Ticaret A.S., with registered
office in Istanbul (a Turkish company in liquidation fully controlled by Welcare Industries S.p.a.), and
Labiotre S.r.1., Labovar S.r.1.

The following diagram presents the structure of the group to which Labomar S.p.a. belongs at the time
of publication of these consolidated financial statements.

iy
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LBM
HOLDING
o, Rl

LABOMAR
S.P.A.
67.34%

ENTERPRISE [ LaBOMAR | [ WELCARE LABOVAR LABIOTRE PRINTING | [ PROJECT |
IMPORTFAB NEXT S.R.L. RESEARCH S.R.L. S.R.L. PACK S.R.L. ZERO S.R.L.
INC'D si || 0% 51% 100% 20% 6.01%

I |
LAB CS.R.L S ZERO S.R.L.
100% 73.63%

100%
WELCARE
MEDIKAL (IN
LIQUIDATION)

The Consolidated Financial Statements provide exhaustive details and allow for careful analysis of the
results for the year.

This document provides details on the nature of the Group’s activities, its relations with subsidiaries,
associated companies and subsidiaries of the latter, as well as its relations with related parties, in
addition to information provided in the Notes.

An analysis of the Group’s situation, trend and operating results is provided in the following sections,
specifically focussed on the market scenario and the products and services offered, on investments and
the main indicators of economic performance and developments in its equity and financial situation.
The same information is also provided for the parent company.

Amounts are expressed in euros.

SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

The following table shows the scope of consolidation at 31 December 2021 compared with 31
December 2020:

2021

Stake Directly Stake Directly

attributable to controlled attributable to ! controlled
the Group stake the Group stake

Parent company

Labomar S.p.a. 100% 100%
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Subsidiaries consclidated on a line

by line basis

Entreprises Importfab Inc. 100% 66.28% 100% 66.28%
Labomar next S.r.l. (ex Herbae S.r.1.) 51.00% 51.00% 51.00% 51.00%
Lab C Sl 51.00% 100.00%

Labiotre S.r.L. 100% 100%

Welcare research S.r.l. 100% 70%

‘Welcare Industries 8.p.a. 100% 0%

Welcare Medikal a.s. 100% 0%

Labovar S.r.l, 51.00% 51.00%

Associated companies consolidated

with the equity method

Labiotre S.r.l. - 31.20%
Printing Pack 8.r.1. 20.00% 20.00%
Project Zere S.r.l. 6.01 5.56%

It is noted that during the year, 100% control was acquired of Labiotre and control of the Welcare
group through acquisition of the direct controlling stake of Welcare Research S.r.l. (70%). The
minority interest is recorded for accounting purposes as a financial liability, therefore the stake
attributable to the Group is 100%.

The consolidated financial statements were constructed as follows:

- the equity figures reflect the consolidation of the assets and liabilities of Labomar S.p.a. and the
subsidiaries of the Group included in the scope of consolidation;

- the economic figures reflect the consolidation of the costs and revenues of Labomar S.p.a. and the
subsidiaries of the Group included in the scope of consolidation;

- the reference date for the consolidated financial statements is 31 December 2021, the reporting date
for all companies in the Group;

- aggregation of equity and economic items for subsidiaries included in the scope of consolidation was
done on a line-by-line basis; '

- equity investments in associated companies were measured and recognised using the equity method;
- equity and economic relations between companies inciuded in the scope of consolidation were
entirely eliminated. Profits and losses arising from transactions between consolidated companies
which cannot be considered as having been realised through transactions with third parties were
eliminated;

- the annual financial statements of the subsidiaries, prepared in accordance with local laws and
accounting standards, were adjusted to the dictates of the international accounting standards
(FAS/IFRS) on which the parent company’s separate financial statements are based;

- currency translation was done for financial statements expressed in currencies other than the Euro,
specifically for the Entreprises Importfab Inc. 2021 financial statements, with recognition in the
relative Translation Reserve.

Below are the exchange rates used in the franslation process:

' 4
Report on Operations — financial statements at 31 December 2021 V



Labomar S.p.a.

| ! Average ' Average
] ! | Exchange
Exchange rate at | exchange  rate| exchange  rate
Currency | i 3 | rate a J
31.12.2021 | financial year | financial year
l J [ 31.12.2020 H
| 2021 | 2020
Canadian dollar - CAD 1.4393 1.4826 1.5633 1.5300
Turkish lira— TRY 15.2335 10.5124 - -

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Labomar’s management also assesses Group performance on the basis of certain indicators not
specified by the IFRS. Specifically, EBITDA is used as a primary indicator of profitability, as it
enables analysis of the Group’s margins.

As set out in Consob Communication no. 0092543 of 3 December 2015, adopting the
ESMA/2015/1415 guidelines on alternative performance indicators, below is a description the
components of these indicators:

- EBIT: is calculated by combining financial results with earnings before taxes, the former
understood as the sum of financial charges and income, net gains or losses on exchange and
value adjustments of financial assets;

- EBITDA: is calculated by combining amortisation, depreciation and impairment of assets
and provisioning with EBIT, as presented in the financial statements;

- Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted Net Profit for the Period: these are calculated by adding
non-recurring costs and subtracting non-recurring revenues to and from these indicators
and/or items. In addition, for Adjusted Net Profit for the Period, there is tax-effect adjustment
for these non-recurring components.

- Bank loans: represents the sum of available liquidity net current and non-current amounts
due to banks and liabilities for derivative financial instruments;

- Comprehensive Net Financial Position: this is calculated as the sum of Bank loans and right-
of-use liabilities, payables to shareholders for dividends, non-disposable cash in trusts and
payables for business-unit acquisition and payables for business combinations.

FORECASTED STATEMENTS

This document contains forecasted statements regarding future events and future results of Labomar
and the Group, founded on expectations, estimates, predictions and current projections for the sectors
in which the Group operates, and assessments, hypotheses and predictions on the future development
of Group operations that management consider reasonable and credible at the current time and on the
basis of the available information.

These forecasted statements are solely predictions and as such are subject to risks, uncertainty and
hypotheses that are difficult to predict, being dependent on future events and circumstances. Therefore,
the actual results of the Group may differ significantly and unfavourably in relation to that

/'\ .
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communicated or understood through any forecasted statements. Factors that may determine such
differences or contribute to them may include global economic conditions, political and economic
conditions and regulatory changes at a national or international level.
No express or implied guarantee is provided regarding the reliability, accuracy, completeness or
correctness of forecasted information and opinions presented herein.

The Labomar Group is a contract development and manufacturing organisation (CDMO), which
researches, develops and produces food supplements, medical devices, food for special medical
purposes and functional cosmetics for third parties, as well as providing R&D consulting services.
This means it is not just a supplier, but a privileged partner of major domestic and international
pharmaceutical companies. Its portfolio of offerings is wide and covers numerous therapeutical
sectors, through various pharmaceutical methods (pills, capsules, powders, liquids and gels).

The Group has 8 plants, 7 in Ttaly and 1 in Canada (in the province of Quebec), which are dedicated
to R&D, industrial production and logistics management. With regard to the parent company, the
physical separation of the individual plants, even if they are concentrated in the parent company’s
industrial zone within Italy (central Veneto), constitutes an important disaster recovery measure. The
plant of the subsidiary Labiotre, located in Tuscany (Tavarnelle Val di Pesa — Florence) is dedicated
to the production of extracts, softgel and granulation and logistics. The plants of the subsidiary
Welcare are located in Orvieto (Terni) and are dedicated to industrial production and logistics.

Since it has always given the utmost attention to complying with the highest quality and safety
parameters required by sector regulations, the Group, through Labomar, has received the following
certifications: ISO 9001, ISO 13485 (for Medical Devices) and GMP certification for food
supplements (Code of Federal Regulations, Title 21, Volume 2, part 111). It is also certified to use the
word “organic” on some of its products (Regulation EC 834/2007). Additionally, through Importfab
it has CGMP certification issued by the US FDA and Health Canada.

Financial year 2021 saw a reduction in the effects of the spread of Covid-19 recorded in the 12 months
previous. Whilst continuing on a path of growth, the global economy was impacted by the effects of
the fourth wave of the pandemic and a recovery in inflation rates that was more intense and lasting
than expected.

According to the findings of the Bank of Italy report updated in 2022, after widespread slowing in
economic activity in the third quarter, at the end of last year there were signs of a more lasting recovery
in the US and other developed countries, whilst there was continued weakness in emerging economies.
The new wave in the pandemic and continuing supply-chain bottlenecks nevertheless pose the risk of
reduced growth, Inflation increased further almost across the board, influenced primarily by increased
in energy prices, prices of intermediate inputs and recovery of internal demand.

In the Euro arca, GDP decelerated at the end of the year, due to a new increase in infection figures and
continuing supply-chain tensions impeding manufacturing activity. Inflation reached its peak since the

=t /]
6
Report on Operations — financial statements ot 31 December 2021 CQ{V&\




Labomar S.p.a.

start of the monetary union, due to exceptional increases in energy prices, particularly gas, which was
also impacted in Burope by geopolitical factors. According to forecasts from Eurosystem experts,
inflation will fall progressively in 2022, reaching a 3.2% average for the year and 1.8% for the period
2023-24,

Growth in Italy remained high in the third quarter of 2021, supported by expansion in household
consumption. Subsequently, GDP slowed: on the basis of Bank of Italy models, in the fourth quarter,
GDP growth was around half a percentage point. The increase in added value was weakened both for
industrial and tertiary sectors. The increase in infection figures and consequent worsening of the
climate of confidence above all impacted spending on services. According to the intentions identified
in the surveys conducted between November and December, companies are planning a deceleration
of investments this year. In the third quarter, Italian exports continued to grow, supported by the
recovery in international tourism. Inflation rose to high levels (4.2% in December), driven up by
energy prices. Net of volatile components, the annual variation in prices remains moderate. So far,
increases in production costs have only led to modest increases in retail prices.

Trends on the financial markets were impacted by fears linked to increasing infection figures globally,
uncertainty around the danger of the Omicron variant and its impact on economic recovery, and
expectations regarding the direction of monetary policy. Market volatility and investor risk aversion
increased, determining a greater sovereign spread for Italy in relation to German government bonds.

Macroeconomic forecasts for Italy assume gradual improvement in the health situation. The scenario
is based on the assumption that the recent increase in infection levels will have negative effects in the
short term on mobility and consumption behaviour, but will not require a severe tightening of
restrictions. It is assumed that the epidemic will ease from spring onwards.

GDP, which had reached 1.3 percentage points below pre-pandemic levels, should have recovered this
decrease by around the second half of the year. Business expansion should then continue robustly,
although slightly less so than seen following reopening in the middle of 2021. As an annual average,
GDP should increase by 3.8% in 2022, 2.5% in 2023 and 1.7% in 2024, Employment figures should
grow more gradually and return to pre-pandemic levels at the end of 2022.

Consumer prices should rise by 3.5% on average this year, 1.6% in 2023 and 1.7 in 2024. The
underlying trend should be 1% this year and increase progressively up to 1.6% in 2024, supported by
a reduction in margins for unused capacity and trends in wages.

Growth prospects are associated with multiple risks, primarily with negative effects. in the short term,
the uncertainty around the forecasted scenario is connected to health conditions and tensions on the
supply side, which could be more persistent than expected and demonstrate a higher degree of impact
on the real economy. For the medium term, forecasts continue to be conditional on the full
implementation of spending programmes included in the budget plan and full and quick
implementation of actions set out in the PNRR (Italian Recovery and Resilience Plan).

With regard to the reference market of the subsidiary Importfab Inc., the Canadian economy was in an
expansion phase up fo the beginning of the economic crisis caused by the pandemic, with GDP growth
for several years: +1.5% in 2016, +3% in 2017, +1.8% in 2018 and +1.6% in 2019. In 2020, following
the effects of the pandemic, GDP fell -5.2% before returning to a positive figure in 2021 (+4.6%).
(ref. ISP1—2021).
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Supply-chain interruptions slowed but did not stop the economic recovery in Canada. With the fourth
wave of infections at the end 0f 2021 fading, GDP is expected to grow more quickly than prior to the
pandemic, reaching 3.9% in 2022 and 2.8% in 2023. Longer lasting constraints on supply could,
however, mean that inflation remains high for a more extended period and could delay the forecast
acceleration of trade and consumption.

(ref. OECD — December 2021).

The Business Outlook Survey (BOS) of the Bank of Canada for the fourth quarter of 2021 reports a
new increase in the indicator in the last quarter of 2021. The BOS indicator is a weighted average of
the individual indicators derived from various questions. This increase is partly due to improvements
in sales indicators and firms’ intentions to expand investment and hiring. Production-capacity
pressures also contribute to the BOS indicator, explaining most of the increase since the beginning of
2021. Historically, stronger capacity pressures were typically caused by high demand and suggested
an increase in business activity ahead. But currently these pressures are driven largely by supply-chain
bottlenecks and tightening labour markets. The recent high level of the BOS indicator therefore reflects
a complicated business environment in addition to heightened business confidence.

A broadening set of firms saw a solid recovery in sales supported by strengthening domestic and
foreign demand, as well as easing of restrictions on activities and mobility. Recovery in sales was
strengthening until the Omicron variant started to spread widely. It is noted that a rapid increase in
Covid-19 cases due to the Omicron variant has been seen at the start of 2022, generating uncertainty
about future expectations.

The combination of high demand and supply-chain bottlenecks is expected to apply upward pressure
on prices over the coming two years. Nevertheless, the majority of companies expect current elevated
inflationary pressure to dissipate and inflation to return near to the 2% target in one to three years.
The outlook for companies that fared well during the Covid-19 pandemic remain solid. At the same
time, more companies reported impacts from labour shortages and supply-chain disruption, and a
continued drag on their sales.

In response to capacity pressures, most businesses across sectors and regions are set to increase
investment and plan to raise wages to compete for workers and retain staff. Companies have
encountered intense labour shortages. Continued tightening in labour markets is attributed to structural
factors with a lasting impact as well as other factors that have limited the supply of labour in the short
term and are linked to the pandemic, such as income-support programmes and lower immigration
levels.

(Ref.: Business Outlook Survey (BOS) fourth quarter 2021)

With regard to the reference market, according to data prepared by Federsalus at 31 December 2021,
in the last 12 months, the food-supplements market has exceeded a value of almost € 4 billion for a
total of 294 million packets sold, including results generated by e-commerce, pharmacies and OTC
pharmacies. The following changes were recorded: +8.6% in value and +8.2% in terms of units sold.
The role of local pharmacies as the main distribution channel continues, representing 79% of overall
value, followed by mass retailers, OTC pharmacies and e-commerce of pharmacies and OTC
pharmacies, representing 8.8%, 7.4% and 4.8%, respectively. In the same period, pharmacies in Italy
recorded an increase of +5.9%. In this context, over-the-counter products overall recorded +9.2%, and
food supplements specifically saw an increase of 8.1%. In pharmacies, foods for special medical
purposes have a value of more than € 123 million, for a total of 9.5 million packets sold, with growth
in value of +3.8% and +4% in terms of units sold compared to the previous 12 months.

JAW
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Observing the trend in volumes over the last 12 months, there was an increase of 5.9% for pharmaéies.
OTC pharmacies saw a 5.5% increase in consumption in terms of units sold. For mass retail, which as
a whole represents around 23% of sales volumes, the change was +9.9% in hypermarkets and
supermarkets without a “pharmacy corer” and +31.2% in sales points with a “pharmacy corner”. E-
commerce for pharmacies and OTC pharmacies saw 10% growth in volumes. With reference to prices
in the last 12 months, a 2% increase was seen for pharmacies and 1.4% for OTC pharmacies, with a
decrease of 1.7% for hypermarkets and supermarkets with a pharmacy corner, while sales points in
mass retailers without a pharmacy corner saw a 5.5% decrease in prices. For e-commerce of
pharmacies and OTC pharmacies, the price remained stable. Products launched in the last 12 months
accounted for a total value of € 162 million.

The following significant events were identified for 2021:

- On 13 April 2021, the Board of Directors resolved to change the company name of Herbae S.r.l.
to Labomar Next S.r.l. '

- In April 2021, the company LAB C S.r.]. was established, controlled 100% by Labomar next S.r.1,
which operates in the development, production and sale of hi-tech, innovative products and
services connected to plant vertical-farming techniques.

- During May 2021, the parent company obtained a tax credit of € 500,000.00 from the Italian
Ministry of Bconomic Development, according to the methods indicated by art. 7 of Italian
Ministerial Decrec of 23 April 2018, following admission for listing on the AIM regulated market
in October 2020.

- On 14 uly 2021, the parent company acquired 63% of the capital of the Welcare Group on closing
- of the transaction by the owner Fulvia Lazzarotto against payment of € 8,171,000.

- On 30 July 2021, the Board of Directors of the Company resolved to exercise the option right on

Labiotre stakes held by Ditass International (10%) and Previfarma (7.6%) and signed a non-
binding Letter of Intent, subject to due diligence for confirmation, for the acquisition of the 51.2%
of the share capital of Labiotre S.r.l. held by Biodue S.p.A. On 15 September 2021, the parent
company, exercising the option right already in existence between the parties, acquired 17.6% of
the capital of Labiotre, taking its overall stake in this company specialised in the production of
plant extracts from 31.2% to 48.8%.
On 23 November 2021, the purchase of the remaining stakes in Labiotre was completed, thus
acquiring all remaining stakes from Biodue S.p.A. The price paid to the latter was € 8.4 million
and is not subject to adjustments. The prices take into account possible future acquisition of the
production plant of Labiotre, covering approximately 2,000 m?, through exercise of the purchase
option under Labiotre’s rent-to-buy contract, which can be used until January 2023.

2
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On 9 August 2021, Joh. Berenberg, Gossler & Co. KG, a German institutional investor with
international scope, acquired a stake in the parent company of 3.79%. The parent company of
Labomar S.p.a., LBM Holding, sold 700,000 shares (around 3.79% of the total shares in
circulation). Following this transaction, the shareholding of LBM Holding in Labomar S.p.a. fell
from 71.1% to 67.3%.

On 7 September 2021, the parent company signed a partnership agreement with the Sesa Group
for the development of digital ¢-commerce platforms in the Chinese market, aimed at offering
Labomar nutraceutical products (food supplements, cosmetics and products for personal well-
being).

In November 2021, the company Labovar S.r.1. was established in partnership with Adiacent
S.r.l., a subsidiary of Var Group S.p.a. (company of the Sesa group, a group listed in the STAR
segment of the Borsa Italiana S.p.a. MTA market. Labovar will be a sales agent in the Far East
for selected Labomar products, with the obligation to purchase these products from Labomar and
sell them exclusively within the aforementioned market, through the online sales platform
TMALL.

The partnership represents an opportunity to engage with the Chinese market, one of the largest in
the world, with products of excellence and a business model focused on digital sales platforms,
such as Tmall (marketplace leader in China for online business-to-consumer sales, owned by the
Alibaba Group) and Wechat (Tencent Group), through mini-programs, tailor-made proprietary
social e-commerce solutions developed by Adiacent China for leading international customers.
Launch of operations and initial sales are expected in the first quarter of 2022.

On 27 December, the parent company acquired a further 7% in the capital of the Welcare Group
from Think FWD S.r.1,, completing the 70% stake established by the share-purchase agreement
signed in July 2021, The price paid was € 1,338,500. The overall value for purchase of 70% of
the share capital of the group totals € 9.5 million.

With regard to the minority interest in Project Zero S.r.l., the following events occurred during the
year:

Project Zero S.r.l. distributed dividends using an optional ordinary reserve for an amount
€251,470.44 (€ 13,970.58 to Labomar S.p.a.).

With a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting of 30 November 2021, Project Zero S.r.l. passed a
resolution for a share-capital increase worth € 33,088.24, taking the total to € 145,588.24. This
increase should be subscribed and paid with a share premium of € 221.53 by 31 August 2022,
The increase in equity will therefore total € 7,363,126, with € 442,218 of Labomar S.p.A.

The company Zero S.r.l. (at 31 December a subsidiary of Project Zero S.r.1., in which the parent
company holds a 6.01% equity investment), saw a new Russian investor join the shareholding
structure, increasing the stake of foreign investors, who already held a minority interest in Zero
S.r.l. The transaction took the shareholders, key figures of a Russian multinational that is a
market leader in the distribution of ready-to-eat salads, up to a 26.4% stake in the equity of Zero
S.1.1. Following this sale, Project Zero reduced its stake by 5.12% (a nominal € 6,582.89) for a
sale price of € 1,740,800, generating a capital gain of € 1,734,217.11.

The company Orto Verticale (at 31 December controlled 82% by Zero S.r.1., a subsidiary of Project
Zero S.r., in which the parent company holds a 6.01% stake) carried out a share-capital increase
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worth € 90,000 taking the total from € 10,000 to € 100,000. The stake held by Zero S.rl. of a
nominal € 72,000 was entirely paid in kind through the transfer of aeroponic farming systems,
machinery and additional equipment with a total value of € 3 million, established through a specific
valuation,

During 2021, Group operations were still affected by the spread of Covid-19, as was the entire world
economy. '

The parent company was impacted by difficulties in its market, particularly in the first part of the year,
specifically in relation to the following key factors:

» asignificant reduction in sales promotion activity carried out by medical detailers in relation
to doctors prescribing the products (which is the main source of indirect development of
turnover for the parent company) compared to before the pandemic;

e areduction in consequent sales of nutraceutical products in segments such as cough & cold
and probiotics, which Labomar has invested heavily in recent years for research and
development. At the same time, use of face masks impeded the spread of common viruses. It

"is noted that, particularly in the fourth quarter of 2021, there was a strong recovery in orders
and turnover in segments such as cough & cold and probiotics, which suffered in the first part
of the year; '

» The natural operational difficulties in relation to pharmaceutical companies for the
development of new projects, also due to market uncertainty, slowed the launch of many new
products; -

o The strong economic recovery that was seen globally generated a significant relative stress on
supplies of raw materials and consumables. This stress started to impact the value chain of the
company with partial delays in delivery of supplies of raw materials and increases in the prices
of supplies due to excess global demand. '

The key consequences were:

» reduced benefit of research and development activity that should have translated into additional
sales as early as 2021, and which will instead begin to show results only from 2022;

« Problematic changes in the prices of raw materials were unable to be offset by sales prices for
orders already confirmed and will instead be recognised only for subsequent new orders with
a partial negative effect on company profitability.

Actions adopted by the Group to overcome these difficulties included recovery in terms of volumes,
accelerating certain activities with more reactive customers in market arcas that have seen less
slowing, in addition to promotion of a new Group policy, with identification of the leading customers
across the Group, primarily multinationals, and activation of a new management approach aimed at
further increasing the focus on the customer and, consequently, turnover with these parties.

At the same time, also on the basis of its listing in 2020, the Group established the necessary
governance structure and strengthened top management to handle the increased management
complexity and size of the business, There was a different situation in the Canadian market in which
the subsidiary Importfab operates. The rules of the lockdown, far stricter than those in Italy, led to a
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strong slowing in production activity and the retail sector, expected to recover their former balance
and size only in the second half of 2022.

Significant government support was obtained from the Canadian government, distributed to offset the
negative effects of closures imposed on production companies not considered to be of strategic
importance (including Importfab) due to the pandemic.

The positive effects in terms of these public funds and favourable final determination of the remaining
earnout amount to pay in relation to the debt recorded have contributed to offsetting almost all of the
operational negatives.

Whilst maintaining a positive margin, again in 2021, Importfab Inc. achieved weaker results cofnpa.red
to that budgeted for in economic and financial plans underlying the definition of values for the
acquisition. Therefore, for the purpose of these Consolidated Financial Statements, the impairment
test has been carried out, with reference to the Canadian cash generating unit (CGU) at 31 December
2021, on the basis of updated projections for the 2022-2024 period, approved by the BoD of the
subsidiary Importfab Inc. at the meeting held on 14 March 2022, assuming a terminal value including
a long-term growth rate (g) of 2%. Projections take into consideration the current macroeconomic
scenario and assume compound annual growth rate (CAGR) in revenues in the 2021-2024 period of
approximately 10%. The recoverable value is therefore determined on the basis of the use value,
applying a discount rate (WACC) of 11.69% (9.97% at 31 December 2020). The test identified a loss
in value of the Canadian CGU of approximately € 2.2 million, recorded as goodwill impairment.

With regard to the trend for turnover recorded in the second half of 2021, it is noted that both
companies within the scope (the parent company and the subsidiary Importfab) saw significant growth
in the second half of the year, both compared to the first half and compared to the second half of the
previous year.

R&D activity continues to play a key role in the positive results achieved, creating original
formulations developed on the basis of customer requests, and also offering consulting services for
scientific marketing,

Finally, management of chain of supply and production continued through profitable relationships
with investees upstream in the value chain: Labiotre S.r.l. for the production of plant extracts and
Printingpack S.r.1. for the production of packaging for Labomar products.

Regarding the performance of the Welcare group, it is noted that 2021 turnover saw continuation of
the positive trend of recent years.

Turnover grew by 14.5% in 2020, with equal distribution amongst European and non-European
countries. The sales margin remained very high, enabling an EBITDA of 30%. Lower margins can be
attributed for 3.7% to costs linked to extraordinary transactions required to complete the acquisition
by the parent company of the majority stake in the Welcare group. The remainder can be attributed to
increases in the cost of raw materials, hiring of addition personnel, above all in sales, and significant
marketing investments, as specified in the following paragraphs.

It is also noted that there was a significant increase in orders for the Saudi partner and addition of three
new distributors, covering Portugal, Greece and Albania,
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Regarding new foreign markets, initial contact with potential partners for Oman and Iran are being
established and may provide turnover as early as 2022, With regard to product lines, it is noted that
globally, also due to the world health crisis, turnover increased significantly for our range of biocides
(which rose from 31% of the total turnover of Welcare Industries S.p.a. to 44%) and the range of
debridement products (Sinaqua and Easyderm). Medications also represented a significant portion of
total orders, followed by the new line of biocides and all devices for controlling infections.

Only Welcare Research S.r.l., which markets the UCS Debridement line, records an increase in
revenues of approximately 11% compared to the previous year, with a stable margin of 81%, partly
thanks to further improvements in the production cycle and a significant reduction in production waste.
This range will be the focus of activity in 2022,

It is also noted that for 2022, the Welcare group has planned significant investments connected to the
construyction of a new building that will house an additional cleanroom for the production of biocides,
a warehouse for raw materials and new offices. Further investments will be targeted at purchasing
additional machinery and the creation of a new reverse-osmosis plant to support increased
manufacturing volumes. Inline with the environmental sustainability plan, there will also be expansion
of the existing photovoltaic system.

With regard to the performance of the subsidiary Labiotre, it is noted that turnover primarily came
from consolidation of the main customers, which led to an increase in the supply of existing products
in both business macroareas (plant extracts and softgel). For 2022, there are investments planned both
in terms of resources and machinery and equipment aimed at consolidation of production in the softgel
sector of business.

Expectations of Group management for the first quarter of 2022 are as follows:
¢ recovery of growth in turnover that will take the group over the 2021 topline and end 2022
with double-digit growth;
¢ contribution in terms of profitability of the newly acquired Welcare group and Labiotre, which
are in a positive phase with good prospects and growth;
¢ constant monitoring of the effects and financial activity aimed at offsetting increased prices for
supplies of raw materials that could led to tightening margins.

As of the date this document was prepared, no Group companies are suffering any special difficulties
with regards to production activities or logistics management for materials, whether outgoing or
incoming.

The effects of the spread of Covid-19 in the coming months cannot be clearly defined today. On this
basis, the company’s management will continue to closely and constantly monitor developments
through the year. Nevertheless, the current scenario regarding development of the pandemic, in
addition to the final estimates prepared internally by management, confirms the assumptions in
company plans and indicate the possibility of a recovery in performance, particularly for the Canadian
subsidiary.

In the light of the conflict that broke out in February involving Russia and Ukraine, management has
evaluated supplies coming from these areas and halted commercial development in the corresponding
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markets. Despite difficulties arising in this context, based on the currently available information the
company’s management confirms the assumptions set out in company plans.
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GROUP ECONOMIC, FINANCIAL AND EQUITY PERFORMANCE

Below are the reclassified schedules of the Income Statement and Equity and Financial Situation for
the year in question, compared with the results of the previous year.

LABOMAR GROUP CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

RECLASSIFIED INCOME

STATEMENTS

PEALEMENT 31/12/2021 %o 31/12/2020 %
Revenues from contracts with clients 65,412,049 100.0 61,059,449  100.0
Purchases of products, goods and materials 30,947,242 47.3 27,986,499 45.8
Changes in inventory (1,017,809) (1.6) (1,411,599) (2.3)
Cost of sales 29,929,433 45.8 26,574,900 43.5
Primary contribution margin 35,482,616 54.2 34,484,549 56.5
Service costs 11,900,586 18.2 9,968,423 16.3
Personnel costs 14,266,516 21.8 13,456,040 22.0
Other operating costs 287,389 0.4 167,311 0.3
Other income (1,088,013) (1.7) (431,576) (0.7)
EBITDA 10,116,137 15.5 11,324,351 18.5
Amortisation and impairment 7,412,858 I1.3 4,048,764 6.6
Other provisions 312,500 0.5 0 0.0
EBIT 2,390,779 3.7 7,275,587 11.9
Financial income 744,607 1.1 443,896 0.7
Financial charges (521,351) (0.8) (684,198) (1.1)
Net gains (losses) on exchange 458,359 0.7 (644,106) (1.1)
Value adjustments on financial assets 5,919,193 9.0 497,942 0.8
Earnings before taxes 8,991,586 13.7 6,889,121 11.3
(Taxes) (726,778) (1.1) (797,115) (1.3)
Net profit for the year 8,264,809 12.6 6,092,006 10.0
Group net profit 8,360,335 12.8 6,093,883 10.0
Minority interest net result (95,526) (0.1) (1,878)  (0.0)

During 2021 the Group recorded total revenues of € 65.4 million, against € 61.1 million in 2020, an
increase of over 7% with respect to the previous year.

Taking into account the effect of acquisitions as though they had occurred at the start of 2021, Group
total revenues total € 74.2 million, up 21.6% compared to 2020. This increased turnover is attributable
to Welcare's first half for € 4.1 million and the first 11 months of Labiotre for € 4.7 million net of
Intercompany sales.

The primary contribution margin shows an increase in absolute values of 2.9%, however in percentage
terms it has fallen by 2.3%. This change is due to the main consequences of the pandemic that caused
a slight fall in production efficiency and a different mix of products groups sold, in addition to lower
recharges for research and development services and the effect of increased procurement costs.

Due to Covid-19, it is noted that in Italy demand for cough & cold products has fallen, leading to a
consequent reduction in the sales of these liquid products which have a higher return.
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In terms of EBITDA, there has also been an increase in the amount of variable costs and fixed costs
due to the following additional elements:

* greater variable production costs for certification and analysis of medical devices and increased
maintenance activity

* anincrease in personnel costs for facilities and fixed costs due to the increase in the number of
employees and strengthening of the internal structure to handle the new governance approach.

With regard to “Other income”, primarily deriving from revenues from compensation and operating
grants, there was a significant increase in 2021, due to receipt of € 500,000 for the listing bonus for
SMEs received by the parent company following listing on Borsa Italiana’s Euronext Growth Milan
(formerly AIM Italia) market in October 2020.

For the reasons above, EBITDA is € 10.1 million, remaining basically stable at 15.5% of total revenues
and down in percentage-point terms compared to the previous year.

Taking into account the effect of new acquisitions as though they had occurred at the start of 2021,
Group EBITDA for 2021 is € 12.4 million, up 9.9% compared to 2020. This increased EBITDA 1is
attributable to Welcare's first half for € 1.2 million and the first 1 1 months of Labiotre for € 1.1 million.
Net of amortisation, depreciation and provisioning of over € 7.7 million, EBIT is approximately € 2.4
million.

Income taxes total € 0.7 million.

The Group's net profit was higher than the previous year, totalling € 8.3 million (+35.7%). This
increase is due primarily to financial income of € 5.5 million, and recalculation of the fair value of the
equity stake of Labiotre on acquisition of control in November 2021.

It should be noted that results achieved in 2021 were significantly affected

by the following non-recurring factors: the listing bonus mentioned above, consulting expenses and
bonuses to personnel connected to the acquisitions of Labiotre and Welcare, goodwill impairment
following the impairment test on the Canadian CGU, income deriving from the transaction agreement
established with the seller of Importfab regarding the earnout debt relative to acquisition of the
Canadian company and finally the financial income deriving from recalculation of the fair value of the
Labiotre equity stake.

Given the type of costs mentioned above, we present below the main gross and net operating margins,
before and after taxes, in particular net of non-recurring components, in order to better represent the
Group’s income capacity over time in a comparable manner.

With the same logic, the 2020 results for comparison are presented net of expenses linked to listing on
Borsa Italiana's AIM market and receipt of the benefit of the Patent Box for previous years.

Below are the percentages of the relative values in relation to “revenues from contracts with clients”.

31/12/2021 % 31/12/2020 %
Adjusted EBITDA 10,128,116 15.5 12,292,509  20.0
Adjusted net profit for the year 4,042,962 6.2 6,069,107 9.9]

Below is the reconciliation of the adjusted indicators:
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31/12/2021 % 31/12/2020 %
EBITDA 10,116,137 155 11,324,351 18.4
Costs and listing bonuses (500,000) (0.8) 968,158 1.6
Costs connected to acquisitions 484,646 0.7 0 0.0
Legal costs for Importfab earnout transaction 27,333 0.0 0 0.0
Adjusted EBITDA 10,128,116 155 12,292,509 20.0

Net profit for the year
Costs and listing bonuses
Costs connected to acquisitions 484,646 0.7

Recalculation of Labiotre fair value
Importfab goodwill impairment
Importfab earmnout transaction

(Tax effect of costs detailed above)
Patent box benefit for previous years 0.0
Adjusted net profit for the year

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
8264809  12.6 6,092,005 9.9
(500,000)  (0.8) 968,158 1.6

(5.547,338)  (8.5)
2,238,265 3.4
(510,383)  (0.8)
(387,037)  (0.6)  (270,116) (0.4)

(720,940) (1.2)

6,069,107 9.9

4,042,962 6.2

LABOMAR S.P.A. - CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

4 STATEMENTS
RECLASSIFIED FINANCIAL i i .
POSITION Increase
| Increase % | % over
31/12/2021 | over CIN 31/12/2020 @ CIN
Intangible assets 41,046,733 55.5 15,734,599 37.8
Rights of use 4,993,953 6.8 3,130,804 7.5
Tangible assets 23,173,700 314 17,121,091 41.1
Equity investments and financial assets 1,161,503 1.6 2,078,204 5.0
Other non-current assets and liabilities* (5,691,886) (7.7) (2,607,522) (6.3)
Net Non-Current Assets 64,684,002 87.5 35,457,176 85.1
Inventories 13,669,582 18.5 9,546,220 22.9
Trade receivables 13,908,986 18.8 9,438,872 22.6
Trade payables (15,796,168) (21.4) (12,685,358) (30.4)
Other current assets and liabilities** (2,549,638) (3.4) (75,907) (0.2)
Net Working Capital 9,232,762 125 6,223,827 14.9

Net Invested Capital

73,916,764 100.0 41,681,003

Shareholders’ equity (45,688,170) (61.8) (38,238,532) 91.7)
Cash and cash equivalents 14,162,598 19.2 33,660,632 80.8
Due to banks (30,368,827) (41.1) (33,311.412) (79.9)
Liabilities for derivative financial instruments (243,380) 0.3) (88,673) 0.2)

Bank loans
Right-of-use liabilities

Payables to shareholders for dividends

Non-disposable cash in trusts

(16,449,609) 260,547
(4,626,030) (6.3) (2,860,558) (6.9)
¢ 0.0 0 0.0
0 0.0 858,167 2.1
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Payables for business combinations and
ayables for business unit acquisition

Comprehensive Net Financial Position (28,228,595) (38.2) | (3.442,471) (8.3)

(7,152,956) ©.7) (1,700,627) 4.1)

Funding sources (73,916,765) (100.0y,  (41,681,003) (100.0)

*This item includes deferred tax assets, liabilities for employee benefits, provisions for risks and charges and deferred tax
liabilities.

*=This item includes other current assets, income tax credits, contractual liabilities, other current liabilities, income tax
payables and other current financial liabilities and financial derivatives.

The schedule for the Equity/Financial Situation identifies certain important macro-indicators.

“Net Working Capital” indicates the difference between commercial assets and liabilities linked to the
Group’s business cycle. The indicator represents the sum of warehouse inventories and trade
receivables, net of payables of the same nature. The indicator identifies the financial requirements
generated by the business cycle.

The trend for “Net Non-Current Assets”, essentially consisting of tangible assets, intangible assets and
financial assets (net of relative amortisation and depreciation) shows progress in investments in
absolute and percentage terms during the period in question.

Against commitments outlined, sources are represented by own and third party funds which changed
as a function of investments made and acquisitions completed.

The equity structure can be considered stable and solid.
The “Comprehensive Net Financial Position” represents bank exposure and financial debt linked to

leasing and rental contracts, net of cash and cash equivalents. The indicator shows the trend of
investments made and extraordinary transactions carried out.

Below is the consolidated statement of cash flow prepared using the indirect method.

_ 02 31/12/2020
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 6,092,005
Adjustments for non-monetary elements: 2,634,897 5,266,615
Amortisation, depreciation and impairment of tangible and intangible 7412858 4,048,764
assets and real estate

Provisions 1,067,865 489,700
Income taxes 726,778 797,115
Net interest income and expense (223,256) 240,303
Other adjustments for non-monetary elements (6,349,349) (309,267)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: (233,624) (1,693,503)
Changes in inventory (1,837,348) (1,624,322)
Changes in trade receivables (2,136,208) 1,207,099
Changes in trade payables 1,903,492 154,524
(Use of provisions) (279,971) 50,797
Other changes in operating assets and liabilities 2,116,410 (1,481,601)
Other amounts collected and paid: (1,941,349) (1,251,503)

1
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Interest received (paid) (180,001) (134,598)
(Income taxes paid) (1,761,348) (1,116,905)
Other amounts collected (paid -
NET CASH FLOWS GENERATED (ABSORBED) BY : o
OPERATIONS 8,724,732 8,413,615 |
Investments:
Investments in tangible assets (2,751,344) (6,254,187)
Divestments of tangible assets 154,103 28,060
Investments in intangible assets (563,493) (450,121)
Other cash flows from intangible assets - 32,680
Business acquisition (16,102,893) 622,466
Investment in financial assets (26,400)
Divestments of financial assets 134,918 289,756

0 R ABSORBED) B

0 6

Financial management:
Capital increase for pay 49,000 24,800,632
Shareholder transactions -
Increase (decrease) in bank loans (6,430,376) (1,504,429)
Increase (decrease) in short term amounts due to banks (51,439) 3,759,109
(Increase) decrease in other financial liabilities (999,421) (890,707)
Dividends received (paid) 2,033,245) 1,900,000)

NET CASH FLOWS GENERATED (ABSORBED) BY

FINANCIAL ASSETS (9,465,481) 24,264,605

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (19,895,858) 26,946,873
Exchange rate effects on cash and cash equivalents 397,825 (168,300)

Cash and cash equivalents at start of period A i 33,660,631 6,882,058

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents o (19,498,034 26,778,573

Cash and cash equivalents atend of period e 14,162,598 33,660,631

In terms of cash flows, during the period in question the Group generated over € 8.5 million through
operations.

Investment activities required a sizeable net amount of over € 18.8 million, of which € 15.8 million
were for the aforementioned acquisitions (amount gross of € 3.4 million liquidity for equity stakes

acquired) and € 3.2 million for investments in intangible assets.

The increase in net cash flows generated by lending activity is formed of € 2 million for distribution
of dividends by the parent company and the remainder primarily by the repayment of loans.

As an effect of the above, cash and cash equivalents decreased by around € 19.5 million.

Report on Operations — financial statements at 31 December 2021



Labomar S.p.a.

PARENT COMPANY ECONOMIC, FINANCIAL AND EQUITY PERFORMANCE

Below are the reclassified schedules of the Income Statement and Equity and Financial Situation for
the year in question for the parent company, compared with the results of the previous year.

LABOMAR S.P.A. - SEPARATE FINANCIAL

RECLASSIFIED INCOME STATEMENT STATEMENTS
31/12/2021 % 31/12/2020 %
Revenues from contracts with clients 53,778,929 100.0 51,773,448 100.0
Purchases of products, goods and materials 28,527,866  53.0 25,657,555 496
Changes in inventory (1,488,757)  (2.8) (1,825,836) (3.5)
Cost of sales 27,039,108  50.3 23,831,719  46.0
Primary contribution margin 26,739,820 49.7 27,941,729  54.0
Service costs 9435389 7.5 8,532,413 16.5
Personnel costs 11,435953 21.3 11,224,699  21.7
Other operating costs 225,745 0.4 164,268 0.3
Other income (1,009,150) (1.9 (429,576) (0.8)
EBITDA 6,651,884 12.4 8,449,925 16.3
Amortisation and impairment 3,598,112 6.7 3,293,224 6.4
Other provisions 312,500 0.6 0 0.0
EBIT 2,741,272 5.1 5,156,701  10.0
Financial income 302,834 0.6 246,375 0.5
Financial charges (426,546) (0.8) (555.891) (L.1)
Net gains (losses) on exchange 400,840 0.7 (597,578) (1.2)
Value adjustments on financial assets 5,919,193 /1.0 497,943 1.0
Earnings before taxes 8,937,593 16.6 4,747,550 9.2
(Taxes) (796,236)  (l.5) (241,286)  (0.5)
Net profit for the year 8,141,357 I5.1 4,506,264 8.7

RECLASSIFIED FINANCIAL POSITION

LABOMAR GROUP SEPARATE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

31/12/2021

CIN

Increase
% over

Increase |

31/12/2020

% over

CIN

Shareholders’ equity

Cash and cash equivalents
Due to banks
Liabilities for derivative financial instruments

 (44,115,291)
6,817,888
(23,020,235)
(240,659)

(70.4)

Intangible assets 811,244 1.3 560,750 1.4
Rights of use 2,118,401 34 2,688,065 6.8
Tangible assets 16,449,780 26.2 16,131,615 40.6
Equity investments and financial assets 40,259,785 64.2 16,307,888 41.0
Other non-current assets and liabilities*® (2,792,258) (4.5) (2,441,387) (6.1)
Net Non-Current Assets 56,846,953 90.7 33,246,930 83.6
Inventories 9,816,192 15.7 8,272,681 20.8
Trade receivables 10,846,915 17.3 8,854,265 22.3
Trade payables (14,744,802) (23.5)| (12,359,223) (31.1)
Other current assets and liabilities (77,494) (0.1) 1,752,116 4.4
Net Working Capital 5,840,812 9.3 6,519,838 16.4

29,840,492
(29,235,700)
(88,673)
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Bank loans | (16,443,007) |
Right-of-use liabilities (2,129,468)
Payables to shareholders for dividends

Non-disposable cash in trusts

Payables for business unit acquisition
Comprehensive Net Financial Position f 5 5|  (29.6)] (1,887,569)] 4.7)
Funding sources i ‘ (100.0)| (39,766,767)|  (100.0)

* Deferred tax assets, liabilities for emp[oyee benefils, provisions fm risks and charges, deferred tax liabilities.

Below is the statement of cash flow prepared using the indirect method.
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 31/12/2021 | 31/12/2020

8,141,357 4,506,264
Adjustments for non-monetary elements: (762,345) 4,232,281
Amortisation, depreciation and impairment of tangible and 3.393.224
intangible assets and real estate 3,598,112 T
Provisions 1,067,865 450,484
Income taxes 796,236 241,286
Net interest income and expense 123,712 309,515
Other adjustments for non-monetary elements (6,348,270) (62,230)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: (264,660) (1,166,577)
Changes in inventory (1,978,296) (1,939,932)
Changes in trade receivables (2,066,636) 544,274
Changes in trade payables 2,461,040 874,279
(Use of provisions) (298,685) 50,797
Other changes in operating assets and liabilities 1,617,918 (695,995)
Other amounts collected and paid: (592,386) (1,400,338)
Interest received (paid) (66,938) (283,433)
(Income taxes paid) (525,448) (1,116,905)
Other amounts collected (paid) - -
NET CASH FLO\V%(;EEE?;:;TNESD (ABSORBED) BY 6,521,967 : 6,171,630
Investments:
Investments in tangible assets (2,684,854) (5,945,514)
Other cash flows from tangible assets 4,103 28,060
Investments in intangible assets (548.414) (450,121)
Other cash flows from intangible assets - 32,680
Investment in financial assets (19,251,082) (180,000)
Other cash flows from financial assets (1,812,709) 793,024

]NNEJ55$§1‘;}1:TELOVVS GENERATED (ABSORBED) B\r | (20,667,538) : (5,721.871)
Financial management:

Capital increase for pay 24,800,632
Shareholder transactions . -
Increase (decrease) in bank loans (5,843,483) (1,504,429)
Increase (decrease) in short term amounts due to banks (457,613) 3,759,109
(Increase) decrease in other financial liabilities (614,757) (752,217)
Dividends paid) (2,033,245) 1,900,000

NET CASH FLOWS GENERATED (ABSORBED) BYI
FINANCIAL ASSETS |

(8,949,098) 24,403,095

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH]
EQUIVALENTS

b 21
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|LExchange rate effects on cash and cash equivalents 72,065 -|

Cash and cash equivalents at start of period 29,840,492 4,987,637

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 23,022,604) 24,852,855
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period : 6,817,888 29,840,492
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Main risks and uncertainties to which the Group is exposed

The Group has an internal control system consisting of rules, procedures and organisational structures
intended to ensure correct and proper management, including a process which is able to identify,
manage and monitor the main risks which could threaten the achievement of the company’s goals.
This paragraph outlines the risks and uncertainties linked to the general economic situation and
reference market which could significantly influence the Group’s performance.

Financial risks

The financial instruments used by the Group mainly include cash and cash equivalents and short and
medium/long-term financial assets and liabilities.

In line with that resolved by the parent company’s Board of D1rect0rs at its meeting on 23.11.2016,

regarding the adoption of a “Interest rate risk management policy” (which defines and indicates the
general principles and guidelines for the parent company’s Board of Directors in analysing, managing
and controlling interest rate risk), the Group has acted to diversify the technical types of bank lending
used, with the aim of limiting the risks it is exposed to, identifying those most appropriate to meet the
financial requirements determined by its industrial activities and the interest rate levels which can
minimise any possible unfavourable changes in the cost of financing.

The existing equity structure, its changes during the year just ended and management’s ability to
generate liquidity at the operating level all confirm a low level of liquidity risk. At 31 December 2021,
the Group complied with all the financial covenants established in its lending contracts: hence there
are no risks linked to non-compliance with these covenants leading to application of the acceleration
clause.

The Group continues to maintain balance and flexibility with regards to its financing sources and
loans. Liquidity needs are constantly monitored with an eye to guaranteeing financial resources are
efficiently obtained, with any available liquidity appropriately invested.

Exchange rate risks

During the year, the Group did not carry out any significant transactions in currencies other than the
Euro or the Canadian doltar. The exchange-rate risks for the parent company refer to the credit line
issued to the Canadian subsidiary, which involves repayment in instalments over the medium-term. In
2021, management signed hedging agreements in order to neutralise the exchange-rate risk for the
above lending to the Canadian subsidiary. Having hedged the entire amount with matching maturity
dates, these derivative contracts are considered as hedged in accordance with international accounting
standards. The subsidiary Importfab is not subject to any exchange risk in that to sterilise risks linked
to transactions in US dollars the company makes use of “natural hedging”.

External risks

The Group is exposed to the normal risks connected with the general conditions of the economy and
the sector.

Ty
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Despite a positive growth trend in its reference market, both internally and on external markets, the
Group is subject to pressure from numerous competitors who all have the objective of increasing their
market shares through aggressive price policies.

To that end, the Group has implemented a policy to develop its sales which is focussed on wide
diversification of markets and clients, so as to not concentrate turnover in individual
counterparties/markets which could be risky in the case of default or a decrease in demand.

In addition to this, the Group also pursues its growth strategy through intensive research and
development, with the aim of providing the Group with patents, original formulations and specific
production know-how that help to protect it from competition from other actors in its reference sector.
The Group’s business is not exposed to seasonal market fluctuations.

The Group constantly monitors risk with regards to changes in the relevant regulatory framework. The
goods it produces are subject to numerous safety and quality norms and regulations, both national and
international. To deal with these risks, the Group has always invested resources to research and
develop innovative products, which anticipate possible restrictions contained in current regulations. It
also has a Regulatory Affairs department.

The Group is exposed to the risk of unauthorised access/use of its company data and information.
However, it has developed operating policies and technical security measures intended to guarantee
adequate protection for its corporate data and information, partnering with highly qualified
cybersecurity suppliers.

Geopolitical risk

The group has minimal operations (approximately 1.0% of turnover) in geographic areas affected by
the war between the Russian Federation and Ukraine,

Management is placing a particular focus on supplies that, in the past, originated directly from areas
affected by the aforementioned war. These supplies in any case represent a slim portion of the total.
There is continued monitoring of the consequences that the conflict may have indirectly on the chain
of supply in the Group's sector,

There are no other noteworthy transactions in other geographic areas which could give rise to
macroeconomic, financial, regulatory, market, geopolitical or social risks.

Internal risks

The Group operates through a management structure divided into operational areas: sales, research
and development, regulatory, technical/production, logistics, control and quality assurance,
purchasing, administrative/financial, management control, personnel management and secretariat.
The internal structure is managed using an IT system accessible to each area as a function of their
responsibilities and the access granted by the system administrator. Management and control over each
individual area is based on a series of periodic reports, which may be daily, weekly and/or monthly
(based on the function). This allows for constant monitoring of activities and events.

It is held that the company’s control and management system is able to provide management and
administration with all the information and parameters required to allow for proper and careful analysis
of events and occurrences, allowing them to make suitable strategic decisions.

In November 2013 the parent company adopted its organisation, management and control model
pursuant to Italian Law 231/01 and also appointed the Supervisory Body. During 2019 and 2020 the

2

4
Report on Cperations — financial statements at 31 December 2021 %




Labomar S.p.a.

parent company updated this to reflect regulatory changes which had occurred in the meantime as well
as due to its listing on the Euronext Growth Milan market. The new model and the update were adopted
by the parent company after specific resolutions made by the Board of Directors on 13 February 2020
and 24 October 2020. At its meeting in February 2020, the Board renewed the appointment of the
Supervisory Body through the end of financial year 2022.

Risks connected to credit management and clients

The Group has adopted a credit management policy intended to evaluate the reliability of clients in
terms of creditworthiness, monitor expected collection flows, issue payment reminders and, when
deemed necessary or expedient, grant special credit conditions and handle legal disputes regarding
receivables,

In 2021, amounts allocated to the bad debt provision (€ 87,000) were determined based on analysis of
monitored positions and statistical analysis of losses on receivables and/or impaired positions recorded
over the last five years.

Based on analysis of client credit positions at 31 December 2021, also in the light of information
obtained during the initial months of 2022, the administrative body held the provision to be reasonably
suitable (at € 672 thousand and with reference to the consolidated financial statements) with respect
to perceived credit risk. '

The Group continuously carries out Research and Development, which allows it to develop new
patents and original formulations, which can be proposed to the market. It also continuously creates
new products which are innovative and original in terms of active ingredients, production processes
and methods used to deliver the active ingredients. '

Aware of the strategic importance of these activities, as in previous years, the Group continued to
invest in Research and Development in 2021 to further strengthen the resources dedicated and make
new areas and equipment available.

Patents filed in previous years also led to the creation of new products, with significant sales revenues
in both 2021 and in coming years. These activities represent a distinctive feature for the Group in
terms of the internal and foreign markets, helping to explain its positive growth rates over the last five
years. The value of intellectual property was the focus of the second half of 2021, with involvement
of a dedicated team for innovative projects.

During 2021, the company moved forward with innovative pre-competitive activities, focussing its
efforts on the following projects in particular:

s Activity 1; Futurals Green - Research and development activity for the use of micro greens in
food supplements.

~»  Activity 2; Research and Development for new food supplements, medical devices and food
for special medical purposes.

¢ Activity 3; Technological innovation to develop new food supplements.

e N PN
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For the above projects, the company incurred recognisable costs of € 583,734.55, relative to which it
intends to access the benefits established in the tax code for research, development, technological
innovation, design and aesthetic creation pursuant to article 1, paragraphs 198-209 of Ttalian Law 160
of 27 December 2019,

PRt

Relations with subsidiaries and associates are carried out with the aim of mutually beneficial
cooperation, with the goal of developing all useful synergies.

In particular:

- Labiotre: established in 2012, initially a minority interest, then acquired in its entirety in 2021.
Positioned in the value chain of the parent company with synergies in the production of active
ingredients and tinctures.

- Entreprises Importfab Inc., a Canadian company established in October 2019, in which Labomar
holds a majority stake and the public financial company SIMEST-SACE holds a minority stake, which
as of 1 November 2019 acquired the operating assets of Entreprises Importfab Ine, located in Pointe
Claire-Quebec. The transaction was based on prospects for developing core business in the North
American market over the medium/long-term, in part thanks to the know-how, patents and original
formulations owned by the parent company, which could be transferred to the Canadian subsidiary;

- Labomar Next S.r.1.; established in December 2019 in partnership with Zero S.r.1., its objective is to
develop cultivation of medicinal plants using aeroponic vertical farming, an area of interest for the
food supplement and medical devices markets, in partnership with counterparties interested in specific
plants and/or naturally-derived active ingredients to be used in new products.

Lab C S.r.L.: established in April 2021 and 100% controlled by Labomar Next. Lab C develops,
produces and sells innovative hi-tech products and services linked to vertical farming techniques.

- Welcare group: control acquired in July 2021. The group is based in Orvieto and has been active
since 2001 in the development, production and sale of medical devices to prevent and treat infections
and to manage skin injuries of various etiology. In Italy, Welcare distributes its products through
hospitals and the main wholesale pharmacy suppliers. In Europe and the rest of the world, this occurs
through a network of distributors.

The Welcare Group consists of the parent company Welcare Research S.r.]1. which carties out scientific
research and innovation relative to dietary, cosmetic and dermocosmetic products, as well as
pharmaceuticals and similar, and its subsidiary Welcare Industries S.p.a., in which it holds 100% of
the equity, which also is focussed on research and innovation in the areas of pharmaceuticals,
parapharmaceuticals, cosmetics, medical devices and similar.

The Welfare Group offers a particular high level of quality standards and some proprietary patented
technological solutions, which are in perfect synergy with the Labomar business model.

- Labovar S.r.l.: established in 2021 in partnership with Adiacent S.r.l., a subsidiary of Var Group
S.p.a. (company of the Sesa group, a company listed in the STAR segment of the Borsa Italiana S.p.a.
MTA market. Labovar will be a sales agent in the Far East for selected Labomar products, with the
obligation to purchase these products from Labomar and sell them exclusively Wlthm the
aforementioned market, through the online sales platform TMALL.
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- Printingpack: this is a minority interest that arose in 2012 in a company in the value chain in which
the parent company operates, with synergies in the creation of specialised packaging materials.

- Project Zero: this is a minority interest in a holding company which holds the controlling interest in
Zero S.rl., a company developing aeroponic vertical farming technology, ideal for using artificial
intelligence to develop optimised cultivation of high cost/value plants or those which are difficult to
produce due to a lack of necessary natural and environmental conditions.

All related party transactions were carried out at arm’s length, using the conditions that would be
applied between two independent parties.

In order to establish whether related party transactions are carried out using normal market conditions,
the parent company considered quantitative conditions, relative to prices and associated elements, as
well as the motivations which led it to decide to carry out the transaction and carry it out with a related
party rather than a third party.

There are no atypical and/or unusual relations with related parties of the parent company.

for the year 2020
Fm?ncml Receivables | Payables Costs Revenues
receivables
PARENT COMPANY
LBM Holding S.r.l. — o
SUBSIDIARIES
Importfab Inc. 7,725,644 124,689
Labomar Next S.r.l. 180,229 25,500 1,659
Labiotre S.r.l. 9,150 840,413| 2,597,580 90,000
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
Labiotre S.r.l. 9,150 840,413| 2,597,580 90,000
Printingpack S.r.l. 321,044 931,851
Unilab Immobiliare S.r.l. 1,277
OTHER RELATED PARTIES
Farmacia Bertin Walter Sas 18,446 575 4,988 51,335
Imm.re Alessandra S.r.l. 1,756,699 40,860
Universo TV Scarl 500
Consorzio Ribes-Next Scarl ) 1,000
BModel Sas 88,167 313,769
Labofit S.r.l. 3,000 36,000 B
b oy L | for the year 2021 e
il 4 b : sl e I
‘ :;::Rgab: Financial i% Receiva Baciblenl o Revenu
| b Debts i bles [ 5 es
'PARENT COMPANY T TR ' SRS e ]
'LBM Holding S.r.l. < I
' SUBSIDIARIES T R I
Importfab Inc. " 16,516,756 | 3,057 4,596 101,843
Welcare research S.r.l. ] - ‘ } : = T
‘Welcare industries S.p.a. ] T
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[labiottesitie o | 12,840 933,562 2,435,882 45,000
Labomar NextS.rl. | 282000 229 | 2,706
ebleenl e | 1 270 ] | 2710]
Labovar S.r.l. T ae ' |

 ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

' Printingpack S.r.l.
| Zero S.r.l. s
OTHER RELATED PARTIES

460,134 1,129,271

|
|
=

]

' Farmacia Bertin Walter Sas | _ 11,326 1,513 8,785 33,691 I
Imm.re Alessandra S.r.l. 180,000| 1,547,830 18] . 36,809 18
Universo TV Scarl - | | | 500 | T
Consorzio Ribes-Next Scarl 315 ' N . 1,000 |

| BModel Sas : R 50,310 234,362

et R | 3,000 36,000

Related-party transactions primarily regard relationships of a commercial and consulting nature, with
the exception of financial receivables from Immobiliare Alessandra S.r.1. that refer to the deposit paid
against the sub-leasing contract. For other relations with Immobiliare Alessandra S.r.1., it is noted that
the payables refer to financial liabilities (current and non-current) for rights of use, regarding real-
estate, and costs refer to the related interest.

At the 31 December 2021, and 31 December 2020, there were no guarantees.

3) INFORMATION ABOUT OWN SHARES AND/OR SHARES OF ABSOLUTE PARENTS
HELD BY THE PARENT COMPANY

The parent company does not hold any own shares or shares of absolute parents.

4) INFORMATION ABOUT OWN SHARES AND/OR SHARES OF ABSOLUTE PARENTS

ACQUIRED OR SOLD BY THE PARENT COMPANY DURING THE YEAR AND REASONS

FOR ACQUISITION OR SALE

During the year the parent company did not acquire any own shares and/or shares of absolute parents.

5) SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER YEAR END

In the initial months of 2022, after year end on 31 December 2021, the Group's operations continued
to be affected by the spread of Covid-19, as did the entire domestic and international economy.

The Group continued its production activity observing the provisions of local regulations aimed at
reducing the spread of Covid-19.

It is noted that based on information contained in the list of shareholders of the parent company, the
conditions specified by article 2-bis of the Issuers’ Regulation no. 11971 of 14 March 1999 (Issuers’
Regulation) exist for the Company to be classified as a “significant issuer of financial instruments to
the public”. It is specifically noted that:
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¢ the total number of shareholders, other than the controlling shareholder of the Company
{Walter Bertin through LBM Holding S.r.1.), holding a total of more than 5% in the share
capital of Labomar is greater than 500,
+ the limits indicated in article 2435-bis, first paragraph, of the Italian Civil Code have been
exceeded.
Labomar, having acknowledged that the set requirements have been exceeded, has accepted its
classification as a “significant issuer of financial instruments to the public” and has taken steps to issue
the notices required by Consob Issuers’ Regulations. On the basis of the above, Labomar will apply
the rules for its new status from financial year 2022.

Despite the difficulties mentioned above, the reference sector, as well as the food and pharmaceutical
sectors, maintained the growth trend seen in previous years. In consideration of this, the directors hold
that the Group will continue on its current growth path, both in the domestic market and in foreign
markets.

S

Management notes a significant increase in orders received at the date of approval of this document,
highlighting significant growth compared to figures for existing orders at the same date of the previous
financial year, However, a portion of orders received refer to deliveries planned for the middle of 2022
and are therefore significantly early with respect to the delivery dates. This is explained by the fact
that most probably a portion of these early orders have been prompted by customers’ desire to fix sales
prices in this uncertain macroeconomic context. Despite this, even considered without including these
early orders, the portfolio still shows growth in double figures compared to orders existing at the same
date of the previous year.

From a supply-chain perspective, management highlights that since the end of 2021 there has been
strain on supplies of raw materials and packaging materials. This disruption can be seen both in terms
of availability and delivery times of the raw materials themselves and in terms of price increases.

Transferring the-entirety of these price increases to end customers is a complex issue.

Together, the three factors described above have placed pressure on margins and prompted continuous
monitoring by Group management to minimise possible negative effects.

The Group operates at the following locations:

- four locations of the parent company, all within the municipality of Istrana (Treviso): Istrana - Via
N.Sauro 35 (registered office of the parent company and the subsidiaries Labomar next, Lab C and
Labovar), Istrana — Via Brigata Marche 1, Istrana — Via F.Filzi 33, Istrana — Via F.Filzi 55 A.

- four locations of the subsidiary Welcare in Milan - via san Giovanni sul muro 18 (registered office),
in Orvieto (Terni) - via dei Falegnami 7 and via dei Fornaciari 16, and in Rome — viale L. Gaurico
9/11 (sales).
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- 1 location of the subsidiary Labiotre in Barberino Tavarnelle (Florence) - Via Renato Guttuso 6
(registered office)
- 1 location in Canada of the subsidiary Importfab at 50 Hymus Blvd, Pointe-Claire, Quebec.

In compliance with that established under Regulation (EU) 2016/679 of the European Parliament and
Council of 27 April 2016 and under Italian Legislative Decree 196/2003, as amended by Italian
Legislative Decree 101 of 10 August 2018, known as the Privacy Code, management adopts
appropriate technical and organisational criteria needed to protect common, special and legal personal
information processed with IT and manual tools, as well as planning and carrying out training for those

responsible for processing.

fmuig
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In compliance with the requirement to properly manage the Group, management considers the
administrative and economic risks which apply to it, as contained in Italian Legislative Decree 231 of
8 June 2001 - Official Gazette of the Ttalian Republic, general series, 19 June 2001, ed. no. 140, which
establishes the general principles and criteria for assigning corporate liability to legal entities.

At its meeting on 15.11,2013, the parent company’s Board of Directors adopted an organisational,
management and control model pursuant to Italian Legislative Decree 231/01 and appointed a
Supervisory Body. During 2019 and 2020 the parent company updated this model to reflect regulatory
changes which had occurred in the meantime as well as due to its listing on the Euronext Growth
Milan market. The new model and the update were adopted by the parent company after specific
resolutions made by the Board of Directors on 13 February 2020 and 24 October 2020. At its meeting
in February 2020, the Board renewed the appointment of the Supervisory Body through the end of
financial year 2022, '

During the year, the Supervisory Body carried out an audit plan intended to verify proper adoption of
the model by the organisational structure and reported the results of the audits to Management.

Py

Management notes that the Group has always adopted prevention and protection measures and has
complied with legal provisions relative to safety and prevention in the workplace.

There were 10 injuries in 2021, of which 2 while commuting (8 at the parent company and 2 at the
Canadian subsidiary), leading to a total of 156 days of absence.

The labour contract used by the parent company is the Food - Industry contract. The contract used by
the subsidiary Labiotre is the Chemicals and Similar Small and Medium Enterprises contract and those
applied by Welcare are the Agriculture and Clothing and Tailoring Industrial Companies contracts.
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Management notes that the Group complies with the law for the sector relative to environmental
protection, Italian Legislative Decree 152/2006 “Environmental regulations”, as amended and
updated, as well as with the correlated implementation tools.

Dear Shareholders, the administrative body holds that the activities carried out and results achieved
both economically and commercially are such as to demonstrate the offices entrusted to us have been

carried out seriously, precisely and appropriately.

Istrana, 30 March 2022 '

The Chairman of the Board of Directors
Walter Bertin
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